
1 

 

 

 
MEETING: CABINET MEMBER - CORPORATE SERVICES 
  
DATE: Wednesday 3 February 2010 
  
TIME: 10.00 am 
  
VENUE: Town Hall, Bootle (video conferenced Town Hall, Southport) 

  
 

Councillor 
 
DECISION MAKER: Parry 
SUBSTITUTE: Griffiths 
  
 
SPOKESPERSONS: McGuire 

 
Tweed 
 

SUBSTITUTES: Hands 
 

McGinnity 
 

 
 COMMITTEE OFFICER: Mike Morris  
 Telephone: 0151 934 2045 
 Fax: 0151 934 2034 
 E-mail: mike.morris@legal.sefton.gov.uk 
 

The Cabinet is responsible for making what are known as Key Decisions, 
which will be notified on the Forward Plan.  Items marked with an * on the 
agenda involve Key Decisions 
A key decision, as defined in the Council’s Constitution, is: - 
● any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and 

Capital Programme approved by the Council and which requires a gross 
budget expenditure, saving or virement of more than £100,000 or more 
than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the greater 

● any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact 
on a significant number of people living or working in two or more Wards 

 
 

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist. 

 

Public Document Pack



2 

 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank.



3 

 A G E N D A 
 
Items marked with an * involve key decisions 
 

 Item 
No. 

Subject/Author(s) Wards Affected  

 

  1. Apologies for Absence 
 

  

  2. Declarations of Interest   

  Members and Officers are requested to give notice 
of any personal or prejudicial interest and the nature 
of that interest, relating to any item on the agenda in 
accordance with the relevant Code of Conduct.  
 

  

  3. Minutes  (Pages 5 - 8) 

  Minutes of the meeting held on 13 January 
2010  
 

  

  4. Corporate Customer Contact - Use of 
Speech Recognition Technology 

All Wards (Pages 9 - 
16) 

  Report of the Acting Finance and Information 
Services Director  
 

  

  5. Active Workforce - Programme 
Developments 

All Wards (Pages 17 - 
22) 

  Report of the Leisure Director 
 

  

  6. Finance and Information Services 
Department - Corporate Services Portfolio 
Monitoring 2009/10 - Quarter 2 

All Wards (Pages 23 - 
164) 

  Report of the Acting Finance and Information 
Services Director  
 

  

  7. Consultation on Draft Statutory Guidance on 
the Duty to Respond to Petitions 

All Wards (Pages 165 - 
216) 

  Report of the Legal Director   
 

  

  8. Exclusion of Press and Public   

  To consider passing the following resolution: 
 
That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act, 1972, the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 1 and 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to 

  



4 

the Act.  The Public Interest Test has been applied 
and favours exclusion of the information from the 
Press and Public.  
 

  9. Review of the School Admissions and 
Student Support Service 2010 

All Wards (Pages 217 - 
230) 

  Joint report of the Strategic Director, Children, 
Schools and Families and the Personnel 
Director  
 

  

* 10. Award of Insurance Broker and Risk 
Management Advisor Contract 

All Wards (Pages 231 - 
236) 

  Report of the Acting Finance and Information 
Services Director  
 

  

  11. Business Rates - Application for Hardship 
Relief 

Dukes (Pages 237 - 
242) 

  Report of the Acting Finance and Information 
Services Director  
 

  

  12. Presentation - Health and Safety Issues All Wards  

  To receive a presentation from Mr. Blair Hilton, 
Health and Safety Manager  
 

  

 



THE “CALL-IN” PERIOD FOR THIS SET OF MINUTES ENDS AT 12 NOON ON 

TUESDAY, 2 FEBRUARY 2010.  MINUTE NOS. 84 AND 87 ARE NOT 

SUBJECT TO "CALL-IN" 

 

29 

CABINET MEMBER - CORPORATE SERVICES 

 

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, BOOTLE 

ON WEDNESDAY, 13 JANUARY 2010 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Parry. 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillors McGuire and Tweed. 
 
80. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
No apologies for absence were received. 
 
81. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 
82. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED:    
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 December 2009 be confirmed 
as a correct record. 
 
83. THE MAKING AND ENFORCEMENT OF BYELAWS  

 
Further to Minute No. 74 of 9 December 2009, the Cabinet Member 
considered the report of the Legal Director on the enforcement of existing 
byelaws and on the resource implications of making new byelaws. 
 
RESOLVED:    
 
That the report be noted. 
 
84. REVENUE AND CAPITAL EXPENDITURE MONITORING TO 30 

SEPTEMBER 2009  

 
Further to Minute No. 39 of 16 September 2009, the Cabinet Member 
considered the joint report of the Chief Executive, the Head of Technical 
Services, the Finance and Information Services Director, the Legal 
Director and the Personnel Director, providing the latest forecast position, 
based on information as at 30 September 2009, in relation to the 
Portfolio's 2009/10 Revenue Budget and Capital Programme. 
 
RESOLVED:   That  
 
(1) the progress made in respect of revenue budgets that are subject to 

risk-based monitoring and any steps to mitigate projected 
overspends, be noted; and 

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



CABINET MEMBER - CORPORATE SERVICES- WEDNESDAY 13 
JANUARY 2010 
 

30 

 
(2) the progress made in respect of schemes within the Portfolio's 

elements of the Council's Capital Programme be noted. 
 
85. PROMPT PAYMENT CODE - PAYMENT OF INVOICES TO 

SUPPLIERS  

 
Further to Minute No. 89 of the Cabinet meeting of 6 August 2009, the 
Cabinet Member considered the report of the Finance and Information 
Services Director indicating that, following an approach by Government 
Office North West, the Council had become a signatory to the voluntary 
Prompt Payment Code which committed it to pay suppliers on time, give 
clear guidance to suppliers and encourage good practice by requesting 
lead suppliers to support the adoption of the code through their own supply 
chains. 
 
RESOLVED:   
 
That the report be noted. 
 
86. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  

 
RESOLVED:    
 
That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following two items of 
business on the grounds that they may involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1 (Minute No. 87) and 3 
(Minute No. 88) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act.  The Public Interest 
Test had been applied and favoured exclusion of the information from the 
press and public. 
 
87. REVIEW OF THE SCHOOL ADMISSIONS AND STUDENT 

SUPPORT SERVICE 2010  

 
The Cabinet Member considered the joint report of the Strategic Director - 
Children, Schools and Families and the Personnel Director on a proposed 
re-organisation of the existing School Admissions and Student Support 
Service to enable it to meet the requirements of the new School 
Admissions Code, which reflects changes to the law introduced by the 
Education and Skills Act 2008, which included: 
 

• extending the co-ordinating role of local authorities to all admissions 
applications for state primary and secondary schools made by their 
residents at any time of year, from 2010; 

 

• the full inter-Local Authority co-ordination of admission to primary 
schools to be phased in, starting with all in-year admissions from 
September 2010 and the annual allocation of primary places from 
September 2011; 

 

Agenda Item 3

Page 6



CABINET MEMBER - CORPORATE SERVICES- WEDNESDAY 13 
JANUARY 2010 
 

31 

• improving the information provided to parents by local authorities; 
adding parents and the local community to those who must be 
consulted regarding proposed admission arrangements; 

 

• requiring local authorities to report annually to the Schools Adjudicator 
on the fairness and legality of admission arrangements in their area; 
plus new powers for the Office of the Schools Adjudicator to act 
proactively if an Authority is failing in any aspects of the statutory and 
mandatory duties. 

 
RESOLVED:    
 
That consideration of the report be deferred pending consideration by the 
Cabinet Member - Children's Services. 
 
88. SETTLEMENT IN RESPECT OF CLAIM BY INTEGRAL 

SERVICES UK LIMITED  

 
The Cabinet Member considered the report of the Finance and Information 
Services Director on the proposed settlement of a potential litigation claim 
by the above company. 
 
RESOLVED:   That  
 
(1) the settlement in the sum of £250,000, which had been approved by 

the Chief Executive, the Finance and Information Services Director 
and the Legal Director, be noted; and 

 
(2) a further report be submitted, setting out the detailed reasons why 

this situation came about and the steps being taken to avoid any 
possible re-occurrence in the future. 

 
89. PERICLES REVENUES AND BENEFITS SYSTEM 

REPLACEMENT  

 
Further to Minute No. 79 of 9 December 2009, the Cabinet Member 
considered the report of the Finance and Information Services Director on 
the final financial evaluation of the procurement exercise to replace the 
above system. 
 
RESOLVED:   That  
 
(1) the report be noted; 
 
(2) the Legal Director be authorised to negotiate with arvato 

Government Services (Sefton) Limited and Northgate Information 
Solutions with a view to a contract being agreed directly between 
those organisations; and 

 

Agenda Item 3

Page 7



CABINET MEMBER - CORPORATE SERVICES- WEDNESDAY 13 
JANUARY 2010 
 

32 

(3) the intention to bring further update reports to the Finance and 
Information Services Operational Board and, at the appropriate 
time, to this Cabinet Member's meetings, be noted. 

 
90. PRESENTATION - SPECIALIST TRANSPORT UNIT  

 
The Cabinet Member received a presentation from Mr. Garry Lewis on the 
Specialist Transport Unit. 
 
RESOLVED:    
 
That Mr. Lewis be thanked for his informative presentation. 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 8



   
  

REPORT TO: 
 

Cabinet Member – Corporate Services 

DATE: 
 

3rd February 2010 

SUBJECT: 
 

Corporate Customer Contact – Use of speech recognition 
 

WARDS 
AFFECTED: 
 

All Wards 

REPORT OF: 
 

Lynton Green 
Acting Finance & Information Services Director 
0151 934 4096 
 

CONTACT 
OFFICERs: 
 

John Farrell  
Assistant Finance & Information Services Director 
0151 934 4339 
 
Janet Barry  
Customer Services Client Manager 
0151 934 4337 

EXEMPT/ 
CONFIDENTIAL: 
 

No 
 

PURPOSE/SUMMARY: 
 
To provide more information to the Cabinet Member of the proposed use of 
speech recognition technology in the Sefton Plus Contact centre. 
 

REASON WHY DECISION REQUIRED: 
 
This report seeks Cabinet Member approval to implement speech recognition.  
The Cabinet Member for Corporate Services is portfolio holder for Corporate 
Customer Services. 
 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
It is recommended that the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services: 
(a) Notes the contents of this report 
(b) Approves the implementation of speech recognition. 
 

 
KEY DECISION: 
 

 
No 

 
FORWARD PLAN: 
 

Not appropriate 

Agenda Item 4

Page 9



   
  

IMPLEMENTATION DATE: 
 

Following the expiry of the “call-in” period for the 
Minutes for this meeting. 
 

 

 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS:  
The Cabinet Member may decide not to implement speech recognition, although 
such a decision would limit the ability to improve customer access and make 
efficiencies. 
 

 
IMPLICATIONS: 
 

 
 

Budget/Policy Framework: 
 
 

These projects will be funded by contractual 
obligations or commitments made by arvato. 

Financial: 
 

 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

2009/ 
2010 
£ 

2010/ 
2011 
£ 

2011/ 
2012 
£ 

2012/ 
2013 
£ 

Gross Increase in Capital 
Expenditure 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Funded by:     

Sefton Capital Resources      

Specific Capital Resources     

REVENUE IMPLICATIONS     

Gross Increase in Revenue 
Expenditure 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Funded by:     

Sefton funded Resources      

Funded from External Resources     

Does the External Funding have an expiry 
date? Y/N 

When? 

How will the service be funded post expiry?  

 
Legal: 
 

None 

Risk Assessment: 
 
 

Risk Assessment will be undertaken as part of 
the management of the projects. 

Asset Management: 
 
 

Not applicable as this will be managed under the 
existing contractual obligations. 

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN/VIEWS 
Consultation between arvato and Sefton took place during the contractual 
negotiations.  This will be subject to review by Council Officers through the 

Agenda Item 4

Page 10



   
  

Customer Contact Executive Board, Financial and Information Services 
Operational Board, and through the project itself. 

 
 
 
CORPORATE OBJECTIVE MONITORING: 
 

Corporate 
Objective 

 Positive 
Impact 

Neutral 
Impact 

Negative  
Impact 

1 Creating a Learning Community  �  

2 Creating Safe Communities �   

3 Jobs and Prosperity �   

4 Improving Health and Well-Being �   

5 Environmental Sustainability �   

6 Creating Inclusive Communities �   

7 Improving the Quality of Council 
Services and Strengthening local 
Democracy 

�   

8 Children and Young People 
 

 �  

 
 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS RELIED UPON IN THE PREPARATION OF 
THIS REPORT 
 
Tender and response documentation  
 
Schedule 5 of the contract between arvato and Sefton Council 
 
Reports to Cabinet Member for Corporate Services on 16th September 2009 
 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 11



   
  

 
 
1. BACKGROUND 
 
1.1. During the contract negotiations for the Major Service Review, arvato detailed the 

desire to implement speech recognition as one of the commitments in The 
Continuous Improvement Plan for Customer Services.  

 
1.2. A report was brought to Cabinet Member for Corporate Services on 16th September 

2009 entitled “Corporate Customer Contact – Improving Access For Our 
Customers”. That report outlined the  development of various projects relating to 
improving Customer Service, including speech recognition. Paragraph 3.2 of that 
report provided brief information about the proposals to implement Speech 
Recognition, and advised that a more detailed report would be brought to a future 
Cabinet Member meeting. 

 
1.3. This report sets out a more detailed description of this project. 
 
 
2. Speech recognition 
 
2.1. Speech recognition, as a technology, should not be confused with Interactive Voice 

Routing (IVR) which in Sefton is a simple (select 1, 2 etc) functionality to get callers 
to a skilled advisor quickly and effectively.  

 
Speech recognition will be familiar to customers as it is now widely used by 
companies and by some Local Government Authorities and is a product that will 
enhance the current, very successful, use of IVR in Sefton by further reducing 
waiting times and allowing some services and information provision to be offered on 
a 24/7 basis 365 days a year. The solution enables voice interaction between the 
customer and the system, which responds according to what is asked. 
 

2.2. The advantages for Sefton are: 
 

a) 24/7 services available over the telephone. 
b) Facilitates the allocation of resource to deal with the more complex and time 

consuming enquiries and reducing the need for live staff to complete the more 
routine type of call. 

c) Consistent greeting / call handling. 
d) By routing calls more effectively customers will help the Council reduce 

avoidable contacts (NI 14). 
 

2.3 The proposed solution will give the ability to supplement, extend and if required, 
replace existing routine and simple functions currently delivered by live agents 
within the contact centre. By automating some of the more mundane functions, such 
as operator calls, customer surveys, waste reporting and information services, “live” 
agents time can be much better spent dealing with and resolving the more complex 
calls received in Sefton Plus. From day 1 these automated services (switchboard 
aside) will be available to customers on a 24/7 basis and new transactions will be 
rolled out on a regular basis to expand the basket of services. Where agents are 
available, callers can and will always be able to choose to speak to an operator, but 

Agenda Item 4

Page 12



   
  

should call waiting times increase or if it is felt that automation services should be 
the first option for customers, then the automation agents can deal with these calls 
in a consistent and professional manner. The ability to break out of the automated 
system and speak to a person is always provided to the caller. 

 
2.4. Implementation & Phase 1 “Proof of Concept” 

 
Once approval to proceed has been received the intention would be to implement 
the solution across a limited number of services &/or transactions to provide a 
“proof of concept” analysis. The options for this first phase roll-out will come from 
the following: 
 
a) Operator / Switchboard - the solution enables callers to simply say the name of 

the person, department or service they require and quickly and efficiently 
connects them to their desired location. It is a fact that Councils and Citizens 
often use different terms to describe the same thing (Consider Refuse / 
Cleansing / Technical Services which Citizens may refer to as Bins). There are 
pit-falls in any switchboard operation but the planned deployment of Speech 
Recognition for Sefton deals with these very effectively, for example:  

 
i. When a caller asks for an officer with a duplicate name, the automated 

operator will intelligently ask a qualification question such as "Would you 
like John Smith in Children’s Services or John Smith in Procurement?"  

ii. The solution supports alternative names and synonyms, and will 
automatically add common variants to names. For instance, for a contact 
called William Jones, the automated operator will automatically add Will 
Jones and Bill Jones to the alternative names a caller can request without 
the need for administrator input. 

iii. Personal call screening - the call is screened in the same way a human 
operator would, announcing the call to the called party and offering them 
the option of rejecting the call. 

iv. Manager/Secretary working - when a user does not want to be interrupted, 
they can enable the manager secretary working option. External calls can 
be directed straight to the user's secretary or colleague. 

v. There is also a built-in, optional ‘follow me’ functionality. With a simple 
phone call, or via a web interface, users can tell the system on which 
number, internal or external, they can be contacted. 

 
b) Customer Report – A large number of current calls are of a type where the 

customer is providing the Council with information on a range of issues, for 
example:  

 
i. Household Issues (Bin was not collected / Bin has been stolen / requesting 

a bulky item collection).  
ii. General Issues (Graffiti, Street Light Not working, Abandoned Car etc.).  

 
By using Speech recognition on some of these services the aim would be to 
automate the collection of the relevant information and give the customer the 
appropriate response based on existing up to date criteria that are already 
established with Council Departments.  

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 13



   
  

c) Customer Information –These calls are often simple in nature, customer 
requirement being provision of a piece of general information or even 
something more specific to their particular address or circumstances; 

 
i. Is it a green bin / grey bin collection week? For this the answer is based on 

a simple reference to the customer’s postcode.  
ii. What items can be collected in a bulky item collection, or how to make an 

appeal on a Parking Ticket. Again, the answer is based on a simple 
reference to very specific guidelines already agreed.   

 
d) Customer Satisfaction Survey – the ability to carry out short customer 

satisfaction surveys has obvious benefits but has been something avoided to 
date given that it unnecessarily occupies “live” advisor resources on the end 
of existing transactional calls but Speech Recognition will enable this to be 
automated.   

 
2.5. Future Phases 
 

Other options for the future include:  
 
a) Registration Calls – the ability to register for voting forms or school places 
 
b) Location “Find my nearest” – the ability to ask for a nearest facility, such as 

refuse tip or library 
 

c) Mail to Me - the ability to ask for specific forms, brochures or leaflets and have 
them delivered automatically. 

 
Once authority to proceed has been given, one of the first tasks of the project team 
is to liaise with SMBC and identify which of the above calls types and specific 
transactions will go into Phase 

 
2.6. Managing The “Risks” 
 
 The following risks, and solutions, have been identified: 
 

a) The caller is talking to a computer and might want to speak to a person – in 
practice they always have the ability to talk to a live operator if so desired. 

 
b) Computer Failure will result in the service not being available – a dual server 

solution would allow one server to be always available.  
 

c) The call might be directed to the wrong person – if the telephone directory is 
properly maintained the likelihood of this happening is small.  

 
d) There will be a requirement for arvato to work with SMBC to undergo a directory 

cleansing exercise prior to go-live with the Switchboard roll-out but this will be 
necessary in any case as a result of the ongoing work on the Strategic Budget 
review and overall re-Structure of SMBC services. This process will also provide 
a blueprint for future database maintenance. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 14



   
  

 
2.7. Next Steps 
 

a) Sefton MBC members and Client Team agrees to the use of speech recognition 
technology in contact centre. 

• Initiates project = Month 1 
 

b) Lead officer(s) identified in SMBC Client team and Departments. 

• Working Group established by middle to end of Month 2 
 

c) Work begins with SMBC representatives to: 

• “Cleanse” the corporate telephone directory for departments, services 
and officers. By end Month 4 

• Identify, the appropriate services for Phase 1. By end Month 4 

• Technical development and testing – Months 4 and 5  
 

d) Go-Live – Month 6 
 
e) Ongoing review of Progress, Review of Phase 1 – Monthly from Month 1 

 
f) “Proof of Concept” Report back to SMBC Members. – Month 9 

 
NOTE - A detailed project plan will be developed once approval to proceed has been 
received.   
 
 
3. Financial Implications 
 
3.1. The implementation of Speed Recognition technology is in the contractual 

Continuous Improvement Plan with arvato, and will not incur any additional cost to 
the Council. 

 
 
4. RECOMMENDATION 
 
 It is recommended that the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services: 
 

(a) Notes the contents of this report. 
(b) Approves the implementation of the development and implementation of speech 

recognition. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

REPORT TO: 
 

CABINET MEMBER - CORPORATE SERVICES  
CABINET MEMBER - LEISURE & TOURISM 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY – (Health and Social Care) 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY – (Regeneration and 
Environmental Services) 

DATE: 
 

Corporate Services – February 3rd 2010 
Leisure & Tourism – January 27th 2010 
Overview & Scrutiny (H&SC) – March 2nd 2010 
Overview & Scrutiny  (R&ES) - March 9th 2010  

SUBJECT: 
 

ACTIVE WORKFORCE  - PROGRAMME DEVELOPMENTS 

WARDS AFFECTED: 
 

All 

REPORT OF: 
 

Graham Bayliss – Leisure & Tourism Director 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

Alistair Robertson, Head of Service Sport and Recreation 
(Development) 

EXEMPT/ 
CONFIDENTIAL: 
 
 

 
No 

PURPOSE/SUMMARY: 
 
To provide Members with an update report highlighting the success and continued 
development of the Active Workforce programme.   
 
 

REASON WHY DECISION REQUIRED: 
 
N/A 
 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
It is recommended that Members note the significant progress and development of the 
Active Workforce programme. 
 

 
KEY DECISION: 
 

 
N/A 

FORWARD PLAN: 
 

N/A 

IMPLEMENTATION DATE: 
 

N/A 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 17



 

  

 

 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS: N/A 
 
 
 

 
 
IMPLICATIONS: 
 

 
 
 

Budget/Policy Framework: 
 
 

Active Workforce contributes to the following Sefton 
LAA targets; 
NI 8 – Adult participation in sport and active recreation 
NI 119 – Self reported measure of people’s overall 
health and wellbeing 

Financial: 
 

 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

2006/ 
2007 
£ 

2007/ 
2008 
£ 

2008/ 
2009 
£ 

2009/ 
2010 
£ 

Gross Increase in Capital 

Expenditure 

    

Funded by:     

Sefton Capital Resources      

Specific Capital Resources     

REVENUE IMPLICATIONS     

Gross Increase in Revenue 

Expenditure 

    

Funded by:     

Sefton funded Resources      

Funded from External Resources     

Does the External Funding have an expiry date? 

Y 

 

How will the service be funded post expiry?  

 
Legal:  
 

N/A  

Risk Assessment:  
 

N/A 

Asset Management:  
 
 

N/A 

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN/VIEWS 
N/A 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 18



 

  

 
CORPORATE OBJECTIVE MONITORING: 
 
Corporate 
Objective 

 Positive 
Impact 

Neutral 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact 

1 Creating a Learning Community √   

2 Creating Safe Communities  √  

3 Jobs and Prosperity √   

4 Improving Health and Well-Being √   

5 Environmental Sustainability  √  

6 Creating Inclusive Communities √   

7 Improving the Quality of Council Services 
and Strengthening local Democracy 

√   

8 Children and Young People 
 

 √  

 
 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS RELIED UPON IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS 
REPORT 
None  

 
BACKGROUND 
 

It has been proven that regular physical activity can significantly reduce sickness absence 
levels, increase productivity and create a workplace feel good factor.  Therefore, the purpose 
of the Active Workforce programme is to improve the health and wellbeing of employees via 
a range of innovative physical activity and sport interventions.  
 

The Sefton programme was initially delivered as a pilot project following a successful bid to 
Sport England’s “£1million Healthy Workforce Challenge” (2007). The pilot proved highly 
successful and led to the Sefton Public Health Partnership (Council and Sefton NHS Primary 
Care Trust) commissioning the Leisure Services department (through the Sport & Recreation 
service) to deliver the programme on a long-term basis. The focus for the progamme is all 
major employers within the borough. 
 
It was agreed following the establishment of the prgramme, that Members would receive 
update reports on its progress, and therefore the following report highlights some of the key 
developments in the programme during the last 18 months. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1.  INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1. This report covers the period April 2008 – December 2009 and summarises what the 
Active Workforce programme team has achieved during this time. The founding partners 
of the Sefton programme in 2007 were; the Council, Sefton NHS PCT, Sefton CVS, One 
Vision Housing and Sefton New Directions.  

 

1.2. During the last 12 months the following organisations have joined the programme; 
Aintree University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, Shop Direct (Littlewoods Financial 

Agenda Item 5

Page 19



 

  

Services Ltd), Arvato  and Capita Symonds. In addition, from April 2010, Autism 
Initiatives will become the tenth major partner to join Active Workforce. 

 

2. SUMMARY OF ACHIEVEMENTS  
 

                Since April 2006 Active Workforce has: 
  

• Attracted ten new major employers to invest resources in to the initiative. 

• Achieved a reduction in sickness absence - participating employees self reporting a  
26% reduction in sickness absence. 

• Regularly engaged with 20% of employees in physical activity and health related 
initiatives. 

• Been recognised for its contribution to workplace health and wellbeing with awards 
from the Municipal Journal and North West Public Health.  

• Used as a best practice case study by the Local Government Association. 
 

3. PROGRAMME DELIVERY 
 

3.1 In total, across the nine partner organisations, over 20% of the employees are taking 
advantage of the Active Workforce programme.  

 

3.2 To date there are almost 4,000 employees signed up to the programme, with 1,500 of 
these paying for a subsidised Active Sefton fitness suite membership. This generating 
over £25,000 a month in additional income across all the leisure centres. 

  
3.3 The project team has provided 50 Ballroom Dancing sessions, 28 tai chi sessions, 40 

yoga session per year and almost 1,500 employees have volunteered to participate in 3 
workplace pedometer challenges.  

 

3.4 The programme has also provided employees with access to fifteen days of health 
assessments, ten healthy lifestyle seminars and a total of twenty six weight 
management courses.  

 

3.5 Every member has received a monthly health newsletter and information update. 
 

3.6 All employees are offered the opportunity to take advantage of professional advanced 
dietetic support and structured smoking cessation groups. 

 
4. PROJECT SPONSORSHIP 
 
4.1 In November 2009, officers secured a sponsorship agreement with its first truly 

commercial partner; Shop Direct. Founded in 1923, Shop Direct Group is the U.K.’s 
leading online retailer, and its largest home shopping company, based in Aintree.   

4.2 As a result of this sponsorship deal, Active Workforce was able to apply, and was 
recently awarded £14,000 of Sports Match funding from the DCMS’s Sports 
Sponsorship Incentive Programme; ‘Sports Match’ (administered by Sport England). 

 
4.3  This funding will allow the team to expand the programme to include additional health 

assessment opportunities and more sport specific activities, including the introduction of 
a range of new sports leagues for employees. 

 
5.   INDUSTRY BEST PRACTICE AWARDS 
 
5.1 In 2008, Active Workforce received a national Municipal Journal Award in recognition of 

the contribution made to improving the health of the workforce.  
 
5.2  This was followed up, also in 2008 with a North West Public Health Award in the 

category ‘Contribution to Public Health’ and in April 2009 the programme was short-
listed for an Association of Public Service Excellence Award  (APSE). 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 20



 

  

5.3  In January 2010 Active Workforce has been selected by the Local Government 
Association to act as a case study of best practice in the field of Health Improvement. 

  
6.  CONTRIBUTION TO SEFTON LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT NATIONAL INDICATORS 
 
6.1  NI8, Adult participation in Sport and Active Recreation – 20% of employees are regularly 

engaged. This is a total of over 3,800 people. 
 
6.2 NI19, Self reported measurement of people’s overall health and wellbeing –From the 

annual Active Workforce survey employees reported the following improvements in: 
 

••  Concentration – 81% 

••  Sleep Patterns – 60% 

••  Work Capacity – 76% 

••  Stress Levels – 61% 

••  Weight Loss – 65% 

••  Energy Levels – 92% 

••  Mood/Morale – 88%. 
 
7.    FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS 

 
7.1 In partnership with NHS Sefton, In January 2010, Active Workforce has applied for 

£47,000 funding from the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP), Health Work and 
Wellbeing Challenge Fund.  If successful, this additional funding will facilitate a 
significant increase in opportunities for the workforce to participate in sport and 
Recreation. 

 
  7.3 ‘Back to’ courses and leagues will be developed in the following sports; Badminton, 

Football, Netball and Softball, together with a regular organised running/jogging group 
specifically for beginners. This will engage the employees interested in team sports and 
provide a “Back To” course to improve skills in a chosen sport and then apply them in a 
friendly league. 

 
7.4 All new participants will be encouraged to sustain their participation by becoming 

permanent members of Active Workforce. This will enable the leagues and regular 
organised sessions to be maintained and also provide these new participants with 
additional activity opportunities. Alternative pathways to continue participation will also 
be available, specifically through links to local clubs (e.g. athletics club based at 
Litherland Sports Park), and through links to mainstream Active Sefton programmes.  

 
7.5 The team will also focus on the engagement of new partner employers to maximize 

income  generation and the impact of the programme across the borough. 
 
 
8. RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
It is recommended that Members note the significant progress and development of the 
Active Workforce programme. 
 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO: 
 

Cabinet Member Corporate Services 

DATE: 
 

3 February 2010 

SUBJECT: 
 

Finance & IS Department– Corporate Services 
Portfolio Monitoring 2009/10 – Quarter 2 
 

WARDS AFFECTED: 
 

All 

REPORT OF: 
 

Lynton Green – Acting Finance and Information 
Services Director 

CONTACT OFFICER(S): 
 

Lynton Green John Farrell 
0151 934 4096 0151 934 4339  
 

EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL: 
 
 

No 

PURPOSE/SUMMARY: 
 
To inform the Cabinet Member of performance in relation to the Finance & 
Information Services Department element of the Corporate Services Portfolio’s 
2009/10 Departmental Service Plan, with particular reference to Quarter 2 
2009/10.   
 

REASON WHY DECISION REQUIRED: 
 
As part of the performance management framework, the Cabinet Member is 
required to monitor performance.   
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
The Cabinet Member is asked to note the Quarter 2 position in respect of the 
portfolio’s responsibilities within the Finance and Information Services 
Departmental Service Plan.   
 

 
KEY DECISION: 
 

 
No 

FORWARD PLAN: 
 

Not Appropriate 

IMPLEMENTATION DATE: 
 

Following the expiry of the “call-in” period for the 
Minutes of this meeting. 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 23



 

 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS: 
 
None 
 

 
 
IMPLICATIONS: 
 

 
 
 

Budget/Policy Framework: 
 
 

This report reports on progress as part of the 
corporate performance management framework. 

 
Financial:  
 

 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

2009/10 
£ 

2010/11 
£ 

2011/12 
£ 

2012/13 
£ 

Gross Increase in Capital 
Expenditure 

    

Funded by:     

Sefton Capital Resources      

Specific Capital Resources     

 

REVENUE IMPLICATIONS 

    

Gross Increase in Revenue 
Expenditure 

    

Funded by:     

Sefton funded Resources      

Funded from External Resources     

Does the External Funding have an expiry 
date? Y/N 

When? 

How will the service be funded post expiry?  

 
Legal: 
 

Not appropriate 

Risk Assessment: 
 

Risk has been considered within all activities 
within the Departmental Service plan, and the 
Departmental Risk Register is considered on a 
quarterly basis by the Departmental Management 
Team.   
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 24



Asset Management: 
 

Not appropriate 

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN/VIEWS 
None 

 
 
 
CORPORATE OBJECTIVE MONITORING: 
 
Corporate 
Objective 

 Positive 
Impact 

Neutral 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact 

1 Creating a Learning Community √   

2 Creating Safe Communities √   

3 Jobs and Prosperity √   

4 Improving Health and Well-Being √   

5 Environmental Sustainability √   

6 Creating Inclusive Communities √   

7 Improving the Quality of Council 
Services and Strengthening local 
Democracy 

√   

8 Children and Young People 
 

√   

 
 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS RELIED UPON IN THE PREPARATION OF 
THIS REPORT 
 
The Council’s SPRINT (Sefton Performance Reporting and Information NeTwork) 
System 
 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 25



1. Background 
 
1.1. The 2009/10 Finance Departmental Service Plan (DSP) was approved by the 

Cabinet Member for Corporate Services on 29th April 2009.  The purpose of this 
report is to update the Cabinet Member on performance against the 
Departmental Service Plan as at the end of Quarter 2 2009/10.  This reporting 
frequency and approach has been recommended for all portfolio areas.   

 
1.2. As part of performance management arrangements, all Departmental Service 

Plans, and Annual Service Plans are entered into the Council’s SPRINT 
performance management system and officers are required to update progress 
within that system.  Attached to this report is a copy of the Departmental 
Service Plan Quarter 2 updates on performance and activities.   

 
2. Service Achievements 

 
2.1. The key service achievements/issues over the last year can be summarised as 

follows: 
 

2.2. Major Service Review 
 

(a) September 2009 saw the end of the first year of the contract between 
Sefton and arvato.  

(b) The services delivered by arvato are monitored monthly by a range of 
key performance indicators. All live key performance indicators have 
been met, there are a number of key performance indicators that are 
still subject to baselining and these are also carefully monitored with a 
view to them becoming live at a future date. 

(c) Key achievements for the period are 
i. Completion of benchmarking for Transactional Services. 
ii. Internal audit recommendations agreed and adopted fro 

Accounts Payable. 
iii. The creation of a dedicated arrears collection team to focus 

on Council Tax arrears 
iv. The implementation of Government Connect. 
v. The upgrade to the Council voice and data network 

infrastructure. 
 
2.3. Financial Management  
 
(a) The 2008/09 Financial Accounts were closed and reported to the Audit and 

Governance Committee by the end of September 2009, in line with statutory 
timescales.  The Accounts were approved with a clean bill of health from the 
Council’s Auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers.   

  

(b) Initial work has been undertaken on the introduction of the new International 
Financial Reporting Standards.  Whilst the formal introduction is for the 2010/11 
financial year, the 2009/10 Accounts also need to be re-stated in the new format. 
A significant amount of work will be required, over the coming months, from staff 

Agenda Item 6

Page 26



not only within Finance, but also other Council departments and Capita 
Symonds. PricewaterhouseCoopers have assisted the Council in preparing an 
impact analysis to identify the key issues and the timescales for the Council.   

 

(c) The turmoil in the financial markets has resulted in additional work for the 
Treasury Management Team and produced significantly reduced investment 
returns for the Council. In order to ensure that the Council is fully prepared for 
the current climate, there have been changes to the Policy / Strategy of the 
Authority.  Additional training of officers and Members has also been necessary, 
as has the need to expand the regularity of reporting to Cabinet / Audit and 
Governance Committee.  In order that the Council has the ability to invest its 
temporary cash resources in as wide (but as secure) a range of institutions as 
possible, a number of new arrangements have been put in place with Money 
Market Funds.  Despite these pressures, average investment returns have 
exceeded the standard benchmark target rate (7 day LIBID rate).   

 
2.4. Central Purchasing Unit  
 

a) Adoption of E-Procurement System for Borough Schools 
CPU has worked closely with the Department for Children, Schools and 
Families (DCSF) to implement an e-procurement solution for schools 
across the borough.  This project was undertaken in partnership with 
Wirral MBC and preparations began during December 2008. 

 
Following a series of consultation meetings with key internal staff within 
the ICT and payments sections of each borough, CPU and DCSF staff 
presented the solution to Sefton primary and secondary schools earlier 
this month at the school business forums. 

 
The benefits of adopting such a system are as follows; 

• It’s free to use. 

• Access to supplier catalogues typically realise savings of up to 30% v 
current expenditure. 

• Enables schools to have seamless access to Sefton corporate 
contracts. 

• Schools can undertake benchmarking with suppliers across the country 
at the touch of a button. 

• Reduces the administrative burden to schools and eradicates the need 
to conduct purchases via costly paper exchange methods. 

• It’s extremely user friendly and is very similar to ‘shopping on-line’. 
 

Following presentations at the recent school business forums circa 90% of 
schools across the borough expressed an interest in signing up to the 
scheme through DCSF.  It is envisage roll out will commence during the 
first quarter of the new calendar year. 

 
b) Adoption of Pro Contract Electronic Solution for Council Procurement 

Activity.   

Agenda Item 6

Page 27



CPU is rolling out the Pro Contract procurement solution across the 
authority.  This was a collaborative project agreed with other Merseyside 
authorities.  The solution eradicates the need for ‘paper exchange’ 
between Sefton officers and suppliers when business/contract 
opportunities are advertised/bid for. 
Following the release of the Glover report in December 2008 all public 
sector bodies are required to implement an electronic portal solution when 
advertising business opportunities by the end of 2010.  This reduces the 
cost of bidding in respect of suppliers, notably important for Small 
Businesses (SME’s), and also improves the internal efficiencies of 
procurement operations among SMBC staff. 

 
CPU has just gone live with the system and the solution will be rolled out 
across the authority during 2010. 

 

2.5. Internal Audit 
 

a) Internal Audit work is separately reported quarterly to the Audit and 
Governance Committee.  This allows for more regular reporting and 
monitoring of Internal Audit work and provides for greater Member input into 
reviewing the Council’s control environment and in the formulation and review 
of the Annual Governance Statement.   

 
b) The review of the way Internal Audit works and supports the rest of the 

Council has been delayed to ensure it links with the Overall Budget Review 
currently in progress.  This has been reported to Audit and Governance. 

 
2.6. Claims and Administration 
 

The Section continues to look for savings, and has successfully renewed all of 
the Councils insurance policies at reduced costs.  

 

2.7. Specialised Transport Unit 
 
Further actions have been taken to further minimise the financial, operational and 
management problems of the unit. 

a) A New Head of service has been recruited and started work at the beginning 
of September. 

b) A review of the taxi contracts has been under taken and has been undertaken 
and was implemented during September at the beginning of the School Year 
– Initial indications are that this review of the contracts should reduce the taxi 
spend by approximately £100,000 in the current financial year. 

c) Overall indications are that spending for 2009/10 will remain flat or slightly 
increase in comparison with 2008/9. The efficiency improvements having 
been offset by inflation and an increase in demand for wheelchair and taxi 
places. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 28



 
3. Corporate and Cross-Cutting Issues 
 
3.1. Equality – An Equality Impact Assessment has commenced for Customer 

Services, Revenues and Benefits.  The overarching assessment will result in 
3 distinct action plans for each service.  The assessment is due for completion 
at the end of quarter 3.   

 

3.2. Sickness – sickness levels in the Department were 4.25% for the period April 
2009 to October 2009.  This is higher than the corporate target of 4% but an 
improvement on the 4.98% for the previous 12 months.  Sickness is being 
closely managed with the support of personnel advice from the BSU.  There 
have been a number of long-term sickness absences, which are being closely 
monitored, and the Council’s Sickness Absence Procedures are being 
adhered to.  In appropriate cases, advice is sought from the Occupational 
Health Unit.  

 

3.3. Sustainability - The Department is continuing its commitment to the 
achievement of the requirements in relation to Sustainability.  The roll out of 
Pro Contract procurement solution across the authority outlined in 2.4 (b) 
above is an example of proactive activity in this area.  

 
4. Risks 
 
4.1. The Finance Department has corporate responsibility for Risk Management, 

and responsibility for monitoring the Corporate Risk Register rests with the 
Audit and Governance Committee.  This Committee considers the Corporate 
Risk Register on a quarterly basis, and was last reported on 
16 December 2009.   

 
4.2. The Corporate Risk Management policy and process is currently being 

reviewed as part of the Corporate Governance review, and a report detailing 
recommended changes to the overall Risk Management policy and strategy 
was presented to the Governance review on 22 December.   

 
5. Recommendations 
 
5.1. The Cabinet Member is asked to note the Quarter 2 position in respect of the 

portfolio’s responsibilities within the Finance and Information Services 
Departmental Service Plan.   

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



P
ri
n
t 
D
a
te
: 

S
e
ft
o
n
's
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
n
d
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 N
e
T
w
o
rk
 (
S
P
R
IN
T
) 

2
6
/1
1
/2
0
0
9
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t:
 

G
:\
C
S
U
_
D
A
T
A
\S
P
R
IN

T
\1
0
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt
s
\0
5
 A
S
P
\A
S
P
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
.r
p
t 

P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

A
u
th
o
r:
 

F
ile

 p
a
th
: 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 31



C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

P
a
g
e
 2
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 32



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A
P
-0
0
1
 :
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
tu
a
l 
C
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
ts
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
1
.1
 :
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ile

 A
p
ri
l 
In
v
o
ic
e
s
 &
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 

o
f 
W
o
rk
 (
P
C
’s
, 
P
ri
n
te
rs
, 
P
ro
je
c
t 
D
a
y
s
 &
 T
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
) 

1
5
-A

p
r-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
1
.2
 :
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ile

 M
a
y
 I
n
v
o
ic
e
s
 &
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 

W
o
rk
 (
P
C
’s
, 
P
ri
n
te
rs
, 
P
ro
je
c
t 
D
a
y
s
 &
 T
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
) 

1
5
-M

a
y
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
1
.3
 :
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ile

 J
u
n
e
 I
n
v
o
ic
e
s
 &
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 

o
f 
W
o
rk
 (
P
C
’s
, 
P
ri
n
te
rs
, 
P
ro
je
c
t 
D
a
y
s
 &
 T
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
) 

1
5
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
1
.4
 :
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ile

 J
u
ly
 I
n
v
o
ic
e
s
 &
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 

W
o
rk
 (
P
C
’s
, 
P
ri
n
te
rs
, 
P
ro
je
c
t 
D
a
y
s
 &
 T
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
) 

1
5
-J
u
l-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
1
.5
 :
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ile

 A
u
g
u
s
t 
In
v
o
ic
e
s
 &
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
W
o
rk
 (
P
C
’s
, 
P
ri
n
te
rs
, 
P
ro
je
c
t 
D
a
y
s
 &
 

T
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
) 

1
4
-A

p
r-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
1
.6
 :
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ile

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
In
v
o
ic
e
s
 &
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
W
o
rk
 (
P
C
’s
, 
P
ri
n
te
rs
, 
P
ro
je
c
t 
D
a
y
s
 &
 

T
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
) 

0
9
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
1
.7
 :
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ile

 O
c
to
b
e
r 
In
v
o
ic
e
s
 &
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
W
o
rk
 (
P
C
’s
, 
P
ri
n
te
rs
, 
P
ro
je
c
t 
D
a
y
s
 &
 

T
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
) 

1
5
-O

c
t-
2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
1
.8
 :
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ile

 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
In
v
o
ic
e
s
 &
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
W
o
rk
 (
P
C
’s
, 
P
ri
n
te
rs
, 
P
ro
je
c
t 
D
a
y
s
 &
 

T
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
) 

1
6
-N

o
v
-2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
1
.9
 :
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ile

 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
In
v
o
ic
e
s
 &
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
W
o
rk
 (
P
C
’s
, 
P
ri
n
te
rs
, 
P
ro
je
c
t 
D
a
y
s
 &
 

T
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
) 

1
5
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
1
.1
0
 :
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ile

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 I
n
v
o
ic
e
s
 &
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
W
o
rk
 (
P
C
’s
, 
P
ri
n
te
rs
, 
P
ro
je
c
t 
D
a
y
s
 &
 

T
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
) 

1
5
-J
a
n
-2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

P
a
g
e
 3
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 33



C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
1
.1
1
 :
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ile

 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 I
n
v
o
ic
e
s
 &
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
W
o
rk
 (
P
C
’s
, 
P
ri
n
te
rs
, 
P
ro
je
c
t 
D
a
y
s
 &
 

T
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
) 

1
6
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
1
.1
2
 :
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ile

 M
a
rc
h
 I
n
v
o
ic
e
s
 &
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
W
o
rk
 (
P
C
’s
, 
P
ri
n
te
rs
, 
P
ro
je
c
t 
D
a
y
s
 &
 

T
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
) 

1
5
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

P
a
g
e
 4
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 34



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A
P
-0
0
2
 :
 R

e
c
o
rd
 &
 D
is
tr
ib
u
te
 R
e
p
o
rt
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
2
.1
 :
 R

e
c
o
rd
 &
 D

is
tr
ib
u
te
 A
p
ri
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 

F
IS
O
B
 (
C
re
a
te
 t
re
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
) 

1
8
-M

a
y
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
2
.2
 :
 R

e
c
o
rd
 &
 D

is
tr
ib
u
te
 M

a
y
 R

e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 

F
IS
O
B
 (
C
re
a
te
 t
re
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
) 

2
2
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
2
.3
 :
 R

e
c
o
rd
 &
 D

is
tr
ib
u
te
 J
u
n
e
 R

e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 

F
IS
O
B
 (
C
re
a
te
 t
re
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
) 

2
0
-J
u
l-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
2
.4
 :
 R

e
c
o
rd
 &
 D

is
tr
ib
u
te
 J
u
ly
 R

e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 

F
IS
O
B
 (
C
re
a
te
 t
re
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
) 

2
4
-A

u
g
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
2
.5
 :
 R

e
c
o
rd
 &
 D

is
tr
ib
u
te
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
R
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 

F
IS
O
B
 (
C
re
a
te
 t
re
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
) 

2
1
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
2
.6
 :
 R

e
c
o
rd
 &
 D

is
tr
ib
u
te
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
R
e
p
o
rt
s
 

to
 F
IS
O
B
 (
C
re
a
te
 t
re
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
) 

1
9
-O

c
t-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
2
.7
 :
 R

e
c
o
rd
 &
 D

is
tr
ib
u
te
 O

c
to
b
e
r 
R
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 

F
IS
O
B
 (
C
re
a
te
 t
re
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
) 

1
1
-N

o
v
-2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
2
.8
 :
 R

e
c
o
rd
 &
 D

is
tr
ib
u
te
 N

o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
R
e
p
o
rt
s
 

to
 F
IS
O
B
 (
C
re
a
te
 t
re
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
) 

1
4
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
2
.9
 :
 R

e
c
o
rd
 &
 D

is
tr
ib
u
te
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
R
e
p
o
rt
s
 

to
 F
IS
O
B
 (
C
re
a
te
 t
re
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
) 

1
8
-J
a
n
-2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
2
.1
0
 :
 R

e
c
o
rd
 &
 D

is
tr
ib
u
te
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 R

e
p
o
rt
s
 

to
 F
IS
O
B
 (
C
re
a
te
 t
re
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
) 

2
2
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
2
.1
1
 :
 R

e
c
o
rd
 &
 D

is
tr
ib
u
te
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 R

e
p
o
rt
s
 

to
 F
IS
O
B
 (
C
re
a
te
 t
re
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
) 

2
2
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
2
.1
2
 :
 R

e
c
o
rd
 &
 D

is
tr
ib
u
te
 M

a
rc
h
 R
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 

F
IS
O
B
 (
C
re
a
te
 t
re
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
) 

1
9
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
2
.1
3
 :
 R

e
c
o
rd
 &
 D

is
tr
ib
u
te
 Q

u
a
rt
e
r 
1
-E

n
d
in
g
 

J
u
n
e
 0
9
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 R

e
p
o
rt
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

P
a
g
e
 5
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 35



C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
2
.1
4
 :
 R

e
c
o
rd
 &
 D

is
tr
ib
u
te
 Q

u
a
rt
e
r 
2
–
E
n
d
in
g
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
0
9
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
2
.1
5
 :
 R

e
c
o
rd
 &
 D

is
tr
ib
u
te
 Q

u
a
rt
e
r 
3
- 
E
n
d
in
g
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
0
9
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
2
.1
6
 :
 R

e
c
o
rd
 &
 D

is
tr
ib
u
te
 Q

u
a
rt
e
r 
4
- 
E
n
d
in
g
 

M
a
rc
h
 1
0
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 R

e
p
o
rt
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

P
h
il 
B
re
e
n
 

P
a
g
e
 6
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 36



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A
P
-0
0
3
 :
 P
ro
v
id
e
 g
e
n
e
ri
c
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
3
.1
 :
 P
re
p
a
re
 a
n
d
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
f 

K
P
I 
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 (
m
o
n
th
ly
) 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

A
n
g
e
la
 E
lli
s
 

5
0
%
 C

o
m
p
le
te
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
3
.2
 :
 P
re
p
a
re
 a
n
d
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
f 

c
o
rr
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
c
e
, 
F
O
I,
 D
a
ta
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 (
m
o
n
th
ly
) 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

A
n
g
e
la
 E
lli
s
 

5
0
%
 C

o
m
p
le
te
 

F
IS
-C

M
-A

P
-0
0
3
.3
 :
 V
a
lid

a
te
 s
a
m
p
le
 c
h
e
c
k
 o
f 
re
p
o
rt
s
 

s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 b
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
(m

o
n
th
ly
) 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

A
n
g
e
la
 E
lli
s
 

5
0
%
 C

o
m
p
le
te
 

P
a
g
e
 7
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 37



C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

P
a
g
e
 8
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 38



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A
P
-0
0
1
 :
 W

e
b
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
1
.1
 :
 U

p
d
a
te
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

1
5
-A

p
r-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
1
.2
 :
 A
tt
a
in
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
t 
C
C
E
B
 

3
1
-A

u
g
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

C
C
E
B
 t
o
 b
e
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
1
.3
 :
 P
u
b
lis
h
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
1
.4
 C

o
n
d
u
c
t 
E
IA
 o
n
 W

e
b
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

P
a
g
e
 9
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 39



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A
P
-0
0
2
 :
 R

e
g
is
te
r 
o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
w
e
b
s
it
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
2
.1
 :
 U

p
d
a
te
 r
e
g
is
te
r 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
2
.2
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 l
a
te
s
t 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 w
e
b
s
it
e
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
2
.3
 :
 C
h
a
ir
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
t 
d
a
ta
 o
w
n
e
rs
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
2
.4
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 N
o
rt
h
 W

e
s
t 

Im
m
e
d
ia
c
y
 g
ro
u
p
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
2
.5
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 o
n
 W

e
b
s
it
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

P
a
g
e
 1
0
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 40



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A
P
-0
0
3
 :
 R

e
v
ie
w
 c
o
n
te
n
t 
a
n
d
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
lit
y
 o
f 
w
e
b
s
it
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

P
a
g
e
 1
1
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 41



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A
P
-0
0
4
 :
 R

e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
k
io
s
k
 u
s
a
g
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
4
.1
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 k
io
s
k
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

3
0
-A

p
r-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
4
.2
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 k
io
s
k
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

2
9
-M

a
y
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
4
.3
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 k
io
s
k
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

2
6
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

L
S
C
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 3
.3
2
%
 

H
A
C
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
1
.1
1
%
 

O
rr
e
ll 
L
ib
ra
ry
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
0
.3
7
%
 

L
it
h
e
rl
a
n
d
 L
ib
ra
ry
  
  
  
  
  
0
.6
6
%
 

S
o
u
th
p
o
rt
 O

S
S
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
2
.1
6
%
 

B
o
o
tl
e
 O

S
S
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
1
.6
0
%
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
4
.4
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 k
io
s
k
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

3
1
-J
u
l-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
4
.5
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 k
io
s
k
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

3
1
-A

u
g
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
4
.6
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 k
io
s
k
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
4
.7
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 k
io
s
k
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

3
0
-O

c
t-
2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
4
.8
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 k
io
s
k
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

3
0
-N

o
v
-2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
4
.9
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 k
io
s
k
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
4
.1
0
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 k
io
s
k
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

2
9
-J
a
n
-2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
4
.1
1
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 k
io
s
k
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

2
6
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
4
.1
2
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 k
io
s
k
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

P
a
g
e
 1
2
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 42



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A
P
-0
0
5
 :
 C

o
n
d
u
c
t 
s
tu
d
y
 i
n
to
 s
o
c
ia
l 
n
e
tw
o
rk
in
g
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
5
.1
 :
 M

o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 A
c
ti
v
e
 S
e
ft
o
n
 

F
a
c
e
b
o
o
k
 a
d
v
e
rt
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
5
.2
 :
 C

o
n
ta
c
t 
o
th
e
r 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l 
n
e
tw

o
rk
in
g
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
5
.3
 :
 D

ra
w
 u
p
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 s
o
c
ia
l 
n
e
tw
o
rk
in
g
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
5
.4
 :
 P
re
s
e
n
t 
to
 C

C
E
B
 

3
0
-O

c
t-
2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

P
a
g
e
 1
3
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 43



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A
P
-0
0
6
 :
 C

o
n
d
u
c
t 
s
tu
d
y
 i
n
to
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
6
.1
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 M

y
s
p
a
c
e
2
b
re
a
th
e
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

3
1
-J
u
l-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
6
.2
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 M

y
s
p
a
c
e
2
b
re
a
th
e
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
6
.3
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 S
o
u
th
p
o
rt
 C
y
c
le
 T
o
w
n
 

te
m
p
la
te
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

3
1
-J
u
l-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
6
.4
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 S
o
u
th
p
o
rt
 C
y
c
le
 T
o
w
n
 

te
m
p
la
te
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
6
.5
 :
 A
s
s
e
s
s
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
te
m
p
la
te
s
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
6
.6
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
re
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 

S
o
u
th
p
o
rt
 E
c
o
 C
e
n
tr
e
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 

3
1
-J
u
l-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
6
.7
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
re
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 

S
o
u
th
p
o
rt
 E
c
o
 C
e
n
tr
e
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
6
.8
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 

te
m
p
la
te
/s
it
e
 f
o
r 
S
a
fe
r 
S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

3
1
-J
u
l-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
6
.9
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 

te
m
p
la
te
/s
it
e
 f
o
r 
S
a
fe
r 
S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
6
.1
0
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
6
.1
1
 :
 C

o
m
p
le
te
 s
tu
d
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
m
o
v
in
g
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
6
.1
2
 :
 P
re
s
e
n
t 
to
 C
C
E
B
 

3
0
-O

c
t-
2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

P
a
g
e
 1
4
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 44



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A
P
-0
0
7
 :
 C

o
n
d
u
c
t 
s
tu
d
y
 i
n
to
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
7
.1
 :
 A
s
s
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

in
tr
a
n
e
t 
s
it
e
, 

3
1
-J
u
l-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
7
.2
 :
 A
s
s
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 u
s
a
g
e
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

in
tr
a
n
e
t 
s
it
e
. 

3
1
-A

u
g
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
7
.3
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 w
it
h
 d
a
ta
 o
w
n
e
rs
 

fo
r 
th
e
ir
 i
d
e
a
s
 o
n
 i
n
tr
a
n
e
t 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

3
1
-A

u
g
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
7
.4
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
in
tr
a
n
e
t 

d
e
s
ig
n
s
 f
ro
m
 I
m
m
e
d
ia
c
y
 u
s
e
r 
g
ro
u
p
 

3
1
-A

u
g
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
7
.5
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

3
1
-A

u
g
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
7
.6
 :
 C

o
m
p
le
te
 s
tu
d
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
m
o
v
in
g
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
e
lis
s
a
 L
e
v
it
t 

P
a
g
e
 1
5
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 45



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A
P
-0
0
8
 :
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 %

 o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 w
h
o
 a
re
 f
a
ir
ly
 o
r 
v
e
ry
 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 S
e
ft
o
n
 P
lu
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
8
.1
  
: 
S
e
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
, 
a
n
d
 f
in
a
lis
e
 P
I 

d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
C
S
1
 a
n
d
 C

S
2
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
8
.2
 :
 S
e
t 
u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
o
 a
g
re
e
 a
n
d
 s
e
t 
P
I 

ta
rg
e
ts
 f
o
r 
C
S
1
 a
n
d
 C

S
2
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
8
.3
 :
 A
g
re
e
 c
o
n
te
n
t 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

C
o
n
ta
c
te
d
 M

o
tt
 M

a
c
D
o
n
a
ld
 t
o
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
a
lly
 b
o
o
k
 t
im

e
 s
lo
t 

fi
rs
t 
tw

o
 w

e
e
k
s
 i
n
 O

c
to
b
e
r.
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
o
 b
e
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 e
a
rl
y
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
to
 o
b
ta
in
 c
o
s
ts
 

a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
 c
o
n
te
n
t.
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
8
.4
 :
 C

o
n
d
u
c
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
8
.5
 :
 P
u
b
lis
h
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 f
ro
m
 s
u
rv
e
y
, 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
8
.6
 :
 P
u
b
lis
h
 P
I 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

P
a
g
e
 1
6
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 46



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A
P
-0
0
9
 :
 R

e
d
u
c
in
g
 a
v
o
id
a
b
le
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
9
.1
 :
 F
o
llo

w
in
g
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
, 
e
n
s
u
re
 

d
a
ta
 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

K
u
rt
 G

o
ld
m
a
n
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
9
.2
 :
 S
e
t 
d
a
ta
 s
a
m
p
le
 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
a
l 
d
a
te
 s
e
t 
fo
r 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
to
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
9
.3
 :
 S
e
t 
u
p
 w

o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
9
.4
 :
 E
n
s
u
re
 d
a
ta
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

K
u
rt
 G

o
ld
m
a
n
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
9
.5
 :
 P
u
b
lis
h
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 d
a
ta
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
0
9
.6
 :
 E
n
s
u
re
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 w

h
e
re
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 a
n
d
 a
re
 h
e
ld
 u
n
d
e
r 
N
I1
4
 w

it
h
in
 

S
R
IN

T
 

P
a
g
e
 1
7
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 47



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A
P
-0
1
0
 :
 D

e
v
e
lo
p
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 w
o
rk
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 

c
h
a
n
n
e
ls
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 r
e
g
a
rd
le
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

K
u
rt
 G

o
ld
m
a
n
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
0
.1
 :
 A
tt
e
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 f
o
r 

th
is
 y
e
a
r 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
0
.2
 :
 E
n
s
u
re
 a
ll 
p
o
lic
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
re
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

R
u
th
 A
u
s
ti
n
 V
in
c
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
h
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 

g
ro
u
p
s
. 
H
a
te
 c
ri
m
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ro
m
o
te
d
 m

o
re
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
. 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
0
.3
 :
 E
n
s
u
re
 E
IA
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 i
s
 a
d
h
e
re
d
 t
o
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

K
u
rt
 G

o
ld
m
a
n
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 E
IA
 r
e
v
ie
w
. 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
0
.4
 :
 M

e
e
t 
th
e
 D

ir
e
c
to
ra
te
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 

p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
C
e
n
tr
ic
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

3
1
-O

c
t-
2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

K
u
rt
 G

o
ld
m
a
n
 

F
o
llo

w
in
g
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 A
n
d
y
 W

o
o
d
s
, 
a
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
 

e
v
e
n
t 
w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 O

c
to
b
e
r,
 w

it
h
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 a
b
ili
ty
 n
e
tw

o
rk
. 

P
a
g
e
 1
8
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 48



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A
P
-0
1
1
 :
 D

e
v
e
lo
p
 s
ta
ff
 s
k
ill
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
1
.1
 :
 M

a
in
ta
in
 s
k
ill
s
 m

a
tr
ix
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

K
u
rt
 G

o
ld
m
a
n
 

S
k
ill
s
 a
u
d
it
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 s
k
ill
s
 m

a
tr
ix
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
1
.2
 :
 M

a
in
ta
in
 s
ta
ff
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

K
u
rt
 G

o
ld
m
a
n
 

In
c
lu
d
e
s
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
s
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 f
ro
m
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

fo
r 
C
IP
 A
N
1
6
. 
A
lig
n
in
g
 s
ta
ff
 w
o
rk
 p
a
tt
e
rn
s
 t
o
 c
a
ll 
a
rr
iv
a
l 

p
a
tt
e
rn
s
 

P
a
g
e
 1
9
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 49



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A
P
-0
1
2
 :
 D

e
v
e
lo
p
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 S
e
ft
o
n
 P
lu
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

K
u
rt
 G

o
ld
m
a
n
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
2
.1
 :
 A
tt
e
n
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

a
re
a
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

K
u
rt
 G

o
ld
m
a
n
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
2
.2
 :
 A
s
s
e
s
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 f
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

K
u
rt
 G

o
ld
m
a
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
t 
e
a
c
h
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
2
.3
 :
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 f
ro
m
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

K
u
rt
 G

o
ld
m
a
n
 

F
IS
-C

A
-A

P
-0
1
2
.4
 :
 D

e
v
e
lo
p
 Q

u
a
lit
y
 R

e
p
o
rt
in
g
 M

e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 -
 

C
IP
 A
N
1
0
 

3
1
-A

u
g
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

P
ro
to
c
o
l 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
ra
ft
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 W
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 t
o
 b
e
 s
e
t 
u
p
 w

it
h
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

F
u
ll 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 a
n
d
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
it
 

F
u
ll 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 f
o
llo
w
 p
ro
to
c
o
l 

A
g
re
e
d
 m

e
c
h
a
n
s
im

 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 a
n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

P
a
g
e
 2
0
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 50



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A
P
-0
1
3
 :
 D

e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

K
u
rt
 G

o
ld
m
a
n
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
3
.1
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 K
P
I 
m
o
n
th
ly
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

K
u
rt
 G

o
ld
m
a
n
 

A
ll 
K
P
I 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
3
.2
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 P
Is
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

K
u
rt
 G

o
ld
m
a
n
 

T
w
o
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
K
P
I 
n
o
w
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
3
.3
 :
 R

e
v
ie
w
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

K
u
rt
 G

o
ld
m
a
n
 

P
a
g
e
 2
1
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 51



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A
P
-0
1
4
 :
 E
x
p
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 S
e
ft
o
n
 

P
lu
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
4
.1
 :
 A
g
re
e
 a
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
a
k
e
 o
n
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 

3
0
-A

p
r-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
4
.2
 :
 A
g
re
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
d
a
y
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

F
ir
s
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 b
e
 m

o
v
e
d
 i
n
to
 S
e
ft
o
n
 P
lu
s
 C

o
n
ta
c
t 
C
e
n
tr
e
 

w
ill
 b
e
 S
p
la
s
h
W
o
rl
d
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
ti
m
e
 a
g
re
e
d
. 

 N
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
d
a
y
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 y
e
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
4
.3
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
a
k
e
 o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 a
g
re
e
d
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

C
o
n
ta
c
tP
o
in
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 n
o
w
 f
u
lly
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
4
.4
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
a
k
e
 o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 a
g
re
e
d
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

S
p
la
s
h
W
o
rl
d
 c
a
lls
 n
o
w
 b
e
in
g
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 C

o
n
ta
c
t 
C
e
n
tr
e
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 o
ff
ic
e
 h
o
u
rs
 (
8
.0
0
 a
m
 t
o
 1
8
.0
0
 p
m
) 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
4
.5
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
a
k
e
 o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 a
g
re
e
d
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
4
.6
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
a
k
e
 o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 a
g
re
e
d
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

P
a
g
e
 2
2
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 52



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A
P
-0
1
5
 :
 C

u
s
to
m
e
r 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
5
.1
 :
 S
e
t 
o
u
t 
d
ra
ft
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
1
-M

a
y
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
5
.2
 :
 O

b
ta
in
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
fo
r 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 w

it
h
 J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 
fo
r 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
a
n
d
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
 

 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
h
a
re
d
 w

it
h
 M

a
rg
a
re
t 
C
a
rn
e
y
. 

A
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 p
la
n
 w

ill
 b
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 b
y
 3
1
.1
2
.0
9
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
5
.3
 :
 C

o
n
s
id
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

D
e
la
y
e
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
5
.4
 :
 o
b
ta
in
 m

e
m
b
e
r 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
fo
r 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
1
-O

c
t-
2
0
0
9
 

D
e
la
y
e
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
5
.5
 :
 C

o
n
d
u
c
t 
E
IA
 o
n
 C

u
s
to
m
e
r 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
0
-O

c
t-
2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
5
.6
 :
 P
u
b
lis
h
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
0
-N

o
v
-2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

P
a
g
e
 2
3
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 53



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A
P
-0
1
6
 :
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t/
re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
6
.1
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
C
S
 K
P
I 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 

A
p
ri
l 
- 
J
u
n
e
, 
a
ll 
K
P
Is
 m

e
t 
ta
rg
e
t 

J
u
ly
 -
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r,
 a
ll 
K
P
Is
 m

e
t 
ta
rg
e
t 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
6
.2
 :
 R

e
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
rg
re
s
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
C
S
 C

IP
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 

C
IP
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
re
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
n
g
, 
s
o
m
e
 s
lip

p
a
g
e
 m

a
y
 b
e
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 d
u
e
 t
o
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 i
n
 f
ir
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
o
f 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
6
.3
 :
 U

p
d
a
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 o
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 

R
e
g
u
la
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
t 
u
p
 w

it
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
s
 t
o
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

A
n
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
/p
ro
je
c
ts
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
a
re
 r
a
is
e
d
 a
t 
C
C
E
B
 

 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

N
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 m

a
d
e
, 
p
e
n
d
in
g
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

a
p
p
ro
v
a
l,
 w

ill
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 i
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
6
.4
 :
 R

e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 

T
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
H
R
 a
n
d
 P
a
y
ro
ll 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 

A
n
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 b
u
y
 i
n
 f
ro
m
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
 s
ta
ff
 a
re
 d
e
a
lt
 

w
it
h
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
rr
a
n
g
in
g
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 w

o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 

 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

2
 w

o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 h
e
ld
 t
o
 f
in
d
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 

b
y
 f
e
e
d
e
r 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 

P
a
g
e
 2
4
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 54



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A
P
-0
1
7
 :
 N

I1
4
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
7
.1
 :
 N

I1
4
 w

o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

A
rr
a
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
ir
 w

o
rk
in
g
 g
o
u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

 N
e
x
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
7
.2
 :
 M

o
n
it
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 f
o
u
n
d
 a
s
 u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 u
n
d
e
r 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 N

I1
4
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r.
 

P
la
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w

ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
t 
n
e
x
t 
N
I1
4
 w

o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
. 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
7
.3
 :
 D

a
ta
 c
a
p
tu
ri
n
g
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

D
u
e
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
 

F
IS
-C

S
-A

P
-0
1
7
.4
 :
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
a
n
e
t 
B
a
rr
y
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
ta
rg
e
t 
is
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 o
n
 a
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 

b
a
s
is
. 

P
a
g
e
 2
5
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 55



In
d
ic
a
to
r 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
 

to
 b
e
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
?
 

 

 
P
re
fe
rr
e
d
  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

F
re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 

o
f 

c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 

 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

A
c
tu
a
l 

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 Q
3
 

E
s
ti
m
a
te
 

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 Q
3
 

A
c
tu
a
l  

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

T
a
rg
e
t  

 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

P
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
 

N
I 
0
1
4
 

A
v
o
id
a
b
le
 c
o
n
ta
c
t:
 T
h
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r,
 o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
c
o
n
ta
c
ts
 p
e
r 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
re
q
u
e
s
t 

N
o
 D
a
ta
 

L
o
w
e
r 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

1
1
.7
5
%
 

P
a
g
e
 2
6
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 56



F
in
a
n
c
e
 T
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 C
li
e
n
t 

P
a
g
e
 2
7
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 57



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-T
S
-A
P
-0
0
1
 :
 D

e
liv
e
r 
&
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 R
a
te
 C

o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 F
in
n
ig
a
n
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
1
.1
 A
d
m
in
is
te
r 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 R
a
te
 C

o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
 K
P
I)
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 F
in
n
ig
a
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 s
e
t 
e
n
d
 o
f 
J
u
ly
 -
 d
a
ta
 b
e
in
g
 c
o
lla

te
d
 &
 f
ro
m
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 e
m
p
ty
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

ra
te
s
 &
 D

o
c
k
s
 b
ill
in
g
. 
 

 T
a
rg
e
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
t 
- 
re
v
is
e
d
 K
P
I 
in
 p
la
c
e
 &
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 -
 

1
5
.1
0
.0
9
. 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
1
.2
  
A
d
m
in
is
te
r 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 R
a
te
 C

o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
 K
P
I)
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 F
in
n
ig
a
n
 

R
e
v
is
e
d
 K
P
I 
- 
a
lt
e
re
d
 t
o
 3
 &
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 D

o
c
k
s
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

s
e
p
a
ra
te
 K
P
I.
 

 T
a
rg
e
t 
m
e
t 
fo
r 
th
is
 p
e
ri
o
d
. 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
1
.3
  
A
d
m
in
is
te
r 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 R
a
te
 C

o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
 K
P
I)
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 F
in
n
ig
a
n
 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
1
.4
  
 A
d
m
in
is
te
r 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 R
a
te
 C

o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
 K
P
I)
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 F
in
n
ig
a
n
 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
1
.5
  
 A
c
ti
o
n
 I
n
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 R
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 F
in
n
ig
a
n
 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
1
.6
  
 P
re
p
a
re
 f
o
r 
P
e
ri
c
le
s
 M

ig
ra
ti
o
n
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 F
in
n
ig
a
n
 

T
a
rg
e
ts
 &
 m

ile
s
to
n
e
s
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
a
g
re
e
d
 -
 i
n
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 

p
h
a
s
e
. 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
1
.7
  
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 C

IP
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 Y
e
a
r 
1
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 F
in
n
ig
a
n
 

C
IP
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 -
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 b
y
 C

u
s
to
m
e
r 
C
e
n
tr
ic
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 
re
v
ie
w
 

d
a
te
 2
2
.0
7
.0
9
 

 A
g
re
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 y
e
a
r 
1
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
1
.8
  
C
o
m
p
le
te
  
C
IP
F
A
  
B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 t
o
 

C
lie

n
t 

0
5
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 F
in
n
ig
a
n
 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
1
.9
  
C
IP
F
A
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
to
r 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 t
o
 

C
lie

n
t 

2
4
-J
u
l-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 F
in
n
ig
a
n
 

D
a
ta
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 &
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
. 
  

 C
lie

n
t 
w
ill
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
 d
a
te
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
d
e
a
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

P
a
g
e
 2
8
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 58



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-T
S
-A
P
-0
0
2
 :
  
D
e
liv
e
r 
&
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 S
u
n
d
ry
 I
n
c
o
m
e
 C
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 F
in
n
ig
a
n
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
2
.1
 :
 A
d
m
in
is
te
r 
S
u
n
d
ry
 I
n
c
o
m
e
  
C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
 K
P
I)
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

G
a
ry
 D
a
v
ie
s
 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
2
.2
 :
 A
d
m
in
is
te
r 
S
u
n
d
ry
 I
n
c
o
m
e
  
C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
 K
P
I)
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

G
a
ry
 D
a
v
ie
s
 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
2
.3
 :
 A
d
m
in
is
te
r 
S
u
n
d
ry
 I
n
c
o
m
e
  
C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
 K
P
I)
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

G
a
ry
 D
a
v
ie
s
 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
2
.4
 :
 A
d
m
in
is
te
r 
S
u
n
d
ry
 I
n
c
o
m
e
  
C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
M
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
 K
P
I)
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

G
a
ry
 D
a
v
ie
s
 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
2
.5
 :
 A
c
ti
o
n
 I
n
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 R
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

M
a
rk
 B
a
rr
y
 

W
a
it
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 I
 a
u
d
it
. 
 

 w
o
rk
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 a
re
a
s
. 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
2
.6
 :
 P
re
p
a
re
 f
o
r 
P
e
ri
c
le
s
 M

ig
ra
ti
o
n
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

M
a
rk
 B
a
rr
y
 

N
o
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 o
r 
m
ile

s
to
n
e
s
 s
e
t 
- 
in
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 s
ta
g
e
 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
2
.7
 :
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 C

IP
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 Y
e
a
r 
1
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
a
rk
 B
a
rr
y
 

R
e
q
u
ir
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 C

IP
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
ro
m
 C

u
s
to
m
e
r 
C
e
n
tr
ic
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 
re
v
ie
w
 d
a
te
 2
2
.0
7
.0
9
 

 A
rr
e
a
rs
 r
e
v
ie
w
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 w

it
h
in
 y
e
a
r 
1
. 
 N

e
x
t 
s
te
p
 w

ill
 b
e
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
la
n
. 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
2
.8
 :
 C

o
m
p
le
te
 C

IP
F
A
 B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 t
o
 C

lie
n
t 

1
5
-M

a
y
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
a
rk
 B
a
rr
y
 

D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 C

ip
F
a
 -
 n
e
x
t 
s
ta
g
e
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
to
rs
 

re
p
o
rt
s
. 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
2
.9
 :
 C

IP
F
A
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
to
r 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 t
o
 

C
lie

n
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
a
rk
 B
a
rr
y
 

D
a
ta
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 C

lie
n
t 
- 
n
o
w
 l
o
o
k
in
g
 a
t 
b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t.
 P
a
g
e
 2
9
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 59



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-T
S
-A
P
-0
0
3
 :
 P
ro
v
id
e
 a
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
F
ra
u
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 F
in
n
ig
a
n
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
3
.1
 :
 R

e
d
u
c
e
 F
ra
u
d
 &
 e
rr
o
r 
 -
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 b
y
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 K
P
I’
s
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

P
e
te
 J
e
n
n
e
r 

 F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
3
.2
 :
 R

e
d
u
c
e
 F
ra
u
d
 &
 e
rr
o
r 
 -
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 b
y
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 K
P
I’
s
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

P
e
te
 J
e
n
n
e
r 

K
P
I 
ta
rg
e
ts
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
is
 p
e
ri
o
d
 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
3
.3
 :
 R

e
d
u
c
e
 F
ra
u
d
 &
 e
rr
o
r 
 -
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 b
y
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 K
P
I’
s
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

P
e
te
 J
e
n
n
e
r 

F
IS
-T
S
-A

P
-0
0
3
.4
 :
 R

e
d
u
c
e
 F
ra
u
d
 &
 e
rr
o
r 
 -
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 b
y
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 K
P
I’
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

P
e
te
 J
e
n
n
e
r 

P
a
g
e
 3
0
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 60



F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

P
a
g
e
 3
1
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 61



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN
M
A
N
-A
P
-0
0
1
 :
 M

o
n
th
ly
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

L
y
n
to
n
 G

re
e
n
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
1
.1
 :
 P
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m
 O

ra
c
le
 F
M
S
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

K
e
v
in
 M

c
B
la
in
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 r
u
n
 m

o
n
th
ly
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
2
.1
 :
 Q

u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

K
e
v
in
 M

c
B
la
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
2
.2
 :
 Q

u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

K
e
v
in
 M

c
B
la
in
 

S
o
m
e
 2
n
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
re
p
o
rt
s
 w

ill
 b
e
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 O

c
t/
N
o
v
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
2
.3
 :
 Q

u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

K
e
v
in
 M

c
B
la
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
2
.4
 :
 Q

u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

K
e
v
in
 M

c
B
la
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
1
.2
 :
 P
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m
 O

ra
c
le
 F
M
S
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

K
e
v
in
 M

c
B
la
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
1
.3
 :
 P
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m
 O

ra
c
le
 F
M
S
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

K
e
v
in
 M

c
B
la
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
1
.4
 :
 P
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m
 O

ra
c
le
 F
M
S
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

K
e
v
in
 M

c
B
la
in
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

%
 C
o
m
p
le
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 S
ta
tu
s
 

P
e
ri
o
d
 

 5
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

P
a
g
e
 3
2
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 62



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN
M
A
N
-A
P
-0
0
2
 :
 M

o
n
th
ly
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

L
y
n
to
n
 G

re
e
n
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
2
.1
 :
 P
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m
 O

ra
c
le
 F
M
S
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
2
.5
 :
 Q

u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
2
.2
 :
 P
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m
 O

ra
c
le
 F
M
S
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
2
.3
 :
 P
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m
 O

ra
c
le
 F
M
S
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
2
.4
 :
 P
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

fr
o
m
 O

ra
c
le
 F
M
S
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
2
.6
 :
 Q

u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
2
.7
 :
 Q

u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
2
.8
 :
 Q

u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

%
 C
o
m
p
le
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 S
ta
tu
s
 

P
e
ri
o
d
 

 5
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

P
a
g
e
 3
3
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 63



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN
M
A
N
-A
P
-0
0
3
 :
 C
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 

0
1
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

L
y
n
to
n
 G

re
e
n
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
3
.1
 :
 P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
c
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
a
ll 
le
d
g
e
rs
 

0
1
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
3
.2
 :
 P
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
p
ro
 f
o
rm

a
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

0
1
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
3
.3
 :
 P
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
re
tu
rn
s
 

0
1
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
3
.4
 :
 P
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
g
ra
n
t 
c
la
im

s
 

0
1
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
3
.5
 :
 C

o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
o
u
tt
u
rn
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
o
u
tt
u
rn
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

0
1
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

%
 C
o
m
p
le
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 S
ta
tu
s
 

P
e
ri
o
d
 

 1
0
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

P
a
g
e
 3
4
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 64



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN
M
A
N
-A
P
-0
0
4
 :
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

L
y
n
to
n
 G

re
e
n
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
4
.1
 :
 R

e
fo
rm

a
ti
n
g
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ta
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 n
o
ti
fi
e
d
 c
a
s
h
 e
n
v
e
lo
p
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
4
.2
 :
 I
n
p
u
t 
o
f 
a
g
re
e
d
 d
e
ta
ile

d
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

in
to
 O

ra
c
le
 F
M
S
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
4
.3
 :
 C

o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
R
e
tu
rn
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

P
a
g
e
 3
5
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 65



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN
M
A
N
-A
P
-0
0
5
 :
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 P
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

L
y
n
to
n
 G

re
e
n
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
5
.1
 :
 R

e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
p
h
a
s
in
g
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
y
e
a
r’
s
 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
5
.2
 :
 P
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
n
e
w
 s
ta
rt
 c
a
p
it
a
l 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 S
A
M
G
 a
n
d
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
5
.3
 :
 E
v
a
lu
a
te
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

P
a
g
e
 3
6
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 66



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN
M
A
N
-A
P
-0
0
6
 :
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 t
o
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

L
y
n
to
n
 G

re
e
n
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
6
.1
 :
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 w

o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

a
n
d
 D

e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ta
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
6
.2
 :
 A
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
o
f 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
, 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
r 
s
p
e
c
u
la
ti
v
e
/a
s
p
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
6
.3
 :
 C

o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
R
e
tu
rn
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

M
ik
e
 M

a
rt
in
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

%
 C
o
m
p
le
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 S
ta
tu
s
 

P
e
ri
o
d
 

 5
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

P
a
g
e
 3
7
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 67



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN
M
A
N
-A
P
-0
0
7
 :
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 T
re
a
s
u
ry
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 B
a
n
k
in
g
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

L
y
n
to
n
 G

re
e
n
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
7
.1
 :
 T
re
a
s
u
ry
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
o
lic
y
 &
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 c
o
m
p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 T
M
 P
o
lic
y
 &
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
7
.2
 :
 T
re
a
s
u
ry
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
o
lic
y
 &
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 c
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o
f 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 

L
IB
ID

 7
 d
a
y
 B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 r
a
te
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
7
.3
 :
 T
re
a
s
u
ry
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
o
lic
y
 &
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

3
1
-J
u
l-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
7
.4
 :
 T
re
a
s
u
ry
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
o
lic
y
 &
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 P
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
P
o
lic
y
 &
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

2
8
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
7
.5
 :
 P
ru
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
C
o
d
e
 -
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 

C
o
d
e
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
7
.6
 :
 P
ru
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
C
o
d
e
 -
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

3
1
-J
u
l-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
7
.7
 :
 P
ru
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
C
o
d
e
 -
 P
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 

C
o
d
e
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

2
8
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

%
 C
o
m
p
le
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 S
ta
tu
s
 

P
e
ri
o
d
 

 5
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

P
a
g
e
 3
8
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 68



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN
M
A
N
-A
P
-0
0
8
 :
 P
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
M
T
F
P
 /
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 S
e
tt
in
g
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

L
y
n
to
n
 G

re
e
n
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
8
.1
 :
 M

T
F
P
 /
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
8
.2
 :
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 S
e
tt
in
g
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
0
8
.3
 :
 S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
R
e
tu
rn
s
 (
R
A
 F
o
rm

s
, 

B
R
1
) 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

P
a
g
e
 3
9
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 69



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN
M
A
N
-A
P
-0
0
9
 :
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

L
y
n
to
n
 G

re
e
n
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-0
0
9
.1
 :
 C

o
m
p
ila

ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

3
1
-J
u
l-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-0
0
9
.2
.1
 :
 R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 

3
1
-J
u
l-
2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-0
0
9
.3
.1
 :
 R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 C

a
b
in
e
t 

3
1
-J
u
l-
2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-0
0
9
.2
 :
 C

o
m
p
ila

ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

3
1
-O

c
t-
2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-0
0
9
.3
 :
 C

o
m
p
ila

ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

3
1
-J
a
n
-2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-0
0
9
.4
 :
 C

o
m
p
ila

ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

 F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-0
0
9
.2
.2
 :
 R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 

3
1
-O

c
t-
2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-0
0
9
.2
.3
 :
 R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 

3
1
-J
a
n
-2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-0
0
9
.2
.4
 :
 R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

 F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-0
0
9
.3
.2
 :
 R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

3
1
-O

c
t-
2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-0
0
9
.3
.3
 :
 R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 C

a
b
in
e
t 

3
1
-J
a
n
-2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-0
0
9
.3
.4
 :
 R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 C

a
b
in
e
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

%
 C
o
m
p
le
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 S
ta
tu
s
 

P
e
ri
o
d
 

 5
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

P
a
g
e
 4
0
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 70



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN
M
A
N
-A
P
-0
1
0
 :
 V
A
T
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

L
y
n
to
n
 G

re
e
n
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
1
0
.1
 :
 C

o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
o
n
th
ly
 r
e
tu
rn
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
1
0
.2
 :
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
P
a
rt
ia
l 
E
x
e
m
p
ti
o
n
 

p
o
s
it
io
n
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
1
0
.3
 :
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
V
A
T
 a
d
v
ic
e
 /
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

%
 C
o
m
p
le
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 S
ta
tu
s
 

P
e
ri
o
d
 

 5
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

P
a
g
e
 4
1
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 71



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN
M
A
N
-A
P
-0
1
1
 :
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 C
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

L
y
n
to
n
 G

re
e
n
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
1
1
.1
 :
 P
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
p
e
rs
 /
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
1
1
.2
 :
 P
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
D
ra
ft
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 a
n
d
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
o
r 
A
u
d
it
 &
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
1
1
.3
 :
 P
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
B
u
d
g
e
t 
O
u
tt
u
rn
 

re
p
o
rt
 t
o
 C

a
b
in
e
t 

3
1
-J
u
l-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
1
1
.4
 :
 P
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
re
tu
rn
s
 

(R
A
 F
o
rm

s
) 

3
1
-J
u
l-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

F
IS
-F
IN

M
A
N
-A

P
-0
1
1
.5
 :
 P
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
re
tu
rn
s
 

(R
A
 F
o
rm

s
) 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
e
ff
 K
e
n
a
h
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

%
 C
o
m
p
le
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 S
ta
tu
s
 

P
e
ri
o
d
 

 9
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

P
a
g
e
 4
2
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 72



IC
T
&
 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 

P
a
g
e
 4
3
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 73



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A
P
-0
0
1
 :
 C

u
s
to
m
e
r 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
1
.1
 :
 A
tt
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 b
o
a
rd
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

T
h
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 a
n
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 o
f 
th
e
 b
o
a
rd
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
is
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
1
.2
 :
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
iv
e
 p
h
a
s
e
s
 

o
f 
th
e
 C

R
M
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
je
c
t 

p
la
n
s
. 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

5
0
%
 C

o
m
p
le
te
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
1
.3
 :
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 N

o
rt
h
g
a
te
 F
ro
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 

U
p
g
ra
d
e
 t
o
 v
e
rs
io
n
 3
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

5
0
%
 C

o
m
p
le
te
 

P
a
g
e
 4
4
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 74



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A
P
-0
0
2
 :
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
2
.1
 :
 I
T
 e
le
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 a
 s
k
ill
e
d
 

p
ro
je
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
(B
o
b
 F
it
t)
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

O
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
5
0
%
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
2
.2
 :
 P
ro
v
id
e
 T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
S
ta
ff
 t
o
 a
s
s
is
t 
in
 t
h
e
 

re
m
o
v
a
l 
a
n
d
 s
e
t-
u
p
 o
f 
IT
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

O
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
5
0
%
 

P
a
g
e
 4
5
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 75



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A
P
-0
0
3
 :
 D

e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 T
im

e
s
c
a
le
 f
o
r 
Im

p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

C
o
n
n
e
c
t 

3
0
-S
e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

P
a
u
l 
E
d
w
a
rd
s
 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
3
.1
 :
 E
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 G

o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
C
o
n
n
e
c
t 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 T
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
3
.2
 :
 C
o
n
fi
rm

 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

p
re
p
a
re
 p
ro
je
c
t 
p
la
n
 

3
0
-A

p
r-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

S
u
e
 B
ri
s
c
o
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
3
.3
 :
 M

e
e
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
C
o
d
e
 o
f 

C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 j
o
in
 G

s
i 

3
0
-A

u
g
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

S
u
e
 B
ri
s
c
o
 

D
e
a
d
lin

e
 a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 3
0
/0
6
/0
9
 t
o
 3
0
/0
8
/0
9
 p
e
r 
R
ic
h
a
rd
 

R
o
s
c
o
e
. 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
3
.4
 :
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 B
u
ild

 a
n
d
 t
e
s
t 
G
C
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

S
te
v
e
 M

ill
e
r 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

%
 C
o
m
p
le
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 S
ta
tu
s
 

P
e
ri
o
d
 

 1
0
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

Is
s
u
e
s
 a
ff
e
c
ti
n
g
 c
u
rr
e
n
t/
fu
tu
re
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 &
 c
o
rr
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

P
a
g
e
 4
6
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 76



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A
P
-0
0
5
 :
 E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 N
e
w
 D
a
ta
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
5
.1
 :
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
N
e
e
d
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
5
.2
 :
 S
e
le
c
t 
S
it
e
(s
) 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
5
.3
 :
 S
e
le
c
t 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
/ 
P
a
rt
n
e
r 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
5
.4
 :
 C
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
c
e
s
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
5
.5
 :
 S
e
le
c
t 
P
a
rt
n
e
r 
/ 
A
w
a
rd
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
5
.6
 :
 C
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 b
u
ild

/c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
n
e
w
 

d
a
ta
 c
e
n
tr
e
(s
) 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
5
.7
 :
 C
o
m
p
le
te
 b
u
ild

 &
 f
it
-o
u
t 
o
f 
d
a
ta
 

c
e
n
tr
e
(s
) 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
5
.8
 :
 T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
to
 N
e
w
 S
it
e
(s
) 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

P
a
g
e
 4
7
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 77



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A
P
-0
0
6
 :
 U

p
g
ra
d
e
 D

a
ta
 N
e
tw
o
rk
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
6
.1
 :
 S
tr
u
c
tu
ra
l 
R
e
d
e
s
ig
n
 o
f 
th
e
 D
a
ta
 

N
e
tw

o
rk
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
6
.2
 :
 S
ig
n
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
it
h
 T
e
le
w
e
s
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
6
.3
 :
 R
a
ti
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
D
a
ta
 N
e
tw
o
rk
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
6
.4
 :
 R
a
ti
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
F
ir
e
w
a
ll 
a
n
d
 S
e
c
u
ri
ty
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

P
a
g
e
 4
8
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 78



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A
P
-0
0
7
 :
 U

p
g
ra
d
e
 T
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
7
.1
 :
 U
p
g
ra
d
e
 t
h
e
 E
ri
c
s
s
o
n
 M

D
1
1
0
 t
o
 M

X
-

O
n
e
 (
3
.1
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

8
0
%
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
7
.2
 :
 U
p
g
ra
d
e
 t
h
e
 A
a
s
tr
a
 M

X
-O

n
e
 t
o
 V
.4
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
7
.3
 :
 R
a
ti
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
In
te
rn
a
l 
D
a
ta
 N

e
tw

o
rk
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

P
a
g
e
 4
9
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 79



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A
P
-0
0
8
 :
 R

e
fr
e
s
h
 D
e
s
k
to
p
 P
C
 a
n
d
 L
a
p
to
p
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
8
.1
 :
 C
re
a
te
 P
C
 R

e
fr
e
s
h
 L
is
t 
fo
r 
P
h
a
s
e
 2
 

(J
u
n
e
 0
9
 –
 S
e
p
 0
9
) 

3
0
-A

p
r-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
8
.2
 :
 C
re
a
te
 P
C
 R

e
fr
e
s
h
 L
is
t 
fo
r 
P
h
a
s
e
 3
 (
O
c
t 

0
9
 –
 M

a
r 
1
0
) 

3
1
-A

u
g
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
8
.3
 :
 C
re
a
te
 P
C
 R

e
fr
e
s
h
 L
is
t 
fo
r 
P
h
a
s
e
 4
 (
A
p
r 

1
0
 –
 S
e
p
 1
0
) 

2
8
-F
e
b
-2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

P
a
g
e
 5
0
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 80



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A
P
-0
0
9
 :
 R

e
fr
e
s
h
 T
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
9
.1
 :
 R
e
fr
e
s
h
 1
0
%
 o
f 
th
e
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 v
o
lu
m
e
 p
e
r 

a
n
n
u
m
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
9
.2
 :
 C
re
a
te
 l
is
t 
o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
C
e
n
tr
e
x
 l
in
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

c
a
n
 m

o
v
e
 o
n
to
 I
n
te
rn
a
l 
T
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
n
d
 

p
re
p
a
re
 c
o
s
t 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

a
m
m
e
n
e
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 "
a
n
d
 p
re
p
a
re
 c
o
s
t 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
" 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
9
.3
 :
 P
u
b
lis
h
 p
la
n
 t
o
 c
o
n
v
e
rt
 c
e
n
tr
e
x
 l
in
e
s
 t
o
 

P
A
B
X
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
o
h
n
 M

u
rr
a
y
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 d
ig
it
a
l 
n
e
tw

o
rk
 t
o
 P
A
B
X
 i
n
 d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
9
.4
 :
 C
re
a
te
 l
is
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 h
a
n
d
s
e
ts
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 

lin
e
s
 m

o
v
e
d
 o
n
to
 I
n
te
rn
a
l 
T
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
9
.5
 :
 P
u
b
lis
h
 p
la
n
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n
 o
f 
C
e
n
tr
e
x
 

lin
e
s
 t
o
  
P
A
B
X
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 d
ig
it
a
l 
n
e
tw

o
rk
 t
o
 P
A
B
X
 i
n
 d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

P
a
g
e
 5
1
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 81



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A
P
-0
1
0
 :
 P
ri
n
te
r 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
1
0
.1
 :
 A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 d
a
ta
 f
ro
m
 a
 p
ri
n
t 
a
u
d
it
 w

it
h
 

3
rd
 p
a
rt
y
 c
h
o
s
e
n
 s
u
p
p
lie

r 
3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
1
0
.2
 :
 D

e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 P
ri
n
te
r 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
1
0
.3
 :
 O

rd
e
r 
C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
m
o
d
e
l 
fo
r 
p
ri
n
te
rs
 

a
n
d
 M

D
F
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
0
1
0
.4
 :
 D

e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 P
ri
n
te
r 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 (
m
a
n
a
g
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
) 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

D
a
te
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
. 
 P
ro
je
c
t 
is
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
s
p
e
c
t.
 

P
a
g
e
 5
2
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 82



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A
P
-0
1
1
 :
 R

e
fr
e
s
h
 S
e
rv
e
r 
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
1
.1
 :
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
A
N
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
1
.2
 :
 P
la
n
 S
e
rv
e
r 
re
fr
e
s
h
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
1
.3
 :
 E
x
p
a
n
d
 v
ir
tu
a
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
m
e
n
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

J
a
n
 W

e
m
m
e
l 

P
a
g
e
 5
3
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 83



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A
P
-0
1
2
 :
 M

ig
ra
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 P
e
ri
c
le
s
 t
o
 n
e
w
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 &
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
2
.1
 :
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 n
e
w
 s
y
s
te
m
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 h
a
s
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
2
.2
 :
 I
n
it
ia
te
 P
ro
je
c
t 
P
la
n
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
2
.3
 :
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
n
e
w
 s
y
s
te
m
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
2
.4
 :
 M

ig
ra
te
 d
a
ta
 t
o
 n
e
w
 s
y
s
te
m
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
2
.5
 :
 T
e
s
t 
n
e
w
 s
y
s
te
m
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

P
a
g
e
 5
4
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 84



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A
P
-0
1
3
 :
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
o
n
ta
c
tP
o
in
t 
fo
r 
C
h
ild

re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

P
a
g
e
 5
5
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 85



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A
P
-0
1
4
 :
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 I
C
T
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
E
le
c
te
d
 M

e
m
b
e
rs
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
4
.1
 :
 R
e
v
ie
w
 k
it
 u
s
e
d
 b
y
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
4
.2
 :
 R
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 w

ir
e
le
s
s
 c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 f
o
r 
n
o
n
-

C
o
u
n
c
il 
e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

P
a
g
e
 5
6
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 86



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A
P
-0
1
6
 :
 M

ig
ra
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 G

ro
u
p
W
is
e
 t
o
 M

ic
ro
s
o
ft
 E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
6
.1
 :
 C
o
m
p
le
te
 G

ro
u
p
W
is
e
 m

a
ilb

o
x
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

e
x
e
rc
is
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

1
0
%
 C

o
m
p
le
te
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
6
.2
 :
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
M
ic
ro
s
o
ft
 E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

L
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
 T
h
is
 t
a
s
k
 i
s
 

d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 d
a
ta
 C

e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 S
t 

P
e
te
r'
s
 H

o
u
s
e
 w

h
ic
h
 i
s
 i
n
 t
u
rn
 d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 S
c
o
tt
is
h
 

P
o
w
e
r 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
p
o
w
e
r 
to
 t
h
e
 e
le
c
tr
ic
a
l 
s
u
b
-

s
ta
ti
o
n
. 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
6
.3
 :
 M

ig
ra
te
 G

ro
u
p
W
is
e
 m

a
ilb

o
x
e
s
 t
o
 

E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

L
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
 L
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
 T
h
is
 t
a
s
k
 i
s
 d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

n
e
w
 d
a
ta
 C

e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 S
t 
P
e
te
r'
s
 H

o
u
s
e
 w

h
ic
h
 i
s
 i
n
 t
u
rn
 

d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 S
c
o
tt
is
h
 P
o
w
e
r 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
p
o
w
e
r 
to
 

th
e
 e
le
c
tr
ic
a
l 
s
u
b
-s
ta
ti
o
n
. 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
6
.4
 :
 T
e
s
t 
n
e
w
 E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 m

a
ilb

o
x
e
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

L
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
 L
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
 T
h
is
 t
a
s
k
 i
s
 d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

n
e
w
 d
a
ta
 C

e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 S
t 
P
e
te
r'
s
 H

o
u
s
e
 w

h
ic
h
 i
s
 i
n
 t
u
rn
 

d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 S
c
o
tt
is
h
 P
o
w
e
r 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
p
o
w
e
r 
to
 

th
e
 e
le
c
tr
ic
a
l 
s
u
b
-s
ta
ti
o
n
. 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
6
.5
 :
 S
ig
n
-o
ff
 o
f 
n
e
w
 s
y
s
te
m
 b
y
 C

lie
n
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

L
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
 L
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
 T
h
is
 t
a
s
k
 i
s
 d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

n
e
w
 d
a
ta
 C

e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 S
t 
P
e
te
r'
s
 H

o
u
s
e
 w

h
ic
h
 i
s
 i
n
 t
u
rn
 

d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 S
c
o
tt
is
h
 P
o
w
e
r 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
p
o
w
e
r 
to
 

th
e
 e
le
c
tr
ic
a
l 
s
u
b
-s
ta
ti
o
n
. 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
6
.6
 :
 T
ra
in
 u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
n
e
w
 s
y
s
te
m
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

L
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
 L
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
 T
h
is
 t
a
s
k
 i
s
 d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

n
e
w
 d
a
ta
 C

e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 S
t 
P
e
te
r'
s
 H

o
u
s
e
 w

h
ic
h
 i
s
 i
n
 t
u
rn
 

d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 S
c
o
tt
is
h
 P
o
w
e
r 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
p
o
w
e
r 
to
 

th
e
 e
le
c
tr
ic
a
l 
s
u
b
-s
ta
ti
o
n
. 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
6
.7
 :
 N
e
w
 s
y
s
te
m
 g
o
-l
iv
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

D
e
la
y
e
d
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

T
h
is
 t
a
s
k
 i
s
 d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 d
a
ta
 C

e
n
tr
e
 

in
 S
t 
P
e
te
r'
s
 H

o
u
s
e
 w

h
ic
h
 i
s
 i
n
 t
u
rn
 d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 S
c
o
tt
is
h
 

P
o
w
e
r 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
p
o
w
e
r 
to
 t
h
e
 e
le
c
tr
ic
a
l 
s
u
b
-

s
ta
ti
o
n
. 

P
a
g
e
 5
7
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 87



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A
P
-0
1
7
 :
 M

ig
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 S
Q
L
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
7
.1
 :
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 A
c
c
e
s
s
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

m
ig
ra
te
d
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

1
5
%
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
7
.2
 :
 A
g
re
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 s
y
s
te
m
 o
w
n
e
r 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
id
e
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 

d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
s
 i
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
. 
 O

n
c
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
, 
e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
. 
(S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'B
ri
e
n
) 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
7
.3
 :
 D
e
s
ig
n
 m

ig
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
a
c
h
 s
y
s
te
m
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
id
e
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 

d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
s
 i
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
. 
 O

n
c
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
, 
e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
. 
(S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'B
ri
e
n
) 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
7
.4
 :
 C
o
m
p
le
te
 m

ig
ra
ti
o
n
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
id
e
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 

d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
s
 i
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
. 
 O

n
c
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
, 
e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
. 
(S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'B
ri
e
n
) 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
7
.5
 :
 T
e
s
t 
n
e
w
 S
Q
L
 v
e
rs
io
n
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
id
e
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 

d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
s
 i
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
. 
 O

n
c
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
, 
e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
. 
(S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'B
ri
e
n
) 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
7
.6
 :
 S
y
s
te
m
 o
w
n
e
r 
s
ig
n
-o
ff
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
id
e
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 

d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
s
 i
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
. 
 O

n
c
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
, 
e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
. 
(S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'B
ri
e
n
) 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
7
.7
 :
 S
Q
L
 v
e
rs
io
n
 g
o
-l
iv
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

N
o
t 
S
ta
rt
e
d
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
id
e
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 

d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
s
 i
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
. 
 O

n
c
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
, 
e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
. 
(S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'B
ri
e
n
) 

P
a
g
e
 5
8
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 88



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A
P
-0
1
8
 :
 M

ig
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
A
S
P
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 N
E
T
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
8
.1
 :
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 A
S
P
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 b
e
 m

ig
ra
te
d
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
8
.2
 :
 A
g
re
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 s
y
s
te
m
 o
w
n
e
r 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

a
rv
a
to
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 m

ig
ra
ti
o
n
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 a
s
 r
o
lli
n
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
u
ti
lis
in
g
 d
o
w
n
ti
m
e
 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 w
o
rk
. 
 

(S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'B
ri
e
n
) 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
8
.3
 :
 D
e
s
ig
n
 m

ig
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
a
c
h
 s
y
s
te
m
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

a
rv
a
to
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 m

ig
ra
ti
o
n
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 a
s
 r
o
lli
n
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
u
ti
lis
in
g
 d
o
w
n
ti
m
e
 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 w
o
rk
. 
 

(S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'B
ri
e
n
) 

 F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
8
.4
 :
 C

o
m
p
le
te
 m

ig
ra
ti
o
n
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

a
rv
a
to
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 m

ig
ra
ti
o
n
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 a
s
 r
o
lli
n
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
u
ti
lis
in
g
 d
o
w
n
ti
m
e
 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 w
o
rk
. 
 

(S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'B
ri
e
n
) 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
8
.5
 :
 T
e
s
t 
n
e
w
 .
N
E
T
 v
e
rs
io
n
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

a
rv
a
to
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 m

ig
ra
ti
o
n
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 a
s
 r
o
lli
n
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
u
ti
lis
in
g
 d
o
w
n
ti
m
e
 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 w
o
rk
. 
 

(S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'B
ri
e
n
) 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
8
.6
 :
 S
y
s
te
m
 o
w
n
e
r 
s
ig
n
-o
ff
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

a
rv
a
to
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 m

ig
ra
ti
o
n
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 a
s
 r
o
lli
n
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
u
ti
lis
in
g
 d
o
w
n
ti
m
e
 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 w
o
rk
. 
 

(S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'B
ri
e
n
) 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
8
.7
 :
 N
E
T
 v
e
rs
io
n
 g
o
-l
iv
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

a
rv
a
to
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 m

ig
ra
ti
o
n
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 a
s
 r
o
lli
n
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
u
ti
lis
in
g
 d
o
w
n
ti
m
e
 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 w
o
rk
. 
 

(S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'B
ri
e
n
) 

P
a
g
e
 5
9
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 89



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A
P
-0
1
9
 :
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
C
o
n
n
e
c
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
9
.1
 :
 A
tt
a
in
 s
ig
n
-o
ff
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 
C
o
d
e
 o
f 

C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
9
.2
 :
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 G

C
S
x
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
9
.3
 :
 T
e
s
t 
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 G

C
S
x
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
9
.4
 :
 T
ra
in
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
u
s
e
rs
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

7
5
%
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
9
.5
 :
 U
p
d
a
te
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 R

is
k
 P
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

A
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 U
s
e
 P
o
lic
ie
s
 f
o
r 
G
C
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
9
.6
 :
 C
lie

n
t 
s
ig
n
-o
ff
 g
iv
e
n
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
9
.7
 :
 G

C
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
g
iv
e
n
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
1
9
.8
 :
 G

o
-l
iv
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 O

'b
ri
e
n
 

P
a
g
e
 6
0
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 90



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A
P
-0
2
0
 :
 D

e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
G
IS
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

P
a
u
l 
E
d
w
a
rd
s
 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

T
id
y
 u
p
 g
a
z
e
tt
e
e
r 

3
1
-J
u
l-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
a
n
e
 T
a
y
lo
r 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 w

o
rk
 

E
x
te
n
d
 S
p
a
c
ia
l 
D
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 

3
1
-J
u
l-
2
0
0
9
 

D
e
la
y
e
d
 

J
a
n
e
 T
a
y
lo
r 

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s
o
ft
w
a
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 b
e
in
g
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
lie

r.
 

P
a
g
e
 6
1
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 91



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A
P
-0
2
1
 :
 C

o
rp
o
ra
te
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 R
is
k
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

P
a
u
l 
E
d
w
a
rd
s
 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
1
.1
 :
 A
g
re
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 &
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

ri
s
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
1
.2
 :
 L
ia
is
e
, 
a
d
v
is
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
ll 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 o
n
 F
O
I/
D
P
A
 h
a
n
d
lin

g
. 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 R
o
s
c
o
e
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
1
.3
 :
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 C

o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 

fo
r 
F
O
I 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 R
o
s
c
o
e
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
1
.4
 :
 M

o
n
it
o
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 L
a
w
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
re
 k
e
p
t 
u
p
 t
o
 d
a
te
. 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 R
o
s
c
o
e
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
1
.5
 :
 M

a
in
ta
in
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 r
is
k
 s
it
e
 

o
n
 i
n
tr
a
n
e
t.
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 R
o
s
c
o
e
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
1
.6
 :
 S
e
t 
u
p
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 r
is
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 h
o
ld
 4
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 R
o
s
c
o
e
 

N
e
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
c
id
e
 i
f 
th
is
 g
ro
u
p
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 s
ta
n
d
a
lo
n
e
 g
ro
u
p
, 

o
r 
b
u
ilt
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 r
is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
. 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
1
.7
 :
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 a
llo

c
a
te
 a
ll 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 h
e
ld
 a
c
ro
s
s
 C

o
u
n
c
il.
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

D
e
la
y
e
d
 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 R
o
s
c
o
e
 

D
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 h
a
v
in
g
 a
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 
 S
e
e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
b
o
v
e
 (
F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
1
.6
) 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
1
.8
 :
 C
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 f
o
r 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 r
is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

D
e
la
y
e
d
 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 R
o
s
c
o
e
 

D
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 h
a
v
in
g
 a
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 
 S
e
e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
b
o
v
e
 (
F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
1
.6
) 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
1
.9
 :
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

a
n
d
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 a
b
o
v
e
. 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

D
e
la
y
e
d
 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 R
o
s
c
o
e
 

D
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 h
a
v
in
g
 a
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 
 S
e
e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
b
o
v
e
 (
F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
1
.6
) 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
1
.1
0
 :
 T
ra
c
k
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
lo
w
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

A
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 I
S
P
s
 w
h
e
re
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

D
e
la
y
e
d
 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 R
o
s
c
o
e
 

D
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 h
a
v
in
g
 a
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 
 S
e
e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
b
o
v
e
 (
F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
1
.6
) 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
1
.1
1
 :
 M

o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 r
is
k
 

is
s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
. 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 R
o
s
c
o
e
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
1
.1
2
 :
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 o
n
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 r
is
k
 r
e
la
te
d
 I
s
s
u
e
s
. 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 R
o
s
c
o
e
 

P
a
g
e
 6
2
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 92



C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
1
.1
3
 :
 A
u
d
it
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
/s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
r 
d
a
ta
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
m
p
lia

n
c
e
. 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 R
o
s
c
o
e
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
1
.1
4
 :
 L
ia
is
e
 w
it
h
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 

m
a
in
ta
in
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
p
ro
fi
le
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
in
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
re
a
s
. 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 R
o
s
c
o
e
 

P
a
g
e
 6
3
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 93



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A
P
-0
2
2
 :
 R

e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 I
C
T
 P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

P
a
u
l 
E
d
w
a
rd
s
 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
2
.1
 :
 C
h
a
ir
 G

re
a
te
r 
M
e
rs
e
y
s
id
e
 P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 G

ro
u
p
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

5
0
%
 C

o
m
p
le
te
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
2
.2
 :
 A
g
re
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 &
 P
la
n
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 h
o
ld
 u
n
ti
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
R
e
v
ie
w
 C

o
m
p
le
te
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
2
.3
 :
 R
e
v
ie
w
 &
 D

e
v
e
lo
p
 I
T
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

P
o
lic
y
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 h
o
ld
 u
n
ti
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
R
e
v
ie
w
 C

o
m
p
le
te
 

F
IS
-I
C
T
-A

P
-0
2
2
.4
 :
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 n
e
w
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

L
in
d
a
 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n
 h
o
ld
 u
n
ti
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
R
e
v
ie
w
 C

o
m
p
le
te
 

P
a
g
e
 6
4
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 94



In
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 &
 A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 

P
a
g
e
 6
5
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 95



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A
P
-0
0
1
 :
 R

e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
th
e
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 o
f 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
's
 A
llo
w
a
n
c
e
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
1
.1
 :
 E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 i
s
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 i
n
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
 f
a
c
to
rs
. 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

N
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 p
a
y
 r
is
e
s
 w

h
ic
h
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 s
e
tt
le
d
 

 In
c
re
a
s
e
 a
n
d
 b
a
c
k
 p
a
y
 i
n
 O

c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
. 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
1
.2
 :
 E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 a
re
 c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
1
.3
 :
 R
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 r
e
is
s
u
e
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 b
o
o
k
le
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
R
e
m
u
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 P
a
n
e
l 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
1
.4
 :
 P
re
p
a
re
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 b
y
 

IR
P
 a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

S
u
rv
e
y
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 d
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
 b
e
in
g
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 

P
a
g
e
 6
6
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 96



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A
P
-0
0
2
 :
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 &
 R
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 P
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
2
.1
 :
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 r
a
il 
ti
c
k
e
ts
 i
n
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 T
ra
v
e
l 
P
o
lic
y
, 
a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 t
h
is
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
n
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 1
2
/0
6
/0
9
 

In
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C

X
O
 D

ir
e
c
to
ra
te
 o
n
 a
 

tr
ia
l 
b
a
s
is
  

 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
s
e
t 
u
p
 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
b
y
 l
a
te
 O

c
to
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
2
.2
 :
 R
e
v
ie
w
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 P
e
tt
y
 C
a
s
h
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
2
.3
 :
 A
d
m
in
is
te
r 
th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 c
a
r 
lo
a
n
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 a
n
d
 c
a
lc
u
la
te
 t
a
x
a
b
le
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 f
o
r 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

In
la
n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 t
a
x
a
b
le
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
2
.4
 :
 E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
c
o
rr
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
c
e
 i
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
n
d
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
2
.5
 :
 I
n
it
ia
te
 t
e
n
d
e
r 
e
x
e
rc
is
e
 f
o
r 
s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 f
ir
m
s
 

(c
a
s
h
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
) 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 M

e
rs
e
y
s
id
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 c
o
n
s
o
rt
iu
m
 

P
a
g
e
 6
7
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 97



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A
P
-0
0
3
 :
 R

e
n
e
w
a
l 
o
f 
In
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 B
ro
k
e
r 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
3
.1
 :
 1
. 

C
o
lla

te
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 T
e
n
d
e
r 
D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

Q
1
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
3
.2
 :
 2
. 

E
v
a
lu
a
te
 T
e
n
d
e
r 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 

m
a
k
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
3
.3
 :
 3
. 

E
n
s
u
re
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
a
n
d
 

u
n
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
T
e
n
d
e
rs
 a
re
 n
o
ti
fi
e
d
 o
f 
re
s
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lis
h
 

d
e
ta
ils
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
3
.4
 :
 4
. 

E
n
s
u
re
 s
m
o
o
th
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

n
e
w
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

P
a
g
e
 6
8
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 98



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A
P
-0
0
4
 :
 R

e
n
e
w
a
l 
o
f 
th
e
 I
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 P
o
lic
ie
s
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
o
s
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 L
o
n
g
 

T
e
rm

 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
) 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
4
.1
 :
 C
o
lla

te
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

In
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 B
ro
k
e
rs
 

3
1
-J
u
l-
2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

Q
1
 R

e
fi
n
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
s
 a
n
d
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 w

it
h
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 B
ro
k
e
rs
 a
n
d
 i
n
s
u
re
rs
 2
8
th
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
4
.2
 :
 E
v
a
lu
a
te
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
n
e
w
 r
is
k
s
 w
it
h
 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
, 
a
n
d
 s
e
e
k
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
v
e
r 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
4
.3
 :
 U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
/n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 

In
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 B
ro
k
e
rs
 

3
1
-A

u
g
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
4
.4
 :
 E
v
a
lu
a
te
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

1
8
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
4
.5
 :
 P
la
c
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

2
9
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
4
.6
 :
 E
n
s
u
re
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
P
o
lic
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

P
o
lic
ie
s
 r
e
n
e
w
e
d
, 
M
o
to
r 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
. 

S
ti
ll 
a
w
a
it
in
g
 r
e
m
a
in
d
e
r 
o
f 
p
o
lic
ie
s
. 

P
a
g
e
 6
9
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 99



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A
P
-0
0
5
 :
 E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 c
la
im

s
 a
re
 h
a
n
d
le
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

L
o
s
s
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 a
re
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
. 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
5
.1
 :
 E
n
s
u
re
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
h
a
n
d
lin

g
 c
la
im

s
 

a
re
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
, 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

Q
1
 r
e
d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
la
im

s
 (
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 v
a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
t)
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
5
.2
 :
 E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
c
la
im

s
 a
re
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
5
.3
 :
 3
. 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
w
it
h
 I
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

B
ro
k
e
rs
 a
n
d
 I
n
s
u
re
rs
 o
n
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

Q
1
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 -
 3
rd
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
5
.4
 :
 A
rr
a
n
g
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 -
 b
y
 

th
e
 I
n
s
u
re
rs
’ 
R
is
k
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

Q
1
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 &
 I
S
 D

e
p
t 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
, 
a
n
d
 L
e
is
u
re
 D

e
p
t 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
d
 f
o
r 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
5
.5
 :
 M

e
e
t 
w
it
h
 D

e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 /
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
 c
la
im

s
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

Q
1
 R

e
g
u
la
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 C

a
p
it
a
 S
y
m
o
n
d
s
 a
n
d
 T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
n
 h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 c
la
im

s
. 
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 L
e
is
u
re
 a
ls
o
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
5
.6
 :
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 s
ta
ff
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

P
a
g
e
 7
0
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 100



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A
P
-0
0
6
 :
 R

e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 i
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 f
u
n
d
, 
a
n
d
 c
a
lc
u
la
te
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ta
l 

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 /
 r
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 

3
1
-M

a
y
-2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
6
.1
 :
 M

o
n
it
o
r 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
d
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 f
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
6
.2
 :
 A
n
a
ly
s
e
 t
h
e
 a
c
tu
a
ri
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 

fr
o
m
 i
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 b
ro
k
e
rs
, 
a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 

fu
tu
re
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 c
le
a
n
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 f
ig
u
re
s
 b
e
in
g
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 O

c
to
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
6
.3
 :
 D
e
te
rm

in
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
6
.4
 :
 C
a
lc
u
la
te
 i
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 r
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 a
n
d
 

a
d
v
is
e
 F
M
D
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

P
a
g
e
 7
1
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 101



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A
P
-0
0
7
 :
 T
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 D

e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ta
l 
L
e
a
d
 o
n
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
7
.1
 :
 A
tt
e
n
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 G

ro
u
p
 (
C
E
G
) 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

W
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 c
o
n
te
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 C

E
G
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

W
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 O

c
to
b
e
r 
1
3
th
 2
0
0
9
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
7
.2
 :
 A
rr
a
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o
n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 D

e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 G

ro
u
p
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

D
is
c
u
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
 a
 w

id
e
r 
g
ro
u
p
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 I
IP
 

a
n
d
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 m

a
tt
e
rs
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
7
.3
 :
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 c
o
m
p
lia

n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 P
o
lic
y
 a
g
re
e
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 w
it
h
 D
M
T
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

E
IA
 t
ra
in
in
g
 c
o
u
rs
e
 f
o
r 
D
A
S
H
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 N

o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
/ 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

F
IS
-I
&
A
-A

P
-0
0
7
.4
 :
 P
ro
m
o
te
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
n
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

V
iv
 S
w
a
le
 

C
o
u
rs
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
d
 

P
a
g
e
 7
2
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 102



P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

P
a
g
e
 7
3
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 103



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P
R
O
C
-A
P
-0
0
1
 :
 L
in
k
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
th
e
 

M
e
rs
e
y
s
id
e
 C
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
v
e
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
G
ro
u
p
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
a
n
d
 N
W
IE
P
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

3
0
-S
e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
1
.1
 :
 L
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 O

v
e
ra
ll 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

P
la
n
/S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

P
re
v
io
u
s
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
w
a
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 2
0
0
4
-2
0
0
8
. 
 

T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 w

ill
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 f
o
c
u
s
 

o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
m
p
a
c
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
a
g
e
n
d
a
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
, 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
, 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
. 
 

W
h
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 g
o
v
e
rn
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 

th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 2
0
0
9
 -
 2
0
1
1
 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
n
n
u
a
l 

re
v
ie
w
s
. 

Q
2
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 -
 f
in
a
l 
lin
k
 n
e
e
d
 s
to
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 

to
 t
h
e
 C

o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 b
e
fo
re
 i
s
s
u
in
g
  
d
o
c
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
a
n
e
t 

s
it
e
. 
 A
w
a
it
in
g
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
R
e
v
ie
w
 t
o
 

fi
n
a
lis
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
. 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
1
.2
 :
 U
p
d
a
te
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 r
o
b
u
s
tl
y
 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 K
L
O
E
/U

o
R
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

T
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 c
o
n
te
n
t 
w
ill
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 U
s
e
 

o
f 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t 
2
.1
 (
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
) 
a
n
d
 2
.3
 (
G
o
o
d
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 r
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
).
 

Q
2
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
p
d
a
te
d
. 
 A
w
a
it
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
R
e
v
ie
w
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 p
ro
c
u
rm

e
n
t.
 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
1
.3
 :
 L
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
lla

b
o
ra
ti
v
e
 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
H
u
b
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

T
h
e
 M

e
rs
e
y
s
id
e
 C

o
lla

b
o
ra
ti
v
e
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
w
a
s
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 N

o
rt
h
 W

e
s
t 
Im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 (
N
W
IE
P
) 
in
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
. 
 I
t 
h
a
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 s
o
m
e
 m

o
n
th
s
 t
o
 a
g
re
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
te
n
t.
  
N
o
w
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 

h
a
s
 h
a
p
p
e
n
e
d
 t
h
e
 S
e
ft
o
n
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

lin
k
e
d
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 M

e
rs
e
y
s
id
e
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

Q
2
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
p
d
a
te
d
. 
 A
w
a
it
in
g
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
R
e
v
ie
w
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t.
 

P
a
g
e
 7
4
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 104



C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
1
.4
 :
 L
in
k
 t
o
 N
W
IE
P
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
/P
la
n
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

T
h
e
 N

o
rt
h
 W

e
s
t 
Im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

(N
W
IE
P
) 
is
 n
o
w
 h
o
s
te
d
 b
y
 M

a
n
c
h
e
s
te
r 
C
it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.
  
S
e
ft
o
n
's
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 w

ill
 w

h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 l
in
k
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 

N
o
rt
h
 W

e
s
t 
re
g
io
n
a
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
in
 l
in
e
 w

it
h
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
. 

Q
2
 

D
o
c
u
e
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
p
d
a
te
d
. 
 A
w
a
it
in
g
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
R
e
v
ie
w
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t.
 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
1
.5
 :
 R
o
ll 
o
u
t 
u
p
d
a
te
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

F
o
llo

w
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 w

ill
 g
o
v
e
rn
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t/
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 
 I
t 

w
ill
 b
e
 r
o
lle

d
 o
u
t 
to
 k
e
y
 u
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b
e
 h
o
s
te
d
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
re
a
 o
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
a
n
e
t/
in
te
rn
e
t.
 

Q
2
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
p
d
a
te
d
. 
 A
w
a
it
in
g
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
R
e
v
ie
w
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t.
 

P
a
g
e
 7
5
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 105



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P
R
O
C
-A
P
-0
0
2
 :
 M

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 t
e
n
d
e
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
n
 b
e
h
a
lf
 o
f 
th
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 o
v
e
rs
e
e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
im

p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 M

e
rs
e
y
s
id
e
 w
id
e
 c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
v
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 s
u
p
p
ly
 o
f 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 S
ta
ff
. 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
2
.1
 :
 E
v
a
lu
a
te
 t
e
n
d
e
r 
b
id
s
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

T
e
n
d
e
r 
b
id
s
 w

e
re
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 M

a
y
/J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
. 
 

S
e
ft
o
n
's
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 t
e
a
m
 c
o
n
s
is
te
d
 o
f 
T
o
m
m
y
 C

ra
w
fo
rd
 

(C
P
U
),
 V
a
l 
J
o
n
e
s
 (
P
e
rs
o
n
n
e
l)
, 
M
a
rt
in
 M

u
rp
h
y
 (
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
),
 P
a
u
l 
C
u
n
n
in
g
h
a
m
 (
C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
a
n
d
 M

a
ri
e
 

L
a
m
b
e
rt
 (
B
S
U
).
  
F
o
u
r 
b
id
s
 w

e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
n
d
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 

e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 t
w
o
 c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
 w

e
re
 s
h
o
rt
lis
te
d
 t
o
 p
re
s
e
n
t 

s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 M

e
rs
e
y
s
id
e
 c
o
lla

b
o
ra
tr
iv
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
. 
 I
t 
is
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
s
u
p
p
lie

r 
w
ill
 b
e
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
. 

Q
2
 

T
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
a
s
 a
w
a
rd
e
d
 t
o
 a
 c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 n
a
m
e
d
 M

a
tr
ix
. 
 

S
a
v
in
g
s
 o
f 
a
ro
u
n
d
 1
0
%
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
p
e
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

g
u
a
ra
n
te
e
d
 b
y
 M

a
tr
ix
. 
 I
n
it
ia
l 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 

o
v
e
rs
e
e
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
. 
 I
t 
is
 e
n
v
is
a
g
e
d
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 

to
 e
n
a
b
le
 a
 g
o
-l
iv
e
 d
a
te
 c
ir
c
a
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
. 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
2
.2
 :
 M

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

T
h
e
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 t
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 k
e
y
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
u
s
e
rs
 a
re
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 o
f 

a
ll 
c
o
m
m
u
n
iq
u
e
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
is
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
. 
 

F
o
llo

w
in
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
w
a
rd
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
s
u
p
p
lie

r 
th
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w

ill
 b
e
 k
e
y
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 p
re
p
a
re
 t
h
e
 

a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 f
o
r 
h
a
n
d
o
v
e
r.
 

Q
2
 

T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
te
a
m
 h
a
s
 s
e
t 
u
p
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 k
e
y
 H
R
 

c
o
lle

a
g
u
e
s
. 
 H

R
 &
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
. 

P
a
g
e
 7
6
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 106



C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
2
.3
 :
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 -
 E
n
g
a
g
e
 s
e
n
io
r 

in
te
rn
a
l 
u
s
e
rs
 p
re
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

K
e
y
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
u
s
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 b
e
e
n
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

C
P
U
 a
n
d
 P
e
rs
o
n
n
e
l 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 a
 s
e
ri
e
s
 o
f 

p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 D

M
T
's
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 
 K
e
y
 u
s
e
rs
 w
ill
 

a
g
a
in
 b
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
te
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

to
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
. 

Q
2
 

In
it
ia
l 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 w

it
h
 M

a
tr
ix
 a
n
d
 w

e
re
 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
e
n
io
r 
H
R
 c
o
lle

a
g
u
e
s
. 
 I
n
it
ia
l 

in
te
tr
n
a
l 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 N

o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

to
 p
la
n
 f
o
r 
tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
. 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
2
.4
 :
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

F
o
llo

w
in
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
w
a
rd
 i
t 
is
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
S
e
ft
o
n
 w
ill
 

u
n
d
e
rg
o
 a
 p
h
a
s
e
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 
 T
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

w
ill
 b
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
s
u
p
p
lie

r.
  
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 

S
e
ft
o
n
's
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
k
e
y
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
u
s
e
rs
 

w
ill
 b
e
 k
e
y
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a
 s
e
a
m
le
s
s
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
. 

Q
2
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 N

o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 -
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
. 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
2
.5
 :
 P
o
s
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

o
n
g
o
in
g
 s
u
p
p
lie

r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

S
e
ft
o
n
 w

ill
 p
la
y
 a
n
 a
c
ti
v
e
 r
o
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t,
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
lie

r 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

w
ill
 l
ia
is
e
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 w

it
h
 k
e
y
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
S
e
ft
o
n
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 

S
e
ft
o
n
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 a
ls
o
 p
la
y
 a
 r
e
a
d
 r
o
le
 i
n
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 

Q
2
 

N
o
 s
ta
tu
s
 c
h
a
n
g
e
. 

P
a
g
e
 7
7
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 107



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P
R
O
C
-A
P
-0
0
3
 :
 L
ia
is
e
 w
it
h
 M

e
rs
e
y
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
o
 o
v
e
rs
e
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 r
o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
‘E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 i
n
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t’
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 -
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t/
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
/c
o
n
tr
a
c
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 u
n
d
e
rg
o
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 a
d
o
p
t 
th
e
 s
u
it
e
 o
f 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
3
.1
 :
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 R
o
ll 
O
u
t 
o
f 
te
n
d
e
r 
d
o
c
s
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

T
e
n
d
e
r 
d
o
c
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
o
lle

d
 

o
u
t 
to
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t/
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
3
.2
 :
 O

v
e
rs
e
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 

in
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

P
e
ri
o
d
ic
 t
ra
in
in
g
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 w

it
h
 

M
e
rs
e
y
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 s
ix
 

m
o
n
th
s
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r.
 

Q
2
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 t
o
 k
e
y
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 w

it
h
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t/
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
. 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
3
.3
 :
 M

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
te
n
t 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
v
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 C

P
U
 a
n
d
 S
e
ft
o
n
 

E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 

is
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 k
e
e
p
 a
ll 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 u
p
d
a
te
d
. 
 

R
e
c
e
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

d
o
c
u
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
tr
a
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
s
 a
 d
ir
e
c
t 

re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 

E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 B
ill
. 

Q
2
 

A
w
a
it
in
g
 p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 B
ill
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
n
y
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 S
e
ft
o
n
's
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
/p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 

P
a
g
e
 7
8
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 108



C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
3
.4
 :
 M

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

w
it
h
 M

e
rs
e
y
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

C
P
U
 h
a
s
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
e
ft
o
n
 C

o
rp
o
ra
te
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

G
ro
u
p
 w

h
ic
h
 m

e
e
ts
 e
v
e
ry
 q
u
a
rt
e
r.
  
M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
ls
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 a
n
 a
d
-h
o
c
 b
a
s
is
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 k
e
y
 S
e
ft
o
n
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 'e

q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 i
n
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t'
 a
g
e
n
d
a
. 

Q
2
 

R
e
g
u
la
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 S
e
ft
o
n
 

E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
o
 e
m
b
e
d
 t
h
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 i
n
to
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

P
a
g
e
 7
9
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 109



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P
R
O
C
-A
P
-0
0
4
 :
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
/ 
s
o
u
rc
in
g
 p
o
rt
a
l 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
4
.1
 :
 M

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

T
h
e
 i
n
it
ia
l 
o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 s
e
s
s
io
n
 t
o
o
k
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 M

a
y
 2
0
0
9
 a
n
d
 

w
a
s
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 k
e
y
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
u
s
e
rs
. 
 F
o
llo

w
in
g
 t
h
is
 C
P
U
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 R

e
g
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 S
te
p
c
le
v
e
r 
te
a
m
 h
a
v
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 

w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 f
o
r 
T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 L
e
g
a
l 

p
e
rs
o
n
n
e
l.
  
F
o
llo

w
in
g
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 p
o
rt
a
l 
b
y
 

C
P
U
 t
h
is
 c
o
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w

ill
 b
e
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

th
e
 w

id
e
r 
ro
ll 
o
u
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 
 T
h
e
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
n
 

e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 s
o
u
rc
in
g
 p
o
rt
a
l 
b
e
c
o
m
e
s
 m

a
n
d
a
to
ry
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 

o
f 
2
0
1
0
 o
n
 a
ll 
p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r 
b
o
d
ie
s
. 

 A
 C

a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
R
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 C

M
 C

o
rp
ra
te
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
a
s
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 M

a
y
 2
0
0
9
. 

 Q
2
 

C
P
U
 i
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 v
e
rg
e
 o
f 
g
o
in
g
 l
iv
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 P
ro
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 

p
o
rt
a
l.
  
F
o
llo

w
in
g
 t
h
is
 'V

e
ri
fi
e
r'
 t
ra
in
in
g
 w

ill
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 t
o
 

L
e
g
a
l 
c
o
lle

a
g
u
e
s
 b
e
fo
re
 r
o
ll-
o
u
t 
c
o
m
m
n
e
n
c
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
k
e
y
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
; 
n
a
m
e
ly
 L
e
is
u
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
it
ia
lly
. 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
4
.2
 :
 O

v
e
rs
e
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 

in
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

In
it
ia
l 
tr
a
in
in
g
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 t
o
 C

P
U
 s
ta
ff
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
A
u
g
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 b
e
y
o
n
d
. 
 F
o
llo

w
in
g
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in
 C

P
U
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 w

ill
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 

to
 k
e
y
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
u
s
e
rs
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il.
 

Q
2
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 w

ill
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 t
o
 l
e
g
a
l 
c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
. 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
4
.3
 :
 O

v
e
rs
e
e
 p
h
a
s
e
d
 r
o
ll 
o
u
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

T
h
e
 p
h
a
s
e
d
 r
o
ll 
o
u
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 w

ill
 b
e
g
in
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
im

p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in
 C

P
U
. 

Q
2
 

N
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 s
ta
tu
s
. 

P
a
g
e
 8
0
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 110



C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
4
.4
 :
 E
n
s
u
re
 c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 a
re
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 r
o
ll 
o
u
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

C
P
U
 w

ill
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 a
ll 
c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
, 
'D
u
e
 N

o
rt
h
'. 
 

T
h
is
 w

ill
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 r
is
k
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
's
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
ly
 i
m
p
a
c
te
d
 b
y
 a
n
y
 

te
e
th
in
g
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 

Q
2
 

C
P
U
 w

ill
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 'm

a
n
u
a
l' 
p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
v
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
y
 s
y
s
te
m
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 

ro
ll-
o
u
t.
 

P
a
g
e
 8
1
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 111



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P
R
O
C
-A
P
-0
0
5
 :
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
g
o
v
e
rn
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 

ta
x
i 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
a
 3
 y
e
a
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
. 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
5
.1
 :
 M

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 t
e
n
d
e
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

Q
1
 

C
P
U
 h
a
s
 w

o
rk
e
d
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 w

it
h
 S
T
U
 a
n
d
 o
v
e
rs
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 t
e
n
d
e
r 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w

h
ic
h
 w

a
s
 g
o
v
e
rn
e
d
 b
y
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 

O
ff
ic
ia
l 
J
o
u
rn
a
l 
o
f 
th
e
 E
u
ro
p
e
a
n
 U

n
io
n
 (
O
J
E
U
),
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

v
a
lu
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
. 

 A
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w

a
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b
e
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
, 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 f
le
x
ib
le
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
ta
x
i 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
p
e
n
d
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 s
ta
n
d
s
 a
t 
£
2
,2
4
0
,0
0
0
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

s
a
m
p
le
 c
o
s
ti
n
g
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 t
e
n
d
e
r 
in
d
ic
a
te
s
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w

ill
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 c
o
s
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
S
e
ft
o
n
. 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
5
.2
 :
 M

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
 

P
ro
c
e
s
s
 

3
1
-A

u
g
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

Q
1
 

C
P
U
 w

ill
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
T
U
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
a
n
y
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
a
l 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 f
o
rm

a
l 
a
w
a
rd
 o
f 
th
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
 'g

o
-l
iv
e
' d

a
te
 o
f 
1
/9
/0
9
. 

Q
2
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
e
n
t 
liv
e
 d
u
ri
n
g
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
5
.3
 :
 M

a
n
a
g
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

Q
1
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 w

it
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 

fo
rm

a
l 
a
w
a
rd
. 
 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 w

ill
 a
ls
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
im

p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
lim

e
n
ta
ry
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 t
h
e
 r
o
u
te
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
o
ft
w
a
re
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 

in
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
. 

Q
2
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 w

e
re
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
n
d
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
s
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

n
e
w
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 

s
p
e
n
d
 o
f 
c
ir
c
a
 £
2
5
0
k
 p
a
. 
 F
ro
m
 a
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
e
rs
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 t
h
is
 

w
ill
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
rs
p
e
n
d
 a
m
o
u
n
t.
 

P
a
g
e
 8
2
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 112



C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
5
.4
 :
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
fi
n
a
l 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

Q
1
 

C
P
U
 w

ill
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
T
U
 w

h
e
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
llo

w
in
g
 f
o
rm

a
l 
a
w
a
rd
 d
u
ri
n
g
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
9
. 

Q
2
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
is
 n
o
w
 l
iv
e
 a
n
d
 b
e
in
g
 u
s
e
d
 b
y
 S
T
U
. 

P
a
g
e
 8
3
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 113



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P
R
O
C
-A
P
-0
0
6
 :
 S
o
u
rc
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 s
o
ft
w
a
re
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 

c
o
o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
ll 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
6
.1
 :
 M

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 t
e
n
d
e
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

Q
1
 

In
 2
0
0
8
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
s
u
p
p
lie
rs
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 C
P
U
 

a
n
d
 S
T
U
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
ro
u
te
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
o
ft
w
a
re
 

s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
. 
 I
t 
is
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
te
n
d
e
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 (
n
o
n
 O

J
E
U
) 

w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
it
ia
te
d
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
ta
x
i 

te
n
d
e
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 S
u
c
c
e
s
fu
l 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
ro
u
te
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

s
o
ft
w
a
re
 i
s
 k
e
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 t
a
x
i 
a
n
d
 

w
id
e
r 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
ld
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 

 It
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
S
T
U
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 w

it
h
 a
rv
a
to
 

fo
r 
th
is
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 
 H

o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
is
 w

o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
ly
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a
 l
e
g
a
l 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
s
 e
a
c
h
 i
s
 

e
x
p
e
c
ti
n
g
 a
 t
e
n
d
e
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 b
e
g
in
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 

m
o
n
th
s
. 

 Q
2
 

C
P
U
 u
n
d
e
rt
o
o
k
 t
h
e
 s
o
u
rc
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 C

P
U
 a
n
d
 

te
n
d
e
r 
b
id
s
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 H

e
a
d
 o
f 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
. 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
6
.2
 :
 M

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
 

P
ro
c
e
s
s
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

Q
1
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
im

p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 c
o
m
p
lim

e
n
t 
th
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
S
T
U
's
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
 F
u
ll 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 w

ill
 b
e
 k
e
y
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 f
e
e
d
 

in
to
 t
h
e
 s
o
ft
w
a
re
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
. 
 C
P
U
 w

ill
 w

o
rk
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 w

it
h
 S
T
U
 

in
 t
h
is
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t.
 

 Q
2
 

C
P
U
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a
w
a
it
in
g
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 S
T
U
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

te
n
d
e
r 
b
id
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
h
e
a
d
 o
f 
fo
rm

a
l 
a
w
a
rd
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
to
 

th
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
s
u
p
p
lie

r.
 

P
a
g
e
 8
4
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 114



C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
6
.3
 :
 M

a
n
a
g
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

Q
2
 

B
id
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
s
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in
 S
T
U
. 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
6
.4
 :
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
6
.5
 :
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 s
o
ft
w
a
re
 

s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

P
a
g
e
 8
5
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 115



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P
R
O
C
-A
P
-0
0
7
 :
 U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 ‘
b
u
ild
in
g
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
’ 
p
ro
je
c
ts
. 

3
1
-A
u
g
-2
0
0
9
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
7
.1
 :
 M

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 s
o
u
rc
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

3
1
-A

u
g
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

s
tu
a
rt
 b
a
te
 

Q
1
 

C
P
U
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 h
e
a
v
ily
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 w

it
h
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 

in
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
S
e
ft
o
n
 6
th
 F
o
rm

 C
o
lle

g
e
, 
R
im

ro
s
e
 H

o
p
e
, 

L
it
h
e
rl
a
n
d
 H

ig
h
 a
n
d
 T
h
o
m
a
s
 G

ra
y
. 
 D

e
ta
ile

d
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 

h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 w

it
h
 p
ro
je
c
t 
te
a
m
s
 a
n
d
 t
o
 d
a
te
 a
ll 

e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 o
rd
e
re
d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 'g

o
-

liv
e
' d

a
te
s
. 

Q
2
 

A
ll 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 w

e
re
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a
h
e
a
d
 

o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 t
e
rm

 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
7
.2
 :
 U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 

3
1
-A

u
g
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

s
tu
a
rt
 b
a
te
 

Q
1
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 Q

2
. 

Q
2
 

A
ll 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 w

e
re
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
h
e
a
d
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
te
rm

 
in
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
7
.3
 :
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 

3
1
-A

u
g
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

c
h
ri
s
 m

a
g
e
e
 

Q
2
 

A
ll 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 w

e
re
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
h
e
a
d
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
te
rm

 
in
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
7
.4
 :
 L
ia
is
e
 w

it
h
 k
e
y
 u
s
e
rs
 &
 s
p
e
c
if
y
e
rs
 

3
1
-A

u
g
-2
0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

c
h
ri
s
 m

a
g
e
e
 

Q
1
 

C
P
U
 i
s
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 o
n
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
ro
je
c
t 
te
a
m
s
 a
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
s
 a
ll 
p
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 

th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w

it
h
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
ts
tr
a
in
ts
 a
n
d
 

a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
 t
o
 u
s
e
r 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

Q
2
 

A
ll 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 w

e
re
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
h
e
a
d
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 s
c
h
o
o
l 

te
rm

s
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 

P
a
g
e
 8
6
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 116



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P
R
O
C
-A
P
-0
0
8
 :
 R
e
-l
a
u
n
c
h
 a
n
d
 r
o
ll-
o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 I
-p
ro
c
 O

ra
c
le
 S
o
ft
w
a
re
 S
o
lu
ti
o
n
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
8
.1
 :
 M

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 w

it
h
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 L
e
g
a
l,
 L
e
is
u
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
w
it
h
 a
 v
ie
w
 t
o
 r
o
lli
n
g
 o
u
t 
I-
p
ro
c
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
. 
 I
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 l
a
tt
e
r 
th
e
 'P

ro
te
c
t' 
s
y
s
te
m
 

w
ill
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 o
b
s
o
le
te
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 

I-
P
ro
c
 w

ill
 b
e
 t
h
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 w

h
ic
h
 m

u
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 s
p
e
n
d
 w

ill
 b
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
. 

 A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
'p
ro
je
c
t 
te
a
m
' 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
ls
o
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 

to
 p
la
n
 t
h
e
 w

a
y
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 a
n
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 t
a
c
k
le
 a
n
y
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
te
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
is
s
u
e
s
 f
ro
m
 a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 s
ta
g
e
. 
 C

u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

th
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
 w

h
ic
h
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 a
rv
a
to
 O

ra
c
le
 t
e
a
m
 w

h
ic
h
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 o
f 
b
la
n
k
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 o
rd
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 

th
e
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
's
e
rv
ic
e
s
' w

h
e
re
 v
o
lu
m
e
 c
a
n
 n
o
t 
b
e
 

d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
. 

 Q
2
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 k
e
y
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
c
o
lle

a
g
u
e
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 

Q
2
. 
 T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 

m
o
v
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 O

ra
c
le
 a
n
d
 S
w
o
rd
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 

c
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
 'P

ro
te
c
t' 
s
y
s
te
m
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
. 

P
a
g
e
 8
7
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 117



C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
8
.2
 :
 M

a
n
a
g
e
 p
ilo

t 
im

p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

D
e
la
y
e
d
 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 C

P
U
 i
s
 w

o
rk
in
g
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 w

it
h
 L
e
is
u
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 

fa
c
ili
ta
te
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
I-
p
ro
c
. 
 T
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
Q
2
 i
t 
is
 

a
ls
o
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 t
o
 e
x
te
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
ilo
t 
w
it
h
 T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

c
o
m
in
g
 o
n
 b
o
a
rd
. 
 I
t 
is
 n
o
te
d
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 

c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 u
s
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 m

a
y
 t
h
re
a
te
n
 

th
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
a
n
y
 r
e
-l
a
u
n
c
h
. 

 Q
2
 

T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 n
o
w
 'g

o
n
e
 l
iv
e
' o

n
 I
-

p
ro
c
. 
 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
p
h
a
s
e
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r.
  
T
h
e
 a
v
a
ila

b
ili
ty
 o
f 

s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 m

a
y
 s
lo
w
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 

 C
P
U
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a
w
a
it
in
g
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
a
 C

o
m
p
u
te
r 
B
a
s
e
d
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 a
rv
a
to
. 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
8
.3
 :
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

T
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
Q
2
 a
n
d
 b
e
y
o
n
d
, 
C
P
U
 w

ill
 a
tt
e
m
p
t 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
 

s
m
o
o
th
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
fi
n
e
s
 o
f 
it
s
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
a
s
 m

o
re
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
o
v
e
r.
 

Q
2
 

N
o
 s
ta
tu
s
 c
h
a
n
g
e
. 

P
a
g
e
 8
8
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 118



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P
R
O
C
-A
P
-0
0
9
 :
 P
u
rs
u
e
 c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
v
e
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
. 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
9
.1
 :
 M

a
n
a
g
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 f
e
e
d
 b
a
c
k
 i
n
te
rn
a
lly
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
v
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
a
k
e
s
 

p
la
c
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
u
p
d
a
te
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 w

it
h
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
s
ta
ff
. 
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 f
e
d
 b
a
c
k
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 

m
o
n
th
ly
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
R
e
p
o
rt
. 

Q
2
 

N
o
 s
ta
tu
s
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
9
.2
 :
 E
n
g
a
g
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 t
o
 

p
u
rs
u
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

K
e
y
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 s
ta
g
e
 o
f 
a
n
y
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
. 
 I
n
 t
h
is
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
a
 p
ro
je
c
t 

te
a
m
 w

a
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 o
u
ts
e
t 
w
it
h
in
 S
e
ft
o
n
 t
o
 

m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 A
g
e
n
c
y
 S
ta
ff
in
g
 p
ro
je
c
t 
fo
rw

a
rd
. 
 K
e
y
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
ff
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 k
e
p
t 
a
b
re
a
s
t 
o
f 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w

h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

 C
P
U
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
 E
n
e
rg
y
 T
e
a
m
 (
Ia
n
 W

e
lle

r)
 i
n
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
P
a
m
e
la
 B
ra
n
d
w
o
o
o
d
's
 i
m
m
in
e
n
t 
d
e
p
a
rt
u
re
, 
w
it
h
 

a
 v
ie
w
 t
o
 p
u
rs
u
in
g
 c
o
lla

b
o
ra
ti
v
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 w

it
h
 o
th
e
r 

a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

 Q
2
 

C
P
U
 i
s
 l
ia
is
in
g
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
E
n
e
rg
y
 t
e
a
m
 t
o
 

p
u
rs
u
e
 c
o
lla

b
o
ra
ti
v
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 E
n
e
rg
y
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t.
 

 C
P
U
 h
a
s
 a
ls
o
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
v
it
e
d
 t
o
 s
it
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
e
ft
o
n
 C

h
ild

re
n
s
 

T
ru
s
t 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G

ro
u
p
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
jo
in
t 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t/
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 e
v
e
n
t.
  
C
P
U
 i
s
 w

o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 

C
o
lin

 O
x
le
y
 &
 J
e
a
n
 M

a
s
s
a
m
 i
n
 t
h
is
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t.
 

P
a
g
e
 8
9
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 119



C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
9
.3
 :
 L
e
a
d
 o
n
 b
e
h
a
lf
 o
f 
th
e
 M

e
rs
e
y
s
id
e
 

G
ro
u
p
 r
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

S
e
ft
o
n
 i
s
 l
e
a
d
in
g
 o
n
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
v
e
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

e
x
e
rc
is
e
s
 a
t 
th
e
 m

o
m
e
n
t,
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 M

e
rs
e
y
w
id
e
 d
e
a
l 
fo
r 

B
u
ild

in
g
 C
le
a
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 F
u
rn
it
u
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

 S
e
ft
o
n
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
d
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t's
 l
in
k
 i
n
to
 

th
e
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
g
e
n
d
a
, 
d
u
e
 t
o
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 t
o
 d
a
te
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 S
te
p
c
le
v
e
r 
te
a
m
. 
 I
t 
a
ls
o
 l
e
a
d
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

M
e
rs
e
y
s
id
e
 G

ro
u
p
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 T
h
ir
d
 S
e
c
to
r,
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
, 
d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 f
o
rg
e
d
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

a
n
d
 w

o
rk
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 M

e
rs
e
y
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

a
n
d
 E
n
v
ro
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
te
a
m
s
 r
e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
. 

 Q
2
 

N
o
 s
ta
tu
s
 c
h
a
n
g
e
. 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
9
.4
 :
 R
e
p
o
rt
 l
o
c
a
lly
 a
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 

c
e
n
tr
e
 (
N
W
IE
P
) 
o
n
 b
e
h
a
lf
 o
f 
th
e
 M

e
rs
e
y
s
id
e
 G

ro
u
p
 r
e
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 g
a
in
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

T
h
is
 p
ie
c
e
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 t
h
e
 

d
e
p
a
rt
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
 C

o
lla

b
o
a
ra
ti
v
e
 P
ro
je
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
in
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
. 
 H

o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
 p
o
s
t 
h
a
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 f
ill
e
d
 a
s
 o
f 
J
u
ly
 

2
0
0
9
 s
o
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
is
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 h
a
n
d
e
d
 o
v
e
r 

w
h
e
re
v
e
r 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

F
IS
-P

R
O
C
-A

P
-0
0
9
.5
 :
 A
d
o
p
t 
a
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
is
e
d
 s
u
it
e
 o
f 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
 c
o
m
m
o
n
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
c
ro
s
s
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
n
g
 b
o
d
ie
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

T
o
m
m
y
 C
ra
w
fo
rd
 

Q
1
 

S
e
ft
o
n
 l
e
a
d
s
 o
n
 t
h
is
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

w
it
h
 H

a
lt
o
n
 a
n
d
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a
im

in
g
 

to
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
o
n
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
. 
 

T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 P
re
 Q

u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
 Q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 

(P
Q
Q
's
),
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
, 
In
v
it
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
e
n
d
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 (
IT
T
) 
a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
io
n
 

o
f 
th
e
 e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
p
o
rt
a
l.
 

 Q
2
 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
is
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
n
d
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 N
W
IE
P
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

o
d
o
p
ti
n
g
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
re
g
io
n
a
l 

a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t.
 

P
a
g
e
 9
0
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 120



S
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 

P
a
g
e
 9
1
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 121



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S
T
-A
P
-0
0
1
 :
 E
s
ta
b
lis
h
, 
m
o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
S
T
U
 B
u
d
g
e
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
1
.1
 :
 E
s
ta
b
lis
h
, 
m
o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
S
T
U
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
1
.2
 :
 C

re
a
te
 d
ra
ft
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
(G

M
,H

e
le
n
 W

ils
o
n
) 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
1
.3
 :
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
(J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll)
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
1
.4
 :
 C

a
s
c
a
d
e
 t
o
 O

p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
1
.5
 :
 M

o
n
it
o
r,
 c
re
a
te
 a
n
d
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
 m

o
n
th
ly
 M

I 
p
a
c
k
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
1
.6
 :
 M

a
n
a
g
e
 s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 w
it
h
in
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
1
.7
 :
 R

e
v
ie
w
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
1
.8
 :
 A
g
re
e
 a
n
d
 c
a
s
c
a
d
e
 a
n
y
 a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
1
.9
 :
 F
o
llo

w
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

d
a
v
e
 w
it
te
n
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
1
.1
0
 :
 R

e
v
ie
w
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

P
a
g
e
 9
2
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 122



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S
T
-A
P
-0
0
2
 :
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
ro
v
id
e
r 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
2
.1
 :
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
ro
v
id
e
r 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
2
.2
 :
 C

re
a
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
/g
o
o
d
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 (
T
a
x
i,
 S
o
ft
w
a
re
, 
B
u
s
) 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
2
.3
 :
 W

it
h
in
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

s
tu
a
rt
 b
a
te
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
2
.4
 :
 U

n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
a
x
i 
2
0
0
9
/2
0
1
0
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

s
tu
a
rt
 b
a
te
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
2
.5
 :
 U

n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 s
o
ft
w
a
re
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

s
tu
a
rt
 b
a
te
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
2
.6
 :
 U

n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 B
u
s
. 
C
o
a
c
h
 2
0
1
0
/2
0
1
1
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

s
tu
a
rt
 b
a
te
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
2
.7
 :
 A
w
a
rd
 t
a
x
i 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
2
.8
 :
 A
w
a
rd
 s
o
ft
w
a
re
 s
u
p
p
lie
r 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
2
.9
 :
 A
w
a
rd
 B
u
s
, 
C
o
a
c
h
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
2
.1
0
 :
 C

a
s
c
a
d
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
2
.1
1
 :
 O

p
e
ra
te
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

d
a
v
e
 w
it
te
n
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
2
.1
2
 :
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
C
o
m
p
lia

n
c
e
 A
u
d
it
in
g
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

b
a
rr
y
 p
h
ill
ip
s
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
2
.1
3
 :
 R

e
v
ie
w
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

P
a
g
e
 9
3
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 123



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S
T
-A
P
-0
0
3
 :
 T
ra
in
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
3
.1
 :
 T
ra
in
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
3
.2
 :
 C

re
a
te
 T
ra
in
in
g
 M

a
p
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
3
.3
 :
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
J
F
/G

M
/P
W
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
3
.4
 :
 L
in
k
 t
o
 P
D
R
 c
a
p
tu
re
d
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
3
.5
 :
 C

a
p
tu
re
 P
D
R
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
s
e
n
d
 t
o
 G

M
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

d
a
v
e
 w
it
te
n
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
3
.6
 :
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
/p
ro
v
id
e
r 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
3
.7
 :
 C

o
-o
rd
in
a
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

b
a
rr
y
 p
h
ill
ip
s
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
3
.8
 :
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

b
a
rr
y
 p
h
ill
ip
s
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
3
.9
 :
 R

e
v
ie
w
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

P
a
g
e
 9
4
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 124



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S
T
-A
P
-0
0
4
 :
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 L
e
v
e
l 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
4
.1
 :
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 L
e
v
e
l 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
4
.2
 :
 C

re
a
te
 d
ra
ft
 S
L
A
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 c
lie

n
t 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
/s
e
c
ti
o
n
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
4
.3
 :
 S
T
U
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
(J
F
/G

M
/P
W

) 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
d
ra
ft
 S
L
A
’s
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
4
.4
 :
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
S
L
A
 w
it
h
 c
lie
n
t 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
ra
d
e
 u
n
io
n
s
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
4
.5
 :
 C

a
s
c
a
d
e
 t
o
 a
ll 
c
lie

n
t 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
s
ta
ff
 

a
n
d
 S
T
U
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta
ff
 f
o
r 
im

p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
4
.6
 :
 U

n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 R

e
v
ie
w
s
 w

it
h
 c
lie

n
t 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 (
G
M
/P
W
) 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

P
a
g
e
 9
5
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 125



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S
T
-A
P
-0
0
5
 :
 P
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
5
.1
 :
 P
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
5
.2
 :
 C

re
a
te
 d
ra
ft
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 (
p
o
lic
ie
s
 &
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 e
ia
 a
n
d
 p
o
lic
y
) 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
5
.3
 :
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 J
F
/G

M
/P
W
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
5
.4
 :
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

U
n
io
n
s
/c
a
b
in
e
t 
m
e
m
b
e
r 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
5
.5
 :
 C

a
s
c
a
d
e
 t
o
 a
ll 
S
T
U
 s
ta
ff
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
5
.6
 :
 C

o
m
p
lia

n
c
e
 a
u
d
it
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
5
.7
 :
 R

e
v
ie
w
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
5
.8
 :
 R

e
v
ie
w
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
5
.9
 :
 R

e
v
ie
w
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
5
.1
0
 :
 R

e
v
ie
w
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

P
a
g
e
 9
6
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 126



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S
T
-A
P
-0
0
6
 :
 R

e
d
u
c
e
 p
lu
s
 1
6
 c
o
s
ts
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

P
a
u
l 
W
a
d
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
6
.1
 :
 R

e
d
u
c
e
 p
lu
s
 1
6
 c
o
s
t’
s
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

d
a
v
e
 w
it
te
n
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
6
.2
 :
 R

e
p
la
c
e
 t
a
x
i’s
 b
y
 u
s
in
g
 i
n
-h
o
u
s
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

d
a
v
e
 w
it
te
n
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
6
.3
 :
 R

e
c
ru
it
 t
w
o
 d
ri
v
e
rs
. 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
 w
it
h
 B
.S
.U

. 
3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

P
a
u
l 
W
a
d
e
 

P
a
g
e
 9
7
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 127



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S
T
-A
P
-0
0
7
 :
 R

e
d
u
c
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
ro
u
te
s
 i
n
 s
o
u
th
 a
re
a
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

P
a
u
l 
W
a
d
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
7
.1
 :
 U

s
e
 m

a
p
 p
o
in
t 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
 w
it
h
 s
ta
ff
, 

H
&
S
C
. 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

P
a
u
l 
W
a
d
e
 

P
a
g
e
 9
8
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 128



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S
T
-A
P
-0
0
8
 :
 R

e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

P
a
u
l 
W
a
d
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
8
.1
 :
 L
ia
is
e
 w

it
h
 B
.S
.U

. 
3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

P
a
u
l 
W
a
d
e
 

P
a
g
e
 9
9
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 129



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S
T
-A
P
-0
0
9
 :
 A
s
s
im

ila
te
 c
a
s
u
a
l 
s
ta
ff
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

P
a
u
l 
W
a
d
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
0
9
.1
 :
 L
ia
is
e
 w

it
h
 B
.S
.U

. 
3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

P
a
u
l 
W
a
d
e
 

P
a
g
e
 1
0
0
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 130



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S
T
-A
P
-0
1
0
 :
 T
ra
in
in
g
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
1
0
.1
 :
 L
ia
is
e
 w

it
h
 t
ra
in
in
g
 u
n
it
 /
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
0
-J
u
n
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
1
0
.2
 :
 L
ia
is
e
 w

it
h
 t
ra
in
in
g
 u
n
it
 /
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
1
0
.3
 :
 L
ia
is
e
 w

it
h
 t
ra
in
in
g
 u
n
it
 /
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

3
1
-D

e
c
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 M

u
s
s
e
ll 

P
a
g
e
 1
0
1
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 131



 

A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S
T
-A
P
-0
1
1
 :
 O

rg
a
n
is
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 
a
s
s
is
ta
n
ts
 

3
1
-M

a
r-
2
0
1
0
 

J
o
h
n
 F
a
rr
e
ll 

P
a
u
l 
W
a
d
e
 

O
n
 T
a
rg
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

F
IS
-S

T
-A

P
-0
1
1
.1
 :
 O

rg
a
n
is
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 t
im

e
s
. 

3
0
-S

e
p
-2
0
0
9
 

O
n
 H
o
ld
 

d
a
v
e
 w
it
te
n
 

P
a
g
e
 1
0
2
 o
f 
1
0
2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 132



S
e
ft
o
n
's
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
n
d
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 N
e
T
w
o
rk
 (
S
P
R
IN
T
) 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

P
ri
n
t 
D
a
te
: 

2
6
/1
1
/2
0
0
9
 

P
o

lic
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 

A
u

th
o

r:
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 133



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

C
O

R
-F

IN
-A

P
-0

7
1

 -
 A

c
h

ie
v
e

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 b
e

tt
e

r 
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t,
 c

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
o
n

 
w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

C
o
u

n
c
ils

 a
n

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 
P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
).
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

1
 

P
a

u
l 
E

d
w

a
rd

s
 

J
o

h
n

 F
a

rr
e

ll 
O

n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

P
e

ri
o

d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 S
ta

tu
s
 

%
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 5
0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
a
g
e
 2

 o
f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 134



C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

M
e

rs
e

y
s
id

e
/R

e
g

io
n

a
l 
C

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
o

n
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
T

o
m

m
y
 C

ra
w

fo
rd
 

Q
2

 E
v
a

lu
a

te
 t

e
n

d
e

r 
b

id
s
 

T
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

w
a

s
 a

w
a

rd
e

d
 t

o
 a

 c
o

m
p

a
n

y
 n

a
m

e
d

 M
a

tr
ix

. 
 

S
a

v
in

g
s
 o

f 
a

ro
u

n
d

 1
0

%
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

s
p

e
n

d
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
g

u
a

ra
n

te
e

d
 b

y
 M

a
tr

ix
. 

 I
n

it
ia

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 h

a
v
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 t
o

 
o

v
e

rs
e

e
 t

ra
n

s
it
io

n
. 

 I
t 

is
 e

n
v
is

a
g

e
d

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 
to

 e
n

a
b

le
 a

 g
o

-l
iv

e
 d

a
te

 c
ir

c
a
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

0
. 

 Q
2

 M
a

n
a

g
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

te
a

m
 h

a
s
 s

e
t 

u
p

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 H

R
 

c
o

lle
a

g
u

e
s
. 

 H
R

 &
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
w

ill
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 t

h
e

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
tr

a
n

s
it
io

n
. 

 Q
2

 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 -
 E

n
g

a
g

e
 s

e
n

io
r 

in
te

rn
a

l 
u

s
e

rs
 p

re
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 

In
it
ia

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 h

a
v
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 M
a

tr
ix

 a
n

d
 w

e
re

 
a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
e

n
io

r 
H

R
 c

o
lle

a
g

u
e

s
. 

 I
n
it
ia

l 
in

te
tr

n
a

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

 t
o

 
p

la
n

 f
o

r 
tr

a
n

s
it
io

n
. 

 Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

 -
 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
0
 

 Q
2

P
o

s
t 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 s
u

p
p

lie
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
 

N
o

 s
ta

tu
s
 c

h
a

n
g

e
. 

P
a
g
e
 3

 o
f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 135



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

C
O

R
-F

IN
-A

P
-0

8
1

 -
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 M

e
d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

la
n

 (
M

T
F

P
) 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
. 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

1
 

P
a

u
l 
E

d
w

a
rd

s
 

L
y
n

to
n

 G
re

e
n
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

P
e

ri
o

d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 S
ta

tu
s
 

%
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 5
0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
M

T
F

P
 a

n
d

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
ro

c
e

s
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

 l
in

k
 

to
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
L

y
n

to
n

 G
re

e
n
 

T
h

e
 M

T
F

P
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 a
lig

n
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
R

e
v
ie

w
. 

 A
 K

e
y
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 S

B
R

 i
s
 t

h
e

 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

re
 c

le
a

r 
o

n
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 

o
n

 a
ll 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

b
u

t 
in

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
. P

a
g
e
 4

 o
f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 136



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

C
O

R
-F

IN
-A

P
-0

8
2

 -
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
p
ro

c
e

s
s
 s

o
 t
h

a
t 
it
 b

e
tt
e

r 
in

fo
rm

s
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
n

d
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o
n

a
l 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a
k
in

g
. 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

1
 

P
a

u
l 
E

d
w

a
rd

s
 

P
a

u
l 
E

d
w

a
rd

s
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

P
e

ri
o

d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 S
ta

tu
s
 

%
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 4
5
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
c
e

s
s
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
0

9
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
P

a
u

l 
E

d
w

a
rd

s
 

Q
2

  
T

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

's
 R

is
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 

s
u

b
je

c
te

d
 t

o
 a

 c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 c

o
m

p
a

ri
s
o

n
 w

it
h

 b
e

s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

. 
 

T
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
a

n
t 

G
a

p
 A

n
a

ly
s
is

 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 a

 g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
to

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 (

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

th
re

e
) 

a
n

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 /
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 (

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

fo
u

r)
 

P
a
g
e
 5

 o
f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 137



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

D
S

P
-F

IS
-A

P
-0

0
1

 D
e

liv
e

r 
A

u
d
it
 P

la
n

 -
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
a

u
d

it
s
 a

s
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 i
n

 A
u

d
it
 

P
la

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 o

n
 a

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 b

a
s
is

 t
o

 A
u
d

it
 a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a
n

c
e

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

L
y
n

to
n

 G
re

e
n
 

G
e

o
ff

 H
u

d
s
o

n
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

P
e

ri
o

d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 S
ta

tu
s
 

%
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 5
0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

1
. 

P
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 –
 (

 1
s
t 

A
p

ri
l 
–

 3
0

th
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

) 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
0

9
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

G
e

o
ff

 H
u

d
s
o

n
 

A
u

d
it
 P

la
n

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 2
5

th
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

0
9
 

2
. 

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
a

u
d

it
s
 a

s
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 i
n

 P
la

n
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
0

9
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
G

e
o

ff
 H

u
d
s
o

n
 

A
u

d
it
s
 i
n

 p
e

ri
o

d
 1

/4
/0

9
 t

o
 3

0
/9

/0
9

 b
e

in
g

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 i
n

 
a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 P
la

n
 

 A
u

d
it
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 P
la

n
 -

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 3
0

th
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

3
. 

P
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 t

o
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
G

e
o

ff
 H

u
d
s
o

n
 

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 t

o
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
3

0
/9

/0
9
 

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
a

k
e

n
 t

o
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 3
0

th
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

fo
r 

p
e

ri
o

d
 1

s
t 

A
p

ri
l 
to

 3
1

s
t 

A
u

g
u
s
t.

 F
u

rt
h

e
r 

re
p

o
rt

 
to

 A
u

d
it
 a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
p

e
ri

o
d

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

to
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

w
ill

 b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 t

o
 A

u
d
it
 a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 o
n

 1
6

th
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

4
. 

P
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 R

e
p

o
rt

 (
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 )
 

3
0

-J
u

n
-2

0
0

9
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

G
e

o
ff

 H
u

d
s
o

n
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
2

0
0

8
/0

9
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 o
n

 2
4

/6
/0

9
 

P
a
g
e
 6

 o
f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 138



C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

5
. 

P
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 –
 (

 1
s
t 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
to

 
3

1
s
t 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
0

 )
 

3
0

-S
e

p
-2

0
0

9
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

G
e

o
ff

 H
u

d
s
o

n
 

T
o

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 3
0

/9
/0

9
 

 A
u

d
it
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
p

e
ri

o
d

 1
s
t 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
to

 3
1

s
t 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
0

 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 o
n

 3
0

th
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

P
a
g
e
 7

 o
f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 139



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

D
S

P
-F

IS
-A

P
-0

0
2

 R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
, 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 t
h
e

 m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
 

a
p

p
lie

d
 w

h
e

n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 i
n

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
a

u
d

it
s
 

3
0

-S
e
p

-2
0
0

9
 

L
y
n

to
n

 G
re

e
n
 

G
e

o
ff

 H
u

d
s
o

n
 

D
e

la
y
e

d
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

P
e

ri
o

d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 S
ta

tu
s
 

%
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 5
0
 

D
e

la
y
e

d
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

1
. 

Id
e

n
ti
fy

 v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 O
th

e
r 

D
is

tr
ic

ts
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 /

 m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
 

3
1

-M
a

y
-2

0
0

9
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

G
e

o
ff

 H
u

d
s
o

n
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 3

1
/5

/0
9
 

2
. 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 r
e

v
ie

w
 

3
0

-J
u

n
-2

0
0

9
 

D
e

la
y
e

d
 

G
e

o
ff

 H
u

d
s
o

n
 

C
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 i
t 

lin
k
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

O
v
e

ra
ll 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

3
. 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
/ 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

e
v
ie

w
  

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 

3
0

-S
e

p
-2

0
0

9
 

D
e

la
y
e

d
 

G
e

o
ff

 H
u

d
s
o

n
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 i
t 

lin
k
s
 w

it
h

 O
v
e

ra
ll 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

4
. 

P
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 w
e

f 
1

s
t 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
–

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 

in
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 R
e

v
ie

w
 

3
0

-S
e

p
-2

0
0

9
 

D
e

la
y
e

d
 

G
e

o
ff

 H
u

d
s
o

n
 

A
u

d
it
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
p

e
ri

o
d

 1
/1

0
/0

9
 t

o
 3

1
/3

/1
0

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t
o

 
A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 o
n

 3
0

/9
/0

9
 b

u
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 o

n
 

b
a

s
is

 o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 R

e
v
ie

w
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 d
e

la
y
e

d
. 
 

It
 i
s
 e

n
v
is

a
g

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 o

n
 

b
a

s
is

 o
f 

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
0
 

P
a
g
e
 8

 o
f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 140



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

D
S

P
-F

IS
-A

P
-0

0
3

 P
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

n
n
u

a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
2

0
0

8
/0

9
 a

n
d

 r
e
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
o

 
A

u
d
it
 a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a
n

c
e

 b
y
 3

0
th

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
9

. 
3

0
-J

u
n

-2
0

0
9
 

L
y
n

to
n

 G
re

e
n
 

G
e

o
ff

 H
u

d
s
o

n
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

P
e

ri
o

d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 S
ta

tu
s
 

%
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 1
0

0
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

1
. 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
G

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

0
9

-A
p

r-
2

0
0

9
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

G
e

o
ff

 H
u

d
s
o

n
 

G
ro

u
p

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 d

u
ri

n
g

 A
p

ri
l,
 

M
a

y
 a

n
d

 J
u

n
e
 

2
. 

R
e

q
u

e
s
t 

a
n

d
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

0
9

-A
p

r-
2

0
0

9
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

G
e

o
ff

 H
u

d
s
o

n
 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 

3
. 

P
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

p
o

rt
 t

o
 A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e
 

3
0

-J
u

n
-2

0
0

9
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

G
e

o
ff

 H
u

d
s
o

n
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 

A
u

d
it
 a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 o
n

 2
4

/6
/0

9
 

P
a
g
e
 9

 o
f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 141



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

D
S

P
-F

IS
-A

P
-0

0
4

 D
e

liv
e

r 
&

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

T
a
x
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 
w

it
h

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 
le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

J
o

h
n

 F
a

rr
e

ll 
C

h
ri
s
ti
n
e

 F
in

n
ig

a
n
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

P
e

ri
o

d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 S
ta

tu
s
 

%
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 5
0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

1
. 

  
A

d
m

in
is

te
r 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

ta
x
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 (
M

e
a

s
u

re
d

 
b

y
 K

P
I)
 

3
0

-J
u

n
-2

0
0

9
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

C
h

ri
s
ti
n

e
 F

in
n

ig
a

n
 

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

5
%

 e
n

d
 o

f 
J
u

n
e

 -
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 2

7
.5

7
 

2
. 

  
A

d
m

in
is

te
r 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

ta
x
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 (
M

e
a

s
u

re
d

 
b

y
 K

P
I)
 

3
0

-S
e

p
-2

0
0

9
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

M
a

rk
 B

a
rr

y
 

A
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
t 

3
. 

  
A

d
m

in
is

te
r 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

ta
x
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 (
M

e
a

s
u

re
d

 
b

y
 K

P
I)
 

3
1

-D
e

c
-2

0
0

9
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
M

a
rk

 B
a

rr
y
 

4
. 

  
A

d
m

in
is

te
r 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

ta
x
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 (
M

e
a

s
u

re
d

 
b

y
 K

P
I)
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
M

a
rk

 B
a

rr
y
 

5
. 

A
c
ti
o

n
 I

n
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
M

a
rk

 B
a

rr
y
 

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 a

c
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 t

o
 s

h
o

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
. 

6
. 

P
re

p
a

re
 f

o
r 

P
e

ri
c
le

s
 M

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
M

a
rk

 B
a

rr
y
 

O
v
e

ra
ll 

ta
rg

e
ts

 &
 m

ile
s
to

n
e

s
 t
o

 b
e

 a
g

re
e

d
. 

 I
n

 n
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
 

s
ta

g
e

. 

7
. 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

 C
IP

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 Y

e
a

r 
1
 

3
0

-S
e

p
-2

0
0

9
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
M

a
rk

 B
a

rr
y
 

R
e

v
is

e
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 C
 T

a
x
 a

rr
e

a
rs

 
p

ro
je

c
t.

  
C

lie
n

t 
w

a
it
in

g
 f

o
r 

re
v
is

e
d

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

C
IP

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

fr
o

m
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
C

e
n

tr
ic

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
- 

d
u

e
 2

2
n

d
 J

u
ly

 0
9

. 
  

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 d
u

e
 i
n

 o
n

 1
3

.1
0

.0
9
 

8
. 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
IP

F
A

 B
e

n
c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
 d

a
ta

 t
o

 C
lie

n
t 

2
9

-M
a

y
-2

0
0

9
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

M
a

rk
 B

a
rr

y
 

D
a

ta
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 C

IP
F

A
 -

 d
ra

ft
 r

e
p

o
rt

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
. 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 142



C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

9
. 

 C
IP

F
A

 C
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r 

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
n

a
ir

e
 t

o
 C

lie
n

t 
1

7
-J

u
l-

2
0

0
9
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

M
a

rk
 B

a
rr

y
 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 143



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

D
S

P
-F

IS
-A

P
-0

0
5

 P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
&

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 H
o
u

s
in

g
 &

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

J
o

h
n

 F
a

rr
e

ll 
C

h
ri
s
ti
n
e

 F
in

n
ig

a
n
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

P
e

ri
o

d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 S
ta

tu
s
 

%
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 5
0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

1
. 

  
A

d
m

in
is

te
r 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 &

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

ta
x
 b

e
n

e
fi
t/

 s
e
c
o

n
d

 
a

d
u

lt
 r

e
b

a
te

 &
 d

is
c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 h

a
rd

s
h

ip
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 –

 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

o
 u

p
p

e
r 

q
u

a
rt

ile
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

. 
 (

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 b
y
 

K
P

I)
 

3
0

-J
u

n
-2

0
0

9
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

P
e

te
 J

e
n

n
e

r 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

s
 r

e
c
ie

v
e

d
 a

ls
o

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 b
y
 C

lie
n

t 

1
0

. 
A

c
ti
o

n
 I

n
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 r

e
p

o
rt

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts
 

0
9

-S
e

p
-1

9
3

1
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
P

e
te

 J
e

n
n

e
r 

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 &

 s
e

p
a
ra

te
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 t

o
 f

o
llo

w
 u

p
 b

y
 

C
lie

n
t.

  

 A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 u
p

d
a

te
 &

 w
o

rk
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
. 

C
F

 2
9

.0
9

.0
9
 

1
1

. 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 C

IP
F

A
 b

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
 d

a
ta

 t
o

 C
lie

n
t 

1
0

-J
u

l-
2

0
0

9
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

P
e

te
 J

e
n

n
e

r 
R

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
C

e
n

tr
ic

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

to
 f

o
llo

w
 u

p
. 

D
u

e
 i
n

 1
7

.0
7

.0
9
 

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 &

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 -

 f
in

a
l 
re

p
o

rt
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
. 

1
2

. 
C

IP
F

A
 c

o
m

p
a

ra
to

r 
q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
n

a
ir

e
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
tu

rn
e

d
 t

o
 

C
lie

n
t 

2
8

-A
u

g
-2

0
0

9
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

P
e

te
 J

e
n

n
e

r 
S

u
b

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 C

IP
F

A
 -

 C
F

 2
9

.0
9

.0
9
 

2
. 

A
d

m
in

is
te

r 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 &

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

ta
x
 b

e
n

e
fi
t/

 s
e
c
o

n
d

 a
d

u
lt
 

re
b

a
te

 &
 d

is
c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 h

a
rd

s
h

ip
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 –

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

o
 

u
p

p
e

r 
q

u
a

rt
ile

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

. 
 (

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 b
y
 K

P
I)
 

3
0

-S
e

p
-2

0
0

9
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

P
e

te
 J

e
n

n
e

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 &

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

o
n

io
tr

e
d

 -
 

2
9

.0
9

.0
9

. 
D

W
P

 f
u

n
d
in

g
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
w

o
rk

 d
u

e
 t

o
 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 d
o

w
n

tu
rn

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

. 
2

9
.0

9
.0

9
 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 144



C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

3
. 

 A
d

m
in

is
te

r 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 &

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

ta
x
 b

e
n

e
fi
t/

 s
e
c
o

n
d

 a
d

u
lt
 

re
b

a
te

 &
 d

is
c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 h

a
rd

s
h

ip
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 –

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

o
 

u
p

p
e

r 
q

u
a

rt
ile

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

. 
 (

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 b
y
 K

P
I)
 

3
1

-D
e

c
-2

0
0

9
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
P

e
te

 J
e

n
n

e
r 

4
. 

 A
d

m
in

is
te

r 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 &

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

ta
x
 b

e
n

e
fi
t/

 s
e
c
o

n
d

 a
d

u
lt
 

re
b

a
te

 &
 d

is
c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 h

a
rd

s
h

ip
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 –

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

o
 

u
p

p
e

r 
q

u
a

rt
ile

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

. 
 (

M
e

a
s
u

re
d

 b
y
 K

P
I)
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
P

e
te

 J
e

n
n

e
r 

5
. 

 P
re

p
a

re
 f

o
r 

A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
  

(K
L

O
E

) 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
C

ra
ig

 G
re

e
n
 

O
v
e

ra
ll 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 r
e

c
e
iv

e
d

 -
 f

o
llo

w
 u

p
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 

2
8

.0
7

.0
9

 t
o

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
. 
 

 R
e

v
ie

w
 o

n
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 &

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

&
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
. 

 N
e

x
t 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

u
p

d
a

te
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 f

o
r 

1
3

.1
0

.0
9

 -
 C

F
 2

9
.0

9
.0

9
 

6
. 

M
a

x
im

is
e

 s
u

b
s
id

y
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 i
n

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 D
W

P
 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

. 
 E

n
s
u

re
 L

A
 e

rr
o

r 
re

m
a

in
s
 b

e
lo

w
  

  
m

in
im

u
m

 
th

re
s
h

o
ld

. 
 A

c
h

ie
v
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l.
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
P

e
te

 J
e

n
n

e
r 

P
W

C
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 s

u
b

s
id

y
 c

la
im

 &
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
c
h

e
c
k
s
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
. 

  

 E
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
re

s
u

lt
s
 -

 g
ra

n
t 

c
la

im
 s

ig
n

e
d

 o
ff

 w
it
h

 f
e

w
 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

y
e

a
r 

0
8

/0
9

. 
 N

o
w

e
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
L

A
 e

rr
o

r 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 f

o
r 

0
5

/1
0

/0
9

 -
 C

F
 2

9
.0

9
.0

9
 

7
. 

 A
c
h

ie
v
e

 C
IP

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

 Y
e

a
r 

1
 

0
9

-S
e

p
-1

9
3

1
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

C
ra

ig
 G

re
e

n
 

C
lie

n
t 

re
q

u
e

s
te

d
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 C
IP

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
rm

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
C

e
n

tr
ic

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

- 
d

u
e

 2
2

.0
7

.0
9
 

 A
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

y
e

a
r 

1
 C

IP
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 -

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e
d

 
a

t 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
 1

3
.1

0
.0

9
 

8
. 

 M
a

x
im

is
e

 u
s
a

g
e

 o
f 

D
H

P
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 –

 D
W

P
 f

u
n

d
in

g
. 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
P

e
te

 J
e

n
n

e
r 

R
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 o

n
 s

p
e

n
d

 f
ro

m
 a

rv
a

to
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
o

f 
s
p

e
n

d
. 

 T
h

e
 y

e
a

rs
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 D
W

P
 

- 
2

9
.0

9
.0

9
. 

9
. 

P
re

p
a

re
 f

o
r 

P
e

ri
c
le

s
 M

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
P

e
te

 J
e

n
n

e
r 

P
a
g
e
 1

3
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 145



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

D
S

P
-F

IS
-A

P
-0

0
6

 P
a

y
m

e
n
t 
o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

In
v
o

ic
e

s
 &

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

3
1

-O
c
t-

2
0

1
0
 

J
o

h
n

 F
a

rr
e

ll 
C

h
ri
s
ti
n
e

 F
in

n
ig

a
n
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

P
e

ri
o

d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 S
ta

tu
s
 

%
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 5
0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

1
. 

P
a

y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
in

v
o

ic
e

s
  

&
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

3
0

-J
u

n
-2

0
0

9
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

K
a

re
n

 G
le

a
n
 

2
. 

 P
a

y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
in

v
o

ic
e

s
  

&
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

3
0

-S
e

p
-2

0
0

9
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

K
a

re
n

 G
le

a
n
 

T
a

rg
e

ts
 m

e
t 

fo
r 

th
is

 p
e

ri
o

d
 

3
. 

 P
a

y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
in

v
o

ic
e

s
  

&
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

3
1

-D
e

c
-2

0
0

9
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
K

a
re

n
 G

le
a

n
 

4
. 

 P
a

y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
in

v
o

ic
e

s
  

&
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
K

a
re

n
 G

le
a

n
 

5
. 

 C
o

m
p

le
te

 C
IP

F
A

 B
e

n
c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

K
a

re
n

 G
le

a
n
 

D
ra

ft
 r

e
p

o
rt

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 C
IP

F
A

 -
 n

e
x
t 

s
ta

g
e

 i
s
 

c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
rs

. 

P
a
g
e
 1

4
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 146



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

D
S

P
-F

IS
-A

P
-0

0
7

 S
u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 I
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

J
o

h
n

 F
a

rr
e

ll 
L

in
d

a
 P

ri
c
e
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

P
e

ri
o

d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 S
ta

tu
s
 

%
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 5
0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
C

o
n

ta
c
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
L

in
d

a
 P

ri
c
e
 

A
tt

e
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
C

o
n

ta
c
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 b

o
a

rd
 

 T
h

e
re

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 a

n
y
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
a

rd
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

is
 

p
e

ri
o

d
 

 C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
iv

e
 p

h
a

s
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

R
M

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 p
ro

je
c
t 

p
la

n
s
. 

5
0

%
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 N

o
rt

h
g

a
te

 F
ro

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

 U
p

g
ra

d
e

 t
o

 v
e

rs
io

n
 3
 

 5
0

%
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 &

 T
im

e
s
c
a

le
 f

o
r 

th
e

 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
C

o
n

n
e

c
t 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

L
in

d
a

 P
ri

c
e
 

A
ll 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

E
n

g
a

g
e

 w
it
h

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
C

o
n

n
e

c
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 T

e
a

m
 a

n
d

 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts
 

 C
o

n
fi
rm

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 p
re

p
a

re
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
la

n
 

 M
e

e
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

C
o

d
e

 o
f 

C
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 j
o

in
 G

s
i 
- 

D
e

a
d

lin
e

 a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 3
0

/0
6

/0
9

 t
o

 3
0

/0
8

/0
9

 p
e

r 
R

ic
h

a
rd

 
R

o
s
c
o

e
. 

 Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 -

 B
u

ild
 a

n
d

 t
e

s
t 

G
C

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

P
a
g
e
 1

5
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 147



C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
J
a

n
 W

e
m

m
e

l 
IT

 e
le

m
e

n
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 b

y
 a

 s
k
ill

e
d

 p
ro

je
c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
(B

o
b

 F
it
t)
 

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t 
5

0
%
 

 P
ro

v
id

e
 T

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
S

ta
ff

 t
o

 a
s
s
is

t 
in

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

o
v
a

l 
a

n
d

 s
e

t-
u

p
 o

f 
IT

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t 
5

0
%
 

P
a
g
e
 1

6
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 148



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

D
S

P
-F

IS
-A

P
-0

0
8

 M
o

n
it
o

r 
F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 I
S

 C
o
n

tr
a

c
t 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

J
o

h
n

 F
a

rr
e

ll 
L

in
d

a
 P

ri
c
e
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

P
e

ri
o

d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 S
ta

tu
s
 

%
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 5
0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

1
) 

R
e

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
P

h
il 

B
re

e
n
 

2
) 

R
e

c
o

rd
 &

 D
is

tr
ib

u
te

 R
e

p
o

rt
s
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
P

h
il 

B
re

e
n
 

3
) 

P
ro

v
id

e
 g

e
n

e
ri

c
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
A

n
g

e
la

 E
lli

s
 

5
0

%
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

P
a
g
e
 1

7
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 149



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

D
S

P
-F

IS
-A

P
-0

0
9

 U
p

g
ra

d
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 I
C

T
 I
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

J
o

h
n

 F
a

rr
e

ll 
L

in
d

a
 P

ri
c
e
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

P
e

ri
o

d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 S
ta

tu
s
 

%
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 5
0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

C
re

a
te

 a
n

d
 U

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 a
 P

ri
n

te
r 

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
J
a

n
 W

e
m

m
e

l 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 N
e

w
 D

a
ta

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
J
a

n
 W

e
m

m
e

l 

R
e

fr
e

s
h

 D
e

s
k
to

p
 P

C
 a

n
d

 L
a

p
to

p
s
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
J
a

n
 W

e
m

m
e

l 
tw

o
 o

u
t 

o
f 

th
re

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

0
8

.1
 :

 C
re

a
te

 P
C

 R
e

fr
e

s
h

 L
is

t 
fo

r 
P

h
a
s
e

 2
 

(J
u

n
e

 0
9

 –
 S

e
p

 0
9

) 
  

  
  

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

 F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

0
8

.2
 :

 C
re

a
te

 P
C

 R
e

fr
e

s
h

 L
is

t 
fo

r 
P

h
a
s
e

 3
 (

O
c
t 

0
9

 –
 M

a
r 

1
0

) 
  

  
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

0
8

.3
 :

 C
re

a
te

 P
C

 R
e

fr
e

s
h

 L
is

t 
fo

r 
P

h
a
s
e

 4
 (

A
p

r 
1

0
 –

 S
e

p
 1

0
) 

R
e

fr
e

s
h

 S
e

rv
e

r 
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
J
a

n
 W

e
m

m
e

l 

R
e

fr
e

s
h

 T
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

s
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
J
a

n
 W

e
m

m
e

l 

U
p

g
ra

d
e

 D
a

ta
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 I
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
J
a

n
 W

e
m

m
e

l 
th

re
e

 o
u

t 
o

f 
fo

u
r 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 (

F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

0
6

) 

U
p

g
ra

d
e

 T
e

le
p

h
o

n
y
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
J
a

n
 W

e
m

m
e

l 
F

IS
-I

C
T

-A
P

-0
0

7
.1

 :
 U

p
g

ra
d

e
 t

h
e

 E
ri

c
s
s
o

n
 M

D
1

1
0

 t
o

 M
X

-
O

n
e

 (
3

.1
 

8
0

%
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

P
a
g
e
 1

8
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 150



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

D
S

P
-F

IS
-A

P
-0

1
0

 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 
D

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n

ta
l 
IC

T
 P

ro
je

c
ts
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

J
o

h
n

 F
a

rr
e

ll 
L

in
d

a
 P

ri
c
e
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

P
e

ri
o

d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 S
ta

tu
s
 

%
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 5
0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

1
) 

M
ig

ra
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 P
e

ri
c
le

s
 t

o
 n

e
w

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 
s
y
s
te

m
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
J
a

n
 W

e
m

m
e

l 
P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 

2
) 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
n

ta
c
tP

o
in

t 
fo

r 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
J
a

n
 W

e
m

m
e

l 

3
) 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 I

C
T

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
E

le
c
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 H
o

ld
 

J
a

n
 W

e
m

m
e

l 
O

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 t
w

o
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

1
4

.1
 :

 R
e

v
ie

w
 k

it
 u

s
e

d
 b

y
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
  

  
O

n
 

T
a

rg
e

t 

 F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

1
4

.2
 :

 R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 w

ir
e

le
s
s
 c

o
n

n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 f

o
r 

n
o
n

-
C

o
u

n
c
il 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

4
) 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
D

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
J
a

n
 W

e
m

m
e

l 

P
a
g
e
 1

9
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 151



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

D
S

P
-F

IS
-A

P
-0

1
1

 U
p

g
ra

d
e

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 I
C

T
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

J
o

h
n

 F
a

rr
e

ll 
L

in
d

a
 P

ri
c
e
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

P
e

ri
o

d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 S
ta

tu
s
 

%
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 5
0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

1
) 

P
re

p
a

re
 f

o
r 

M
ig

ra
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 G
ro

u
p
W

is
e

 t
o

 M
ic

ro
s
o
ft

 
E

x
c
h

a
n

g
e
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
J
a

n
 W

e
m

m
e

l 
M

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

ta
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 u
n

ti
l 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

L
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 a
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

 T
h

is
 t

a
s
k
 i
s
 d

e
p

e
n

d
a

n
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
v
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 d
a

ta
 C

e
n

tr
e

 i
n

 S
t 

P
e

te
r'
s
 H

o
u

s
e

 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 i
n

 t
u

rn
 d

e
p

e
n

d
a

n
t 

o
n

 S
c
o

tt
is

h
 P

o
w

e
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 
s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
p

o
w

e
r 

to
 t

h
e

 e
le

c
tr

ic
a

l 
s
u

b
-s

ta
ti
o

n
. 

2
) 

M
ig

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

s
 t

o
 S

Q
L
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 H
o

ld
 

J
a

n
 W

e
m

m
e

l 
1

5
%

 c
o

m
p

le
te
 

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
id

e
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e

s
 

is
 o

n
g

o
in

g
. 

 O
n

c
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

, 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 

ta
k
e

 p
la

c
e

. 

3
) 

M
ig

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

S
P

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 t

o
 .

N
E

T
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
J
a

n
 W

e
m

m
e

l 
a

rv
a

to
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 a

s
 r

o
lli

n
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

u
ti
lis

in
g

 d
o

w
n

ti
m

e
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 w

o
rk

. 

P
a
g
e
 2

0
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 152



C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

4
) 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
C

o
n

n
e

c
t 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

J
a

n
 W

e
m

m
e

l 
S

e
v
e

n
 o

u
t 

o
f 

e
ig

h
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

1
9

.1
 :

 A
tt

a
in

 s
ig

n
-o

ff
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
o

f 
C

o
d

e
 o

f 
C

o
n

n
e

c
ti
o

n
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

1
9

.2
 :

 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 G

C
S

x
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

 F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

1
9

.3
 :

 T
e

s
t 

c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 G

C
S

x
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

1
9

.4
 :

 T
ra

in
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

u
s
e

rs
  

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 

 F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

1
9

.5
 :

 U
p

d
a

te
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 R

is
k
 P

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 
A

c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 U
s
e

 P
o

lic
ie

s
 f

o
r 

G
C

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

1
9

.6
 :

 C
lie

n
t 

s
ig

n
-o

ff
 g

iv
e

n
  

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

 F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

1
9

.7
 :

 G
C

 a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
g

iv
e

n
  

  
C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 

5
) 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

G
IS
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
J
a

n
 W

e
m

m
e

l 
O

n
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 o

n
e

 d
e

la
y
e

d
 

T
id

y
 u

p
 g

a
z
e

tt
e

e
r 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 E
x
te

n
d

 S
p

a
c
ia

l 
D

a
ta

b
a

s
e
 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

o
ft

w
a

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

u
p

p
lie

r.
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
D

e
la

y
e

d
 

P
a
g
e
 2

1
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 153



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

D
S

P
-F

IS
-A

P
-0

1
2

 R
e

v
ie

w
 &

 D
e

v
e
lo

p
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

o
lic

ie
s
 &

 S
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

 t
o

 I
C

T
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

P
a

u
l 
E

d
w

a
rd

s
 

L
in

d
a

 P
ri
c
e
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

P
e

ri
o

d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 S
ta

tu
s
 

%
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 4
0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 R

is
k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
R

ic
h

a
rd

 R
o

s
c
o

e
 

F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

2
2

.1
 :

 C
h

a
ir

 G
re

a
te

r 
M

e
rs

e
y
s
id

e
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 G

ro
u

p
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
 5

0
%

 C
o

m
p

le
te
 

 O
n

 h
o

ld
 u

n
ti
l 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
R

e
v
ie

w
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

2
2

.2
 :

 A
g

re
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 &

 P
la

n
  

  
  

F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

2
2

.3
 :

 R
e

v
ie

w
 &

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

 I
T

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 
P

o
lic

y
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk
 

F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

2
2

.4
 :

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

 n
e

w
 I

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

P
a
g
e
 2

2
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 154



C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 I
C

T
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
L

in
d

a
 P

ri
c
e
 

T
e

n
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n

d
 4

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
e

la
y
e

d
 

 F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

2
1

.6
 :

 S
e

t 
u

p
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 r

is
k
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
te

e
ri

n
g

 g
ro

u
p

 a
n

d
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 h

o
ld

 4
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
. 

  
  

  
  

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 

 N
e

e
d

 t
o

 d
e

c
id

e
 i
f 

th
is

 g
ro

u
p

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 s
ta

n
d

a
lo

n
e

 g
ro

u
p

, 
o

r 
b

u
ilt

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

is
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
g

ro
u

p
. 

 D
e

la
y
e

d
  

F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

2
1

.7
 :

 I
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

d
 a

llo
c
a

te
 a

ll 
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 h

e
ld

 a
c
ro

s
s
 C

o
u
n

c
il.
 

F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

2
1

.8
 :

 C
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

tr
a

in
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 f
o

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 r

is
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 

F
IS

-I
C

T
-A

P
-0

2
1

.9
 :

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

a
n

d
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 a
b

o
v
e

. 
F

IS
-I

C
T

-A
P

-0
2

1
.1

0
 :

 T
ra

c
k
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 f

lo
w

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 
A

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 I
S

P
s
 w

h
e

re
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 

 A
ll 

fo
u

r 
d

e
p

e
n

d
a

n
t 

o
n

 h
a

v
in

g
 a

 s
te

e
ri

n
g

 g
ro

u
p

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
 S

e
e

 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

b
o

v
e

 (
F

IS
-I

C
T

-A
P

-0
2

1
.6

) 

P
a
g
e
 2

3
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 155



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

D
S

P
-F

IS
-A

P
-0

1
3

 D
e

v
e

lo
p
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
ta

in
 a

 f
u
lly

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 
a

n
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 i
n

te
rn

e
t 
a

n
d

 
in

tr
a

n
e

t 
s
it
e
 

3
1

-O
c
t-

2
0

1
0
 

J
o

h
n

 F
a

rr
e

ll 
J
a

n
e

t 
B

a
rr

y
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

P
e

ri
o

d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 S
ta

tu
s
 

%
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 5
0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
a
g
e
 2

4
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 156



C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

A
ll 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 l
is

te
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 c

lie
n

t 
w

o
rk

s
tr

e
a

m
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
J
a

n
e

t 
B

a
rr

y
 

A
tt

a
in

 a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
o

f 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

t 
C

C
E

B
 -

 C
C

E
B

 t
o

 b
e

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 

in
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

 s
ix

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 o

n
 k

io
s
k
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

 R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 M

y
s
p

a
c
e

2
b

re
a

th
e

 t
e

m
p

la
te

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

  
C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 S

o
u

th
p

o
rt

 C
y
c
le

 T
o

w
n

 t
e

m
p

la
te

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

 R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
re

q
u

e
s
t 

fo
r 

S
o

u
th

p
o

rt
 E

c
o

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

te
m

p
la

te
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

 R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
q

u
e

s
t 

fo
r 

te
m

p
la

te
/s

it
e

 f
o

r 
 S

a
fe

r 
S

tr
o

n
g

e
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 f

o
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 s

tu
d

y
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

m
o

v
in

g
 

fo
rw

a
rd

  

 C
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 s

tu
d

y
 i
n

to
 t

e
m

p
la

te
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

  
 

 S
e

t 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 t

o
 d

is
c
u

s
s
, 

a
n

d
 f

in
a
lis

e
 P

I 
d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

C
S

1
 

a
n

d
 C

S
2

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

 S
e

t 
u

p
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
 a

n
d

 s
e

t 
P

I 
ta

rg
e

ts
 f

o
r 

C
S

1
 a

n
d

 

P
a
g
e
 2

5
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 157



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

D
S

P
-F

IS
-A

P
-0

1
4

 D
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

J
o

h
n

 F
a

rr
e

ll 
J
a

n
e

t 
B

a
rr

y
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

P
e

ri
o

d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 S
ta

tu
s
 

%
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 5
0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
a
g
e
 2

6
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 158



C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

A
L

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 l
is

te
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 c

lie
n

t 
w

o
rk

s
tr

e
a

m
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
J
a

n
e

t 
B

a
rr

y
 

A
g

re
e

d
 c

o
n

te
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 

s
u

rv
e

y
 

 C
o

n
ta

c
te

d
 M

o
tt

 M
a

c
D

o
n

a
ld

 t
o

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
lly

 b
o

o
k
 t

im
e

 s
lo

t 
fi
rs

t 
tw

o
 w

e
e

k
s
 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r.
 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

M
e

e
ti
n

g
 t

o
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 i
n

 e
a

rl
y
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

to
 o

b
ta

in
 c

o
s
ts

 
a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

 c
o

n
te

n
t.
 

C
o

n
d

u
c
t 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 s
u

rv
e

y
 O

n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

 P
u

b
lis

h
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 s
u

rv
e

y
, 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 N

o
t 

S
ta

rt
e

d
 

 P
u

b
lis

h
 P

I 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 N
o

t 
S

ta
rt

e
d
 

 R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 a

v
o

id
a

b
le

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
g

u
id

a
n

c
e

, 
e

n
s
u

re
 d

a
ta

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
s
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 w
ri

tt
e

n
 a

n
d

 a
re

 h
e

ld
 u

n
d

e
r 

N
I1

4
 w

it
h

in
 

S
R

IN
T
 

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

h
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 
M

a
rg

a
re

t 
C

a
rn

e
y
. 

A
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 p

la
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 b
y
 

3
1

.1
2

.0
9
 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

7
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 159



A
u
th
o
ri
s
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

S
ta
tu
s
 

D
S

P
-F

IS
-A

P
-0

1
5

 F
in

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 I
S

/a
rv

a
to

 C
o

n
ti
n

u
o

u
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

/C
u
s
to

m
e

r 
C

o
n

ta
c
t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

J
o

h
n

 F
a

rr
e

ll 
J
a

n
e

t 
B

a
rr

y
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

P
e

ri
o

d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 S
ta

tu
s
 

%
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 

 5
0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

A
ll 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 l
is

te
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
c
u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 c

lie
n

t 
w

o
rk

s
tr

e
a

m
 

3
1

-M
a

r-
2

0
1

0
 

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t 
J
a

n
e

t 
B

a
rr

y
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

h
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 
M

a
rg

a
re

t 
C

a
rn

e
y
. 

A
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 p

la
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 b
y
 

3
1

.1
2

.0
9
 

 J
u

ly
 -

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r,

 a
ll 

K
P

Is
 m

e
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

P
a
g
e
 2

8
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 160



  P
I 
R
e
f.
 

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

Y
e
a
r'
s
 

A
c
tu
a
l 

T
a
rg
e
t 
to
 b
e
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
?
 

 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 Q
2
 

E
s
ti
m
a
te
 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 Q
2
 

A
c
tu
a
l 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

T
a
rg
e
t 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

P
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
 

  D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

 

P
re
fe
rr
e
d
  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

 

C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
F

re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 

N
I 

0
1

4
 

A
v
o

id
a

b
le

 c
o

n
ta

c
t:

 T
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 

n
u

m
b

e
r,

 o
f 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
c
o

n
ta

c
ts

 p
e

r 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
re

q
u

e
s
t 

L
o

w
e

r 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
1

1
.7

5
%
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

P
a
g
e
 2

9
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 161



  P
I 
R
e
f.
 

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

Y
e
a
r'
s
 

A
c
tu
a
l 

T
a
rg
e
t 
to
 b
e
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
?
 

 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 Q
2
 

E
s
ti
m
a
te
 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 Q
2
 

A
c
tu
a
l 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

T
a
rg
e
t 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

P
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
 

  D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

 

P
re
fe
rr
e
d
  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

 

C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
F

re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

L
P

I 
 F

IS
-I

C
T

-
0

0
1
 

IC
T

 0
1

: 
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 D
e

s
k
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 
(A

b
a

n
d

o
n

e
d

 C
a

lls
) 

L
o

w
e

r  
M

o
n

th
ly
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

1
0

%
 

4
.2

8
%
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

L
P

I 
F

IS
-I

C
T

-
0

0
3
 

IC
T

 0
3

: 
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 D
e

s
k
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 
(I

n
c
id

e
n

ts
: 

F
ir

s
t 

L
in

e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
) 

H
ig

h
e

r 
M

o
n

th
ly
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

7
5

%
 

1
0

0
%
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

L
P

I 
F

IS
-I

C
T

-
0

0
4
 

IC
T

 0
4

: 
 D

e
s
k
to

p
 I

T
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

In
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
M

o
n

th
ly
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

9
5

%
 

1
0

0
%
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

L
P

I 
F

IS
-I

C
T

-
0

0
5
 

IC
T

 0
5

: 
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 I
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

A
v
a

ila
b

ili
ty
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
M

o
n

th
ly
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

9
9

%
 

1
0

0
%
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

L
P

I 
F

IS
-I

C
T

-
0

0
6
 

IC
T

 0
6

: 
 V

o
ic

e
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 A
v
a

ila
b

ili
ty
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
M

o
n

th
ly
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

9
9

%
 

1
0

0
%
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

L
P

I 
F

IS
-I

C
T

-
0

0
7
 

IC
T

 0
7

: 
 C

ri
ti
c
a

l 
A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 

A
v
a

ila
b

ili
ty
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
M

o
n

th
ly
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

9
9

.5
0

%
 

9
9

.9
5

%
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

L
P

I 
F

IS
-I

C
T

-
0

0
8
 

IC
T

 0
8

 -
 S

e
rv

e
r 

A
v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 
(A

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

s
e

rv
e

rs
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
-c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
) 

H
ig

h
e

r 
M

o
n

th
ly
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

9
9

.5
%
 

9
9

.7
7

%
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

L
P

I 
F

IS
-I

C
T

-
0

0
9
 

IC
T

 0
9

 -
 I

n
c
id

e
n

t 
R

e
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
M

o
n

th
ly
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

8
0

%
 

8
9

.3
6

%
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

L
P

I 
F

IS
-I

C
T

-
0

1
0
 

IC
T

 1
0

 -
 P

ro
je

c
t 

R
e

q
u

e
s
t 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 
(N

e
w

 W
o

rk
) 

H
ig

h
e

r 
M

o
n

th
ly
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

1
0

0
%
 

1
0

0
%
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

L
P

I 
F

IS
-I

C
T

-
0

1
1
 

IC
T

 1
1

 -
 I

n
c
id

e
n

ts
 R

e
q

u
ir

in
g

 a
 V

is
it
 b

y
 

a
n

 I
T

 T
e

c
h

n
ic

ia
n
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
M

o
n

th
ly
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

8
0

%
 

8
6

.1
8

%
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

L
P

I 
F

IS
-I

C
T

-
0

1
2
 

IC
T

 1
2

 -
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 D
e

s
k
 R

e
s
p
o

n
s
e

 
(S

e
rv

ic
e

 R
e

q
u

e
s
t:

  
F

ir
s
t 

L
in

e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
) 

H
ig

h
e

r 
M

o
n

th
ly
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 &

 N
o

 
M

e
a

s
u

re
 S

e
t 

 &
 N

o
 M

e
a

s
u

re
 

S
e

t 
N

o
 M

e
a

s
u

re
 

S
e

t 
N

o
 D

a
ta

 &
 N

o
 

M
e

a
s
u

re
 S

e
t 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 &

 N
o

 
M

e
a

s
u

re
 S

e
t 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 &

 N
o

 
M

e
a

s
u

re
 S

e
t 

P
a
g
e
 3

0
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 162



 

  P
I 
R
e
f.
 

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

Y
e
a
r'
s
 

A
c
tu
a
l 

T
a
rg
e
t 
to
 b
e
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
?
 

 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 Q
2
 

E
s
ti
m
a
te
 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 Q
2
 

A
c
tu
a
l 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

T
a
rg
e
t 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

P
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
 

  D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

 

P
re
fe
rr
e
d
  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

 

C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
F

re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

L
P

I 
F

IS
-I

C
T

-
0

1
3
 

IC
T

 1
3

 -
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
M

o
n

th
ly
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

1
0

0
%
 

1
0

0
%
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

L
P

I 
F

IS
-I

C
T

-
0

1
4
 

IC
T

 1
4

 -
 D

is
p

o
s
a

l 
o

f 
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
H

ig
h

e
r 

M
o

n
th

ly
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

9
0

%
 

1
0

0
%
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
I 

0
1

4
 

A
v
o

id
a

b
le

 c
o

n
ta

c
t:

 T
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 

n
u

m
b

e
r,

 o
f 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
c
o

n
ta

c
ts

 p
e

r 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
re

q
u

e
s
t 

L
o

w
e

r 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
1

1
.7

5
%
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
I 

1
7

9
 

V
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 –

 t
o

ta
l 
n

e
t 

v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

o
n

-g
o

in
g

 c
a

s
h

-r
e

le
a

s
in

g
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 g

a
in

s
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 

s
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 2
0

0
8

-9
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

(£
 t

h
o

u
s
a

n
d

s
) 

C
L

G
 D

S
O
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
B

i-
a

n
n

u
a

l 
7

,3
3

6
.0

0
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

8
,7

1
0

.0
0
 

Y
e

s
 

8
,7

1
0

.0
0
 

N
I 

1
8

0
 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t/
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

e
n

ti
tl
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h

e
 

y
e

a
r 

D
W

P
 D

S
O
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
7

9
0

%
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
I 

1
8

1
 

T
im

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

B
e

n
e

fi
t/

C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a
x
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

n
e

w
 

c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 e
v
e

n
ts

 D
W

P
 D

S
O
 

L
o

w
e

r 
M

o
n

th
ly
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

N
o

 D
a

ta
 

P
a
g
e
 3

1
 o

f 
3
1
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 163



Page 164

This page is intentionally left blank



   
  

REPORT TO: 
 

CABINET MEMBER – CORPORATE SERVICES 

DATE: 
 

3
rd
 February 2009 

SUBJECT: 
 

CONSULTATION ON DRAFT STATUTORY GUIDANCE ON THE 
DUTY TO RESPOND TO PETITIONS 
 

WARDS AFFECTED: 
 

ALL 

REPORT OF: 
 

CAROLINE ELWOOD, LEGAL DIRECTOR 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

ANDREA GRANT Ext 2030 

EXEMPT/ 
CONFIDENTIAL: 
 
 

NO 
 

PURPOSE/SUMMARY: 
 
To consider a draft response to the Government’s consultation on the draft statutory guidance on 
the duty to respond to petitions. 
 
 
 
 
REASON WHY DECISION REQUIRED: 
 
To enable a response to be forwarded to the Department of Communities and Local Government 
before the deadline of 24th February 2010. 
 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
That the draft response to the consultation on the draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to 
petitions be approved for submission to the Department of Communities and Local Government.   

 
 
KEY DECISION: 
 

 
No 
 

FORWARD PLAN: 
 

Not appropriate 

IMPLEMENTATION DATE: 
 

Following the expiry of the “call-in” period for the Minutes of 
this meeting. 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 165



   
  

 

 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS: 
 
None 
 

 
 
IMPLICATIONS: 
 

 
 
 

Budget/Policy Framework: 
 
 

None arising from this report. 

Financial: 

 
 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

2009/ 
2010 
£ 

2010/ 
2011 
£ 

2011/ 
2012 
£ 

2012/ 
2013 
£ 

Gross Increase in Capital Expenditure     

Funded by:     

Sefton Capital Resources      

Specific Capital Resources     

REVENUE IMPLICATIONS     

Gross Increase in Revenue Expenditure     

Funded by:     

Sefton funded Resources      

Funded from External Resources     

Does the External Funding have an expiry date? Y/N When? 

How will the service be funded post expiry?  

 
 
Legal: 
 
 

The Legal Director supports this proposal. 

Risk Assessment: 
 
 

 

Asset Management: 
 
 
 

None arising from this report. 

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN/VIEWS 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 166



   
  

 
 
CORPORATE OBJECTIVE MONITORING: 
 
Corporate 
Objective 

 Positive 
Impact 

Neutral 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact 

1 Creating a Learning Community  √  

2 Creating Safe Communities  √  

3 Jobs and Prosperity  √  

4 Improving Health and Well-Being  √  

5 Environmental Sustainability  √  

6 Creating Inclusive Communities √   

7 Improving the Quality of Council Services and 
Strengthening local Democracy 

√   

8 Children and Young People 
 

 √  

 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS RELIED UPON IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
 
 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND: 
 
1.1 Sections 10 to 22 of The Local Democracy, Economic Development and 

Construction Act 2009 include requirements for every principal local authority 
in respect of petitions. Although the Act received Royal Assent on 12th 
November 2009, the provisions relating to petitions have yet to be 
implemented and the Government is now consulting on the guidance that will 
apply to those provisions.  

 
1.2 The main statutory requirements that will relate to the Council are as follows – 

 
i) To have an on-line petition facility which allows anyone to set up a petition 
on the Council’s system, and allows anyone to ‘sign’ the petition on-line. 

 
ii) To adopt a petition scheme which sets out how the Council will 
acknowledge receipt of petitions and advise the petition organiser how the 
petition will be dealt with. The Act requires that the petition scheme define 
three categories of petition, and set a minimum number of signatures for each 
type of petition.  

 
1.3 For ‘ordinary petitions’, the authority is given wide flexibility to set the 

threshold number of signatures as high or low as it wishes, and to determine 
how such petitions will be dealt with. The Government recommend however 
that the Council set a low threshold and the Secretary of State will have the 
power to direct a Council to amend its petition scheme if it is proving to be 
unworkable.  
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 167



   
  

1.4 ‘Petitions requiring Debate’ must be reported to full Council for debate, and 
the Council will be able to set a higher number of signatures as the threshold 
for this type of petition. Note however that currently the draft guidance states 
that the threshold must be no higher than 5% of the local population.  
According to the most recent population estimates, 5% of Sefton’s population 
is 13,755. 

 
1.5 ‘Petitions to hold an officer to account’ must name a senior officer and will 

trigger an open meeting of an appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
at which the officer may be questioned by the Committee in relation to his or 
her actions on a particular matter. The Council will be able to set a different 
threshold number of signatures for this type of petition, although again, a low 
threshold is recommended. 

 
1.6 To fall in with the requirements of the scheme, the petition must relate to a 

function of the authority or, to ‘an improvement in the economic, social or 
environmental well-being of the authority’s area to which any of the authority’s 
partner authorities could contribute’. The Act provides that a petition may be 
signed by anyone who lives, works or studies in the authority’s area. 

 
1.7 The Council will be able to reject petitions which are considered to be 

vexatious, abusive or otherwise inappropriate. 
 

1.8 The new petition scheme does not apply to petitions received under other 
statutory procedures, such as petitions for an elected mayor referendum. 
Matters relating to planning decisions and licensing decisions are also 
specifically excluded.  
 

1.9 Where the petition organiser is not satisfied by the actions taken by the 
authority in response to a petition, the petition scheme must give a right of 
appeal to a relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee. That Committee will 
then be able to review the decision and action taken by way of a response 
and make appropriate recommendations. 

 
2.0 E-petitions 
 
2.1 The 2009 Act applies the same requirements to electronic petitions as to 

paper petitions, except for the following: 
 

• local authorities are only required to respond to e-petitions made through 
their e-petition facility; 
• authorities must decide, when a request to host an e-petition is received, 
whether the petition is appropriate for publishing on their web site; 
• the authority will need to decide what equates to a signature on an 
epetition  
• local authorities are required to provide a facility for people to submit 
petitions to the authority electronically. In addition to this, local authorities 
can choose to respond to e-petitions submitted by other means and 
should indicate in their petition scheme how they will deal with these types 
of petitions. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 168



   
  

 
2.2 A local authority’s petition scheme must secure that the authority’s e-petition 

facility allows citizens to create a petition which can be published online and 
made available to others for electronic signature. The Government does not 
consider that acceptance of emailed petitions meets this requirement. 

 
2.3 Authorities should consider how to integrate their e-petition process with 

relevant online information and existing online functions. The suggestion is 
that it could be linked to council meetings or decisions, to the minutes or 
webcast of the relevant meeting, to online forums and most importantly, to the 
authority’s published response to the petition. 

 
2.4 When taking the decision whether to host an e-petition the authority should 

consider pertinent issues when publishing any information of their website. Eg 
issues such as data protection, libel and the statutory requirement, as a public 
body, to comply with equalities and antidiscrimination legislation. 

 
2.5 If we decide not to host an e-petition we are required to give reasons why this 

decision has been taken. This will allow petitioners an opportunity to amend 
and resubmit their petition. 

 
2.6 The Department of Communities has indicated that further sector led best 

practice guidance on e-petitions will be available, including practical advice for 
selecting and setting up an e-petitions facility and a set of recommended data 
standards. However they have not given any timescale for this. 

 
3.0 Sefton’s current arrangements 
 
3.1 The Council already has a long established process for dealing with petitions.  

Area Committees hear and consider petitions relating to matters within their 
purview (with the exception of specific planning or licensing matters which 
follow the procedures set out in the Council and Committee procedure rules). 

 
3.2  In addition, Members of the public may attend meetings of the Council to 

present petitions, including making a brief (5 minute) statement as to the 
content of their petition.  Councillors may also present a petition on behalf of 
residents on matters affecting their ward.  The rules governing petitions at the 
moment are set out below: 

 
• Persons intending to present a petition are required to notify the Legal 

Director by 12 noon on the day before the Council Meeting.   
• Petitions need to be signed by at least 25 people, who are residents of the 

Borough.   
• Petitions must be relevant to the discharge of the Council's functions.   
• Petitions should not refer to individual officers of the Council by name.   
• Petitions are referred, without debate, to the appropriate Cabinet Member or 

Committee.   
• The Mayor, in consultation with the Legal Director, has the power to 

determine that a petition is out of order, where it does not comply with the 
above procedures. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 169



   
  

 
4.0 The Consultation 

 
4.1 The Department for Communities and Local Government is consulting on the 

draft guidance and the full consultation paper is attached at Appendix 1. 
 
4.2 The consultation paper incorporates a draft model petition scheme which 

Councils will be able to adapt for their own use.  
 
4.3 There are 12 specific questions within the consultation document and the 

closing date for responses is 24th February 2010. 
 
4.4 It should be pointed out that the consultation has raised a considerable level 

of interest within the Local Government community. A number of issues have 
been raised in connection with the proposals as they currently stand, with 
particular emphasis on required threshold levels, on-line petition 
verification/security methods and appropriate levels of accountability. 

 
5.0 Consultation Questions 
 
5.1 The consultation questions are set out below and suggested responses are in 

italics below. 
 
5.2 Question 1 - Does the guidance clearly set out the key principles and 

requirements of the petitions duty? 
 

Yes the guidance is clear but does not take into account any existing 
measures the Council has in place for dealing with petitions. 

 
5.3 Question 2 – Are there any existing areas in the guidance which require 

further clarification? 
 

There is no suggestion that a minimum threshold for petitions is set.  This 
would be essential to distinguish petitions from ordinary correspondence – 
although this would need to be set locally and at a relatively low level. 

 
For petitions that are ‘requiring debate’, this would inevitably lead to Council 
debating executive matters that are the responsibility of the Cabinet.  It would 
be helpful if the guidance allowed the formal referral of such petitions to the 
Cabinet for consideration. 

 
The issue of thresholds being set at different levels for different subject 
matters (set out in paragraph 19 of the consultation paper) could lead to a 
complicated and bureaucratic process that would be difficult to implement and 
frustrating for petitioners. 
 
The role of elected Members in instigating and promoting a petition needs to 
be clarified, particularly their role in any investigation subsequently carried 
out. 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 170



   
  

5.4 Question 3 - Are there any additional areas which you feel this statutory 
guidance should cover ?  If so, please state what they are and why you feel 
they should be included. 

 
Depending on the level of submissions, Council meetings could be 
considerably extended – a time limit for the time spent on petitions per 
Council meeting could be useful. 
 
The guidance should also cover the issue of multiple petitions on the same 
topic. 
 

5.5 Question 4 - Are there any additional areas which, while not appropriate for 
statutory guidance, you would like to see covered by sector-led guidance? 

 
It would be helpful to have some guidance on protocols for dealing with cross-
boundary petitions to enable them to be dealt with in a consistent manner. 

 
5.6 Question 5 - Are there any areas covered in this statutory guidance which you 

feel would be more appropriately covered in sector-led guidance? If so, 
please state what they are and why you feel they should be addressed in this 
way. 

 
 See response to Question 4 above. 
 
5.7  Question 6 - Do you think the model scheme is clearly expressed and easy for 

people to use ? Please give your reasons 
 
 Yes subject to the details on thresholds set out above. 
 
5.8 Question 7 - Do you think the standards set in the model scheme are 

achievable and appropriate to citizens expectations ? 
 
 Yes 
 
5.9 Question 8 - Do you think there is anything that should be added to the model 

scheme ? 
 
 No but it could be subject to review following a period of operation. 
 
5.10 Question 9 - Do you agree with the categories we have excluded in the order? 

If you do not agree with the categories please explain why you do not think 
they should be excluded. 

 
 Yes  
 
5.11 Question 10 - Do you think there should be additional categories excluded? If 

so please state what they are and why you feel they should be excluded 
 

The exclusion of petitions relating to politically controversial subjects around 
elections should be considered 

Agenda Item 7

Page 171



   
  

 
5.12 Question 11 - Following on from this consultation, what do you consider the 

most appropriate timescale for bringing the petitions duty into force? Please 
explain your reasons 

 
The proposed timetable for implementation (1st April 2010) would be tight to 
achieve and is close to the local government elections.  It may be more 
appropriate to introduce at the start of the new Municipal Year. 

 
5.13 Question 12 - Initial discussions with both the local government and 

technology sector indicate that it would be wise to stagger the implementation 
of the e-petition element of the duty, bringing the e-petition requirements into 
force 12 months after the other elements of the duty are commenced. Do you 
agree? Please explain your reasons. 

 
Yes - It is sensible to introduce the e-petitions element once systems can be 
tested and quality assured.  However, it may be confusing to stagger 
implementation. 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 172



Listening to communities:
Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty 
to respond to petitions

www.communities.gov.uk
community, opportunity, prosperity

Agenda Item 7

Page 173



December 2009
Department for Communities and Local Government

Listening to communities:
Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty 
to respond to petitions

Agenda Item 7

Page 174



Communities and Local Government 
Eland House
Bressenden Place
London
SW1E 5DU
Telephone: 030 3444 0000
Website: www.communities.gov.uk

© Crown Copyright, 2009

Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown.

This publication, excluding logos, may be reproduced free of charge in any format or medium for research,
private study or for internal circulation within an organisation. This is subject to it being reproduced accurately
and not used in a misleading context. The material must be acknowledged as Crown copyright and the title
of the publication specified.

Any other use of the contents of this publication would require a copyright licence. Please apply for a Click-Use Licence 
for core material at www.opsi.gov.uk/click-use/system/online/pLogin.asp, or by writing to the Office of Public Sector 
Information, Information Policy Team, Kew, Richmond, Surrey TW9 4DU

e-mail: licensing@opsi.gov.uk

If you require this publication in an alternative format please email alternativeformats@communities.gsi.gov.uk

Communities and Local Government Publications
Tel: 0300 123 1124
Fax: 0300 123 1125
Email: product@communities.gsi.gov.uk
Online via the Communities and Local Government website: www.communities.gov.uk

75%

December 2009

Reference number: 09CA06127

ISBN: 978-1-4098-1941-7

Agenda Item 7

Page 175



Ministerial foreword | 3

Ministerial foreword

Over the past decade, there has been a steady and 

sustained transfer of power to local authorities as part of the 

Government’s drive to improve public services and make them 

more responsive as well as efficient. Local authorities are firmly 

at the heart of this shift of power, enabling them to hold key 

service providers, such as police and health, to account to their 

local residents.

This transfer of power has confirmed the importance of elected local authorities to the 

Government. We are clear that the foundation of their importance lies with individual 

citizens, not with the institutions themselves. The founding principle of local government 

is that citizens have the right to influence the decisions that affect their lives and their 

communities. Sometimes they may exercise this right through personalised services and 

sometimes by influencing local services – for example, by having a direct say over how their 

neighbourhood is policed. And sometimes it will be through lobbying their council. But a 

key way in which local citizens are able to exercise that right is their ability to elect a strong 

local council which can lead and shape their area.

That is why the role of councillors and councils, with their unique democratic mandate, 

is critical to making sure that local services are responsive to the needs of their local 

communities. Citizens have a right to have their voices heard, and to expect those 

delivering services to care what they think.

Through the petitions duty in the Local Democracy, Economic Development and 

Construction Act, we are supporting these principles by ensuring that citizens know how 

they can voice their concerns with their council and know how these concerns have been 

taken into account. Through petitions, councils in turn have a valuable opportunity to 

demonstrate strong local leadership, for example, advocating of behalf of their community 

with local partners where there are community concerns that services are under-

performing.

This consultation on the draft statutory guidance and secondary legislation to support the 

petitions duty is a further step towards the Government’s important aim to strengthen 

local democracy.

John Denham

Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Agenda Item 7

Page 176



Contents | 5

Contents

About this consultation 9

Draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions 11

Introduction 11

Chapter 1 The petition scheme 13

Summary of requirements 14

Designing a petition scheme 15

Responding to petitions 16

Verification of signatures and acknowledgement 17

Relevant matters 17

Exclusions 17

  Vexatious, abusive or otherwise inappropriate 17

  Petitions under other enactments 18

  Matters excluded by regulation 18

Appropriate steps 19

E-petitions 21

Chapter 2 Petition debates 23

The debate 23

Setting the threshold for debates 24

Exclusions 24

Chapter 3 Giving evidence 25

Existing guidance 25

Setting an appropriate threshold 25

Officers to which Section 16 applies 26

Appropriate officer 26

Giving ‘grounds’ 27

Reporting 27

Chapter 4 Petition reviews 28

Triggering a meeting of the full council 29

Publicising the outcome of the review 29

Annex A – Draft model scheme 30

Annex B – Draft petitions order 37

Summary of consultation questions 43

Agenda Item 7

Page 177



Contents | 7

Scope of the consultation

Topic of this 
consultation:

The Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 
2009 contains a duty on local authorities to respond to petitions. This 
consultation is to gather feedback on the draft statutory guidance and 
secondary legislation underpinning the duty. 

Scope of this 
consultation:

This consultation asks whether the guidance adequately explains the 
key principles and requirements of the duty, whether it is clear and 
easily understood with an appropriate level of detail. It also asks views 
on the matters to be excluded from the duty through the draft order 
at Annex B and on suitable timescales for implementation. Specific 
questions can be found at the end of this consultation document.

Geographical 
scope:

This legislation applies to England and Wales but this consultation, the 
guidance and the draft order only apply to England.

Impact 
Assessment:

The petitions duty is considered to have impact only on the public 
sector and estimated costs fall below the impact assessment 
threshold.

New burdens
The proposals set out in this consultation will impose costs on 
local authorities; they may also deliver savings. In line with the 
Government’s new burdens doctrine, any net additional cost will be 
fully and properly funded by the Department for Communities and 
Local Government so that no additional pressure is placed on council 
tax bills.

Basic information

To: This consultation seeks the views of principal local authorities, 
community and third sector organisations and members of the public.

Body/bodies 
responsible 
for the 
consultation:

Community Action Division in Communities and Local Government.

Duration: This consultation will run for 12 weeks from Wednesday 2 December 
2009 until Wednesday 24 February 2010.

Enquiries: For more information please contact Carl Laughna on 0303 44 42044 
or at Carl.Laughna@communities.gsi.gov.uk or Emma Hagan on 
0303 44 42010 or at Emma.Hagan@communities.gsi.gov.uk

Agenda Item 7

Page 178



8 | Listening to communities: Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

How to 
respond:

Please send responses by email to petitions@communities.gsi.gov.uk

Or by post to

Listening to Communities Consultation
Eland House 5/B4
Bressenden Place
London
SW1E 5DU

Responses can also be submitted online at www.communities.gov.uk

Additional 
ways to 
become 
involved:

A network of local authority expert practitioners in the field of 
petitions has been formed. The network has been established to 
provide advice and support to local authorities on the petitions duty. 
They will also be facilitating an online forum to discuss the draft 
guidance which can be found at the IDeA community of practice 
website: http://www.communities.idea.gov.uk/.

Views expressed in these discussions will also be fed into the 
consultation process.

After the 
consultation:

We will analyse responses to the consultation and they will be used to 
inform the final version of the statutory guidance and model scheme 
which will underpin the petitions duty when it comes into effect.

A summary of the responses received will also be published on 
the Department’s website within three months of the close of the 
consultation.

Compliance 
with the Code 
of Practice on 
Consultation:

This consultation complies with the Government’s Code of Practice on 
Consultation.

Background

Getting to this 
stage:

The petitions duty was a commitment in the Government’s 
Empowerment white paper Communities in control: Real people, 
real power and was in response to the Local Petitions and Calls 
for Action Consultation which ran from December 2007 to 
March 2008.

Previous 
engagement:

Local Petitions and Calls for Action Consultation which ran from 
December 2007 to March 2008.

Agenda Item 7

Page 179



About this consultation | 9

About this consultation

This consultation document and consultation process have been planned to adhere 1.

to the Code of Practice on Consultation issued by the Department for Business, 

Innovation and Skills and is in line with the seven consultation criteria, which are:

formal consultation should take place at a stage when there is scope to influence 

the policy outcome

consultations should normally last for at least 12 weeks with consideration given 

to longer timescales where feasible and sensible

consultation documents should be clear about the consultation process, what is 

being proposed, the scope to influence and the expected costs and benefits of 

the proposals

consultation exercises should be designed to be accessible to, and clearly 

targeted at, those people the exercise is intended to reach

keeping the burden of consultation to a minimum is essential if consultations are 

to be effective and if consultees’ buy-in to the process is to be obtained

consultation responses should be analysed carefully and clear feedback should 

be provided to participants following the consultation

officials running consultations should seek guidance in how to run an effective 

consultation exercise and share what they have learned from the experience

Representative groups are asked to give a summary of the people and organisations 2.

they represent, and where relevant who else they have consulted in reaching their 

conclusions when they respond.

Information provided in response to this consultation, including personal 3.

information, may be published or disclosed in accordance with the access to 

information regimes (these are primarily the Freedom of Information Act 2000 

(FOIA), the Data Protection Act 1998 (DPA) and the Environmental Information 

Regulations 2004).

If you want the information that you provide to be treated as confidential, please be 4.

aware that, under the FOIA, there is a statutory Code of Practice with which public 

authorities must comply and which deals, amongst other things, with obligations 

of confidence. In view of this it would be helpful if you could explain to us why you 

regard the information you have provided as confidential. If we receive a request for 

disclosure of the information we will take full account of your explanation, but we 

cannot give an assurance that confidentiality can be maintained in all circumstances. 

An automatic confidentiality disclaimer generated by your IT system will not, of itself, 

be regarded as binding on the department.

Agenda Item 7

Page 180



10 | Listening to communities: Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

The Department for Communities and Local Government will process your personal 5.

data in accordance with DPA and in the majority of circumstances this will mean that 

your personal data will not be disclosed to third parties.

Individual responses will not be acknowledged unless specifically requested.6.

Your opinions are valuable to us. Thank you for taking the time to read this document 7.

and respond.

Are you satisfied that this consultation has followed these criteria? If not or you have 8.

any other observations about how we can improve the process please contact:

CLG Consultation Co-ordinator

Zone 6/H10

Eland House

London SW1E 5DU

or by e-mail to: consultationcoordinator@communities.gsi.gov.uk

Agenda Item 7

Page 181



Listening to communities:  draft statutory guidance on the duty  to respond to petitions | 11

Listening to communities: 
draft statutory guidance on the duty 
to respond to petitions

Introduction

Context

The Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 (referred 1.

to in this document as ‘the 2009 Act’) aims to reinvigorate local democracy – putting 

local authorities at the forefront of the drive to reconnect people with public and 

political decision-making. This democratic renewal is about restoring trust and 

confidence in local government and its institutions and its starting point is the citizen.

While the Place Survey shows that 80 per cent2. 1 of people are happy with their area, 

satisfaction with the way the council runs things is low at 45 per cent. The perception 

in communities that people can influence decisions that affect their local area is even 

lower. The duty to respond to petitions is an important step towards addressing this.

Signing a petition is one way for citizens to express their concerns and priorities to 3.

their local authority and the Citizenship Survey shows that petitions are the most 

popular and recognised form of civic action2. Some local authorities already have 

well developed processes for responding to petitions and approach them as an 

opportunity to listen to the community and demonstrate strong local leadership.

However, this is not the case across the board. Communities and Local Government 4.

examined all English local authority websites in April 2008, and found that only one 

in five councils make details about how to submit a petition publicly available. In a 

climate where only 393 per cent of people feel they can influence decisions in their 

local area and in some areas only 484 per cent feel that their council keeps them well 

informed about the services it provides, it is essential that we ensure people can easily 

find out how to send their views about public services to local decision makers. If not, 

people will continue to feel that their views are not welcome, and will be discouraged 

from trying to get involved in local decisions in the future.

1 Place Survey: England – Headline Results 2008 (Revised), 
http://www.communities.gov.uk/publications/corporate/statistics/placesurvey2008

2 60 per cent of those people who engaged in an act of civic participation in 2007-2008 signed a petition, Citizenship Survey, 
2007-2008

3 Citizenship Survey April to December 2007

4 Place Survey

Agenda Item 7

Page 182



12 | Listening to communities: Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

The petitions provisions in the 2009 Act, combined with the duty to promote 5.

democracy also in that Act, are a significant step towards addressing this situation.

Guidance

The draft statutory guidance to which local authorities will be required to pay 6.

regard can be found on pages 13 – 36. This part of the document sets out the key 

principles and key requirements of the petitions duty. It gives guidance to which local 

authorities5 must have regard when designing and complying with their petition 

scheme and information about the role of overview and scrutiny committees 

under these requirements. It also contains, at Annex A, a model scheme which 

local authorities may choose to adopt or to adapt to local circumstances. This 

guidance does not replicate the provisions set out in the legislation and should be 

read in conjunction with Sections 10 – 22 of the 2009 Act and the Local Authorities 

(Petitions)(England) Order2009 (see draft order at Annex B).

5 The petitions duty applies to principal local authorities, defined for the purpose of Chapter 2 of the Local Democracy, Economic 
Development and Construction 2009 Act as a) a county council in England; b) a district council in England; c) a London borough 
council; d) the Common Council of the City of London in its capacity as a local authority; e) the Council of the Isles of Scilly; f) a county 
or county borough council in Wales. However, this guidance applies only to principal local authorities in England.

Agenda Item 7

Page 183



Chapter 1 The petition scheme | 13

Chapter 1

The petition scheme

Key principles:

ensuring that local people know how to express their views

local authorities will take action to respond to petitions

local people know that their views have been listened to

keeping prescribed requirements on councils to a minimum, and

building on local authority best practice

Key outcome:

Everyone, no matter where they live, will be easily able to find information 

about how to petition their local authority and they will know what to expect 

from their local authority in response.

Overview

The petitions duty in the Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction 7.

Act 2009 means that for the first time councils will be required to respond to petitions 

and tell local people what action is going to be taken to address their concerns. 

Petitions can no longer be ignored because they raise a difficult or challenging issue 

in the local area.

Government believes that local authorities should approach their petition scheme 8.

from the starting point of responding to all the petitions they receive. Petitions 

are an important tool for local people to raise concerns with their locally elected 

representatives and we expect petitions to trigger action where appropriate. This 

guidance includes examples of the responses local authorities should consider in 

four key areas, under-performing schools, alcohol related crime and disorder, under-

performing health services and anti-social behaviour.

The model scheme at Annex A demonstrates these principles by setting out that all 9.

petitions, regardless of the number of signatures, will receive a response providing 

they follow the guidelines set out in the scheme. The model scheme also gives details 

about the types of action the ‘model’ local authority will take in response to petitions 

on key areas of concern.

Agenda Item 7

Page 184



14 | Listening to communities: Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

Summary of requirements

The Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 requires 10.

all principal local authorities in England to establish a scheme for handling petitions 

made to the authority.

The scheme:11.

must be approved by a meeting of the full council before it comes into force

must be published on the principal local authority’s website and by any other 

method appropriate for bringing it to the attention of those who live, work or 

study in its area

can be revised at any time but the revised scheme must be approved and 

publicised as detailed above

the authority must comply with its petition scheme

The 2009 Act requires petition schemes to meet some minimum standards in order 12.

to ensure minimum entitlements which all citizens can expect. Beyond this small 

number of requirements local authorities have a high level of flexibility about how 

they approach the duty – leaving a lot of scope for local determination.

The requirements are:13.

anyone who lives, works or studies in the local authority area, including under 

18’s, can sign or organise a petition and trigger a response

a facility for making electronic petitions is provided by the local authority

petitions must be acknowledged within a time period specified by the local 

authority

among the many possible steps that the principal local authority may choose 

to take in response to a petition, the following steps must be included in the 

scheme:

– taking the action requested in the petition

– considering the petition at a meeting of the authority

– holding an inquiry

– holding a public meeting

– commissioning research

– a written response to the petition organiser setting out the authority’s views 

on the request in the petition

– referring the petition to an overview and scrutiny committee

Agenda Item 7

Page 185



Chapter 1 The petition scheme | 15

petitions with a significant level of support trigger a debate of the full council. 

Councils will determine this threshold locally but it must be no higher than 5 per 

cent of the local population (see Chapter 2)

petitions with a requisite level of support, set by the local authority, trigger a 

senior local government officer to give evidence at a meeting of the authority’s 

overview and scrutiny committee (see Chapter 3)

petition organisers6 can prompt a review of the local authority’s response if the 

response is felt to be inadequate (see Chapter 4)

The requirements listed above are the minimum set by the 2009 Act. Local 14.

authorities are encouraged to consider designing a scheme which is wider than these 

requirements, for example, responding to petitions from those who do not live, work 

or study in the local area or e-petitions which are not made through the authority’s 

own e-petition facility.

Section 18 of the 2009 Act clarifies that local authorities can include other 15.

information which they consider to be appropriate in their petition scheme. For 

example, details about how they handle petitions which do not qualify under 

the scheme or which apply to the functions of another principal local authority, 

particularly in areas with two tiers of local government.

Once published the local authority must comply with its petition scheme but can 16.

revise it at any time by taking the steps set out in Section 11 of the 2009 Act.

Designing a petition scheme

Principal local authorities, when designing their petition scheme, are expected to17.

take into account local circumstances to ensure that the scheme is locally 

appropriate; for example, the same thresholds set in a densely populated urban 

area may not be suitable for a rural authority

ensure that the scheme is accessible to all; for example, an authority could 

decide to promote its petition scheme as part of its responsibility to promote 

understanding of the council under the requirements of the duty to promote 

democracy, the e-petitions facility is compliant with web accessibility standards

ensure that the process is easy for citizens to use; for example, that the scheme 

sets thresholds which are achievable for petitions on very local, as well as 

authority wide, concerns, no previous knowledge of council procedure is needed 

in order to submit a petition, the scheme is written in Plain English, people know 

what they have to do in order to receive a response

6 “petition organiser”, in relation to a petition made to a principal local authority, means—

(a) the person designated in the petition as the person with whom the authority may deal in relation to the petition, or

(b) such other person as agrees with the authority to be the person with whom the authority may deal in relation to the petition;

Agenda Item 7

Page 186



16 | Listening to communities: Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

Government expects any thresholds which local authorities decide to set to be locally 18.

achievable. We expect that where practical local authorities will set low thresholds, 

such as those used in the model scheme at Annex A. The model scheme takes the 

approach already used by some local authorities of setting no threshold for triggering 

a response to a petition. This means the ‘model’ local authority responds to all the 

petitions it receives, providing that the petition follows the guidelines set out in the 

scheme i.e. the petition is not discriminatory or about an excluded matter such as a 

planning decision.

Local authorities should also consider whether variable thresholds would be 19.

appropriate to their local circumstances. For example, top tier authorities might 

consider what appropriate thresholds might be set for matters specific to each 

of their constituent district areas. Government expects local authorities’ petition 

schemes to ensure that petitions on very local issues, such as anti-social behaviour in 

a particular street, will receive a response from the council. Setting no threshold, or 

thresholds which vary depending on the issue or geographic location affected might 

be one method of achieving this.

Thresholds can be reviewed after a period of activity and amended if necessary 20.

provided the process set out in paragraph 11 and Section 11 of the 2009 Act is 

followed. Should it become apparent that a principal local authority, or authorities, 

are setting requirements which are unachievable, the Secretary of State has the 

power to direct the principal local authority, or authorities, to amend their petition 

scheme.

The model petition scheme at Annex A can be used by local authorities as a starting 21.

point and guide as to how a scheme might operate. Principal local authorities may 

choose to adopt this scheme as a whole or amend it to reflect local circumstances.

Responding to petitions

As a minimum, a local authority’s petition scheme must apply if a petition:22.

calls for the authority to take action

is signed by the requisite number of people who live, work or study in the 

local area

is made under another enactment but does not qualify under that enactment 

(see paragraph 33)

If made electronically, is made through the authority’s e-petition facility

Agenda Item 7

Page 187



Chapter 1 The petition scheme | 17

Verification of signatures and acknowledgement

Local authorities can choose to verify the signatures given on a petition should 23.

they wish. Authorities must take account of the signatures of people who provide 

valid addresses where they live, work or study within the local authority area; but 

authorities may take account of signatures of people who do not supply such 

information, or supply information which shows that they do not live, work or study 

in the area.

In the case of e-petitions the local authority must decide what counts as an authentic 24.

signature, for example it might decide that a valid email address is sufficient, a valid 

postcode or both.

All petitions which meet the scheme criteria (see Section 12(1) of the 2009 Act) must 25.

be acknowledged within the period specified in the authority’s scheme.

Relevant matters

Petitions are a valuable opportunity for local authorities to demonstrate strong 26.

leadership on issues of concern to the community. As community leaders and place 

shapers local authorities have a key interest in issues which, although wider than 

their functions, affect the local area. In view of this, and their role in the local area 

agreement process, Section 14(2)(b)(ii) of the 2009 Act requires top tier authorities 

to respond to petitions which relate to an improvement in the economic, social 

or environmental well-being of the authority’s area to which any of its partner 

authorities could contribute. This means that these local authorities must deal with 

petitions which relate to the functions of partner authorities as well as petitions 

which relate to their own functions, including petitions on matters which are sub-

regional and cross-authority.

In practice, this may mean acting as an advocate for the local community, working 27.

with partners to resolve the issue, lobbying a partner organisation on behalf of the 

community or instigating an overview and scrutiny review of the issue.

Should a petition of this sort call for something which goes against council policy a 28.

principal local authority may choose to say ‘no’ to the request. However, to ensure 

the step taken in response to the petition is substantive a local authority must clearly 

explain their position in their response.

Exclusions

Vexatious, abusive or otherwise inappropriate

Local authorities should approach the petitions they receive positively and not 29.

assume that the motivation is one which is vexatious, abusive or inappropriate. 

However, petitions, which are in the opinion of the authority vexatious, abusive or 

otherwise inappropriate, do not qualify under the Section 14 requirement to take 

steps in response to the petition. Principal local authorities must acknowledge these 

Agenda Item 7

Page 188



18 | Listening to communities: Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

petitions, as set out in Section 13 of the 2009 Act, and this acknowledgement should 

explain why the authority will not be taking action.

When considering whether a petition is vexatious a principal local authority should 30.

use as a starting point the guidance under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

Guidance to the Act states that “Deciding whether a [Freedom of Information] 

request is vexatious is a flexible balancing exercise, taking into account all the 

circumstances of the case. There is no rigid test or definition, and it will often be 

easy to recognise. The key question is whether the request is likely to cause distress, 

disruption or irritation, without any proper or justified cause”7. In most circumstances 

it should be the subject matter of the petition, rather than the personality of the 

petitioners or the manner in which the issue is supported, that is the deciding factor.

It is important that petitions which are abusive or otherwise inappropriate are also 31.

identified at this stage. Particular care must be taken when considering petitions 

which call for an officer to give evidence under Section 16 of the 2009 Act that 

these petitions relate to the role of the individual in delivering public services and not 

matters relating to an officer’s personality or private life.

The types of petitions which local authorities may consider inappropriate include 32.

those relating to matters which are part of ongoing legal proceedings or which target 

individual members of a community. However, the decision on what constitutes an 

inappropriate petition is ultimately for the local authority to decide considering the 

circumstances of the individual case.

Petitions under other enactments

Petitions made under other enactments, such as petitions under the Local 33.

Government Act 2000 asking for referendum on whether the area should have an 

elected mayor, should be dealt with according to the procedures set out in those 

enactments. If such a petition fails to meet the requirements of the enactment in 

question, for example a petition under the 2000 Act does not achieve the requisite 

number of signatures, it should be addressed through a local authority’s petition 

scheme in exactly the same manner as any other petition.

Matters excluded by order

In order not to duplicate procedures where established processes exist for 34.

communities to have their say Government has excluded the following matters from 

the scope of the petitions duty (see Annex B for draft order):

any matter relating to a planning decision, including about a development plan 

document or the community infrastructure levy

7 http://www.ico.gov.uk/upload/documents/library/freedom_of_information/detailed_specialist_guides/wareness_guidance_22_
vexatious_and_repeated_requests_final.pdf

Agenda Item 7

Page 189



Chapter 1 The petition scheme | 19

any matter relating to a licensing decision, including licensing applications under 

the Licensing Act 20003 and the Gambling Act 2005

any matter relating to an individual or entity in respect of which that individual or 

entity has a right of recourse to a review or right of appeal conferred by or under 

any enactment

However, failure to deliver services in these areas remain within the scope of the duty. 35.

For example, a petition on an individual planning application is excluded from the 

duty but a petition about the local authority’s failure to deliver an effective service for 

planning applications would be within scope.

When in receipt of a petition on an excluded matter a principal local authority should 36.

acknowledge receipt of the petition and explain why the matter is not covered by 

the authority’s petition scheme. If the petition can be taken into account as part of 

existing procedures, the authority should explain how this will happen. If the petition 

cannot be taken into account as part of these procedures a principal local authority 

should explain the existing arrangements for communities to have their say as part of 

the process in question.

Appropriate steps

Principal local authorities are required to take appropriate steps when responding 37.

to the petitions they receive. A local authority’s response should be proportionate 

to the seriousness of the issue and the level of support contained in the petition. 

The actions referred to above (see paragraph 13) and in Section14(6) of the 2009 

Act need to be among those considered but should not be regarded as the only 

options. Government encourages authorities to be innovative when considering 

their response to petitions, including considering any courses of action open to 

them that are specific to the subject of the petition.

Examples of appropriate steps local authorities should consider in response to specific 38.

subjects are included in the table below:

Petition subject Appropriate steps

Alcohol related crime 
and disorder

If a local authority receives a petition about alcohol-related 
crime or disorder, Government expects them to fully consider 
with their partners the range of options available to them 
including considering the case for establishing a designated 
public place order or, as a last resort, establishing and 
imposing an alcohol disorder zone covering the relevant area.

Agenda Item 7

Page 190



20 | Listening to communities: Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

Anti-social behaviour 
(ASB)

As the elected representatives of the local area, and often 
as social landlord and licensing authority, local councils have 
a significant role to play in tackling anti-social behaviour. 
Recently crime and disorder reduction partnerships, of 
which local authorities are a constituent member, have been 
challenged to set minimum service standards and publicise 
these to their local communities by March 2010. The police 
and many local authorities also have a target to increase 
public confidence that the police and council are working 
together to deal with crime and ASB issues that matter most 
locally. As such, when responding to petitions on ASB, local 
authorities are expected to consider, in consultation with local 
partners, all the options available to them including the wide 
range of powers and mechanisms they have to intervene as 
part of these roles. They should, for example, work with the 
neighbourhood policing team in the affected area to identify 
what action might be taken, consider identifying a dedicated 
contact within the council to liaise with the community, 
Registered Social Landlords and other neighbourhood 
partners on issues of ASB in the area in question and, 
where appropriate, alert the crime and disorder reduction 
partnership and crime and disorder overview and scrutiny 
committee to the issues highlighted in the petition.

Under-performing 
schools

Local authorities are expected to consider, in consultation with 
local partners, all the options available to them when working 
with schools to secure their improvement. For example, 
on behalf of the local authority, the school improvement 
partner (SIP) will play a pivotal role, challenging and brokering 
support for poorly performing schools. Where a school 
is under performing the local authority should consider 
whether it is appropriate in the circumstances to issue a 
warning notice outlining expectations and a timeframe for 
the school to improve its performance standards. Other 
measures available to local authorities, where schools fail to 
comply with a warning notice or are in an Ofsted category 
of notice to improve (requiring significant improvement) or 
special measures include; appointing additional governors, 
establishing an interim executive board, removal of the 
school’s delegated budgets, requiring the school to enter 
into a formal contract or partnership or, only if the school is in 
special measures, closure.

Agenda Item 7

Page 191



Chapter 1 The petition scheme | 21

Under-performing 
health services

Local authorities are expected to work with local health 
partners to consider the matter raised in the petition 
including, where appropriate, exploring what role the Local 
Involvement Network (LINk) might have in reviewing and 
feeding back on the issue. The health overview and scrutiny 
committee should also be alerted to the petition and where 
the matter is sufficiently or potentially serious, the issue 
should be referred to them to consider for review.

The local authority must notify the petition organiser of the steps it intends to take 39.

and publish this notification on the authority’s website.

E-petitions

The 2009 Act applies the same requirements to electronic petitions as to paper 40.

petitions, except for the following:

principal local authorities are only required to respond to e-petitions made 

through their e-petition facility

principal local authorities must decide, when a request to host an e-petition is 

received, whether the petition is appropriate for publishing on their facility

principal local authorities will decide what equates to a signature on an e-petition 

(see paragraph 24 above and also Section 12(3)(b) of the 2009 Act)

Principal local authorities are required to provide a facility for people to submit 

petitions to the authority electronically. In addition to this, local authorities can 

choose to respond to e-petitions submitted by other means and should indicate 

in their petition scheme how they will deal with these types of petitions.

A local authority’s petition scheme must secure that the authority’s e-petition 41.

facility allows citizens to create a petition which can be published online and made 

available to others for electronic signature. Government does not consider that mere 

acceptance of emailed petitions meets this requirement.

Local authorities should consider how best to integrate their e-petition process 42.

with relevant online information and existing online functions, for example, linking 

petitions to council meetings or decisions, to the minutes or webcast of the relevant 

meeting, to online forums and most importantly, to the authority’s published 

response to the petition.

When taking the decision whether to host an e-petition principal local authorities 43.

should, in addition to following the guidance above on vexatious, abusive and 

otherwise inappropriate petitions, consider those issues pertinent when publishing 

Agenda Item 7

Page 192



22 | Listening to communities: Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

any information of their website. For example, issues such as data protection, libel 

and the statutory requirement, as a public body, to comply with equalities and anti-

discrimination legislation8.

Under Section 10 (2) of the 2009 Act principal local authorities are required to give 44.

reasons should they decide not to host an e-petition. This will allow petitioners an 

opportunity to amend and resubmit their petition.

Further sector led best practice guidance on e-petitions will be available, including 45.

practical advice for selecting and setting up an e-petitions facility and a set of 

recommended data standards.

8 Section 33 of the Equality Act 2006 for sets out a list of “equality enactments” covering equalities and anti-discrimination legislation

Agenda Item 7

Page 193



Chapter 2 Petition debates | 23

Chapter 2

Petition debates

Key principle:

Local people know that their views have been listened to and they have the 

opportunity to hear their local representatives debate their concerns.

Key outcome:

Local people will know that if they can get the number of signatures specified 

in their council’s petitions scheme, they will be guaranteed a public, full council 

debate on their concerns.

A systematic review of evidence on empowerment found that when petitions are 46.

linked with decision making there are increased levels of empowerment9. Section 15 

of the 2009 Act therefore requires that petitions which receive a significant level of 

support should be debated at a meeting of the full council. Principal local authorities 

are required to set out in their petition scheme the number of signatures needed to 

trigger a debate as part of the authority’s response. This debate may be added to the 

agenda of a normal meeting of the full council.

Where a petition receives the required level of support to trigger a council debate 47.

the council should also consider what other steps they should take in order to ensure 

their response is adequate (see Chapter 4 – Petition Reviews). A debate alone may 

not be considered a sufficient response to a petition with this level of support.

The debate

The principle behind a petition debate is the increased transparency of the local 48.

decision making process. Therefore the petition organiser should be informed in 

writing about when the debate will be held and with sufficient notice to enable their 

attendance. This notification should also be published on the authority’s website.

Petitioners should be offered the option of presenting their petition to the council 49.

at the beginning of the debate. Principal local authorities should also consider 

what other contribution the petitioners might make to the discussion, for example, 

answering questions put by councillors.

9 Empowering communities to influence local decision making – A systematic review of the evidence, Communities and Local 
Government 2009, http://www.communities.gov.uk/publications/localgovernment/localdecisionreview

Agenda Item 7

Page 194



24 | Listening to communities: Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

The debate should conclude with a decision being taken by the full council. 50.

This could be a decision to take the action the petition requests, not to take the 

action requested for reasons put forward in the debate, or to commission further 

investigation into the matter, for example by a relevant committee. In line with the 

principle that local authorities should listen to the people they represent, and give 

them feedback, the petition organiser should then receive written notification of this 

decision. The notification should also be published on the local authority’s website.

Setting the threshold for debates

Local authorities are required to set a threshold for triggering a full council debate 51.

and to include this information in their petition scheme. We recommend where 

practical, that local authorities set low thresholds, such as those used in the model 

scheme at Annex A, at the outset. These thresholds can be reviewed after a period of 

activity and amended if necessary provided the process set out in paragraph 11 and 

Section 11 of the 2009 Act is followed. If, for example, no debates were triggered 

in the space of a year, a local authority should review their threshold and consider 

lowering it in order to ensure that it is locally achievable.

Should it become apparent that a local authority, or authorities, are setting 52.

requirements which are unachievable, the Secretary of State has the power to direct 

a principal local authority, or authorities, to amend their petition scheme.

The draft order at annex B stipulates that the absolute maximum threshold which 53.

can be set is 5 per cent10 of the local population. We expect that in most cases a much 

lower figure will be considered locally appropriate. The maximum figure should be 

calculated using the estimate of the population of the area of the authority contained 

in the Registrar General’s population estimates for England and Wales published by 

the Office of National Statistics. The threshold should be expressed in the scheme as 

a simple figure so that people know the number of signatures they need to trigger a 

debate (see model scheme at Annex A for an example).

Exclusions

An authority is not required to hold a debate in response to any petition which falls 54.

outside the scheme, for example because it is vexatious, or relates to a licensing or 

planning decision. Petitions calling for evidence from an officer are also excluded 

from the requirement to hold a debate.

10 The 5 per cent maximum threshold is a proxy figure, easy for local authorities to calculate, but not directly related to the number of 
people eligible to sign a petition.

Agenda Item 7

Page 195



Chapter 3 Giving evidence | 25

Chapter 3

Giving evidence

Key principle:

Local people know that their views have been listened to.

Key outcome:

Local people have the right to petition for a senior member of council staff 

to attend a public meeting of the council’s overview and scrutiny committee. 

If enough people sign the petition, a senior officer will have to attend the 

meeting, answer the committee’s questions and explain how they are 

delivering public services.

Principal local authorities’ petition schemes must allow for petitions to trigger a 55.

senior member of council staff to attend a meeting of the authority’s overview and 

scrutiny committee and answer questions about their work. This builds on existing 

powers of overview and scrutiny committees who can already require members and 

officers to attend a meeting of the committee and give evidence. It is based on the 

principle that local government should be as transparent as possible and that officers 

are accountable to elected members. It allows members of the local community to 

make use of petitions to influence the way that this scrutiny takes place.

Existing guidance

Guidance56. 11 under the Local Government Act 2000 is already in place to cover the 

way in which overview and scrutiny committees should conduct themselves when 

questioning an officer of the local authority – including, for example, considering 

the appropriate seniority of witnesses to ensure that junior officers are not put under 

undue pressure, and restricting questions to matters of fact and explanation.

Setting an appropriate threshold

Local authorities must consider the detail of how these provisions should work in the 57.

broader context of their petition scheme. An authority’s petition scheme must specify 

how many signatures will be needed to require an officer to attend a public hearing.

11 New council constitutions: guidance to English Authorities
http://www.communities.gov.uk/documents/localgovernment/pdf/155181.pdf

Agenda Item 7

Page 196



26 | Listening to communities: Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

Local authorities should consider a suitable threshold according to local 58.

circumstances. While local authorities will need to ensure that the level of support is 

appropriate for the steps triggered, thresholds should be achievable and expressed as 

a simple figure so that people know the number of signatures needed to trigger this 

type of response.

Again, we recommend where practical, that local authorities set low thresholds, such 59.

as those used in the model scheme at Annex A, at the outset. These thresholds can 

be reviewed after a period of activity and amended if necessary provided the process 

set out in paragraph 11 and Section 11 of the 2009 Act is followed. If, for example, 

no such evidence sessions are triggered by petition in the space of a year the local 

authority should consider the reasons for this including, for example, the level of 

public awareness of the scheme and whether the threshold set may be too high.

Should it become apparent that a local authority, or authorities, are setting 60.

requirements which are unachievable, the Secretary of State has the power to direct 

a principal local authority, or authorities, to amend their petition scheme.

Officers to which section 16 applies

Principal local authorities must determine which of their officers are able to be 61.

called to account in this way and include these details in their petition scheme. This 

information should include the names and job titles of the officers in question. In 

order for petitions to have a meaningful impact petitioners must be able to call on 

the most senior officers to attend meetings and give evidence. Section 16(5) of the 

2009 Act therefore requires that, as a minimum, petition schemes provide that the 

head of paid service – often known as the chief executive of the authority – and 

the most senior officers responsible for the delivery of services can be required to 

provide information on their activities at public meetings of overview and scrutiny 

committees. Petition schemes should apply to senior officers responsible for 

delivering council functions and public services and not junior members of staff.

Appropriate officer

As now, the final decisions on which officer should attend, and the questions to be 62.

asked of him or her, rest with the overview and scrutiny committee. Under Section 

16(10) of the 2009 Act overview and scrutiny committees can decide that for the 

purposes of addressing the concerns raised in a petition it is more appropriate for 

another officer to be called to attend instead.

Agenda Item 7

Page 197



Chapter 3 Giving evidence | 27

Giving ‘grounds’

It is essential that the scrutiny prompted by petitions is appropriate and fair to the 63.

officers involved. They must not be exposed to inappropriate public scrutiny of 

their private lives, nor to harassment or bullying. To safeguard officers, Section 16 

of the 2009 Act stipulates that the ‘grounds’ given in the petition for attendance 

at a meeting of the overview and scrutiny committee must relate to their job – it 

cannot relate to their personal circumstances or character. An officer is not required 

to attend a meeting of the overview and scrutiny committee to give evidence if the 

petition calling for the attendance is deemed to be vexatious, abusive or otherwise 

inappropriate by the local authority.

Reporting

A principal local authority should inform the petition organiser when the overview 64.

and scrutiny meeting will take place with sufficient notice to enable them to attend. 

In any case where the subject of the petition is likely to lead to the discussion of 

confidential information, and therefore a resolution under the provisions in Part 5A 

of the Local Government Act 1972 to hold any part of the meeting in private, the 

reasons and process should be made clear in this notification. This notification should 

also be published on the local authority’s website.

After the relevant person has appeared before the overview and scrutiny committee, 65.

the committee must make a report or recommendations to the authority (under 

its existing powers) and send a copy of that report or recommendations to the 

petition organiser. If appropriate, the report could also be published on the 

authority’s website.

Agenda Item 7

Page 198



28 | Listening to communities: Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

Chapter 4

Petition reviews

Key principle:

That local people know that their views have been listened to.

Key outcome:

Petitioners will be able to appeal to the council’s overview and scrutiny 

committee if they feel the response from their council is not adequate.

Section 17 of the 2009 Act is essentially an appeal provision. If a petition organiser 66.

is not satisfied with the way an authority has dealt with a petition, this section gives 

the organiser the power to ask an overview and scrutiny committee to review that 

authority’s response to the petition. The overview and scrutiny committee will decide 

whether the steps taken by the executive in response to the petition were adequate. 

Considering petition appeals can help raise public awareness of the important role of 

overview and scrutiny.

The overview and scrutiny committee will bear in mind the list of potential steps 67.

which could be used to respond to the petition, listed in Section 14(6) of the 2009 

Act. An adequate response is likely to be proportionate to the issue set out in the 

petition and the level of support the petition has received. High quality responses 

which take people’s concerns seriously should lower the volume of appeals.

There may be petition organisers who appeal because the action their petition calls 68.

for is rejected, no matter how thorough the council’s process for coming to that 

decision. Appeals of this sort should not be onerous providing the principal local 

authority keeps records of how they have decided to respond to each petition.

If the committee has reason to be concerned about the adequacy of the authority’s 69.

response it may decide to carry out a full review of the issues raised in the petition 

using their powers under the Local Government Act 2000.

Agenda Item 7

Page 199



Chapter 4 Petition reviews | 29

Triggering a meeting of the full council

If the overview and scrutiny committee is very concerned – for instance if the 70.

committee thinks that the authority is seriously neglecting its responsibility to listen 

to local people – under Section 21(3)(b) of the Local Government Act 2000 the 

committee can arrange for the full council to carry out the review function. That is to 

say the overview and scrutiny committee can arrange for the authority’s response to 

the petition to be discussed at a meeting of the full council.

Publicising the outcome of the review

Under s.17(4)(b) of the 2009 Act the principal local authority must inform the 71.

petition organiser of the results of the review and s. 17(4)(c) requires that the results 

are also published on the authority’s website. Local people will therefore be able 

to see how many petition organisers appeal against their council’s response to 

petitions compared to other councils – and read the response to the appeals. People 

will therefore be able to judge for themselves how seriously their council is taking 

community petitions.

Consultation questions – Main guidance:

Question 1:

Does the guidance clearly set out the key principles and requirements of the petitions 

duty?

Question 2:

Are there any existing areas in the guidance which require further clarification?

Question 3:

Are there any additional areas which you feel this statutory guidance should cover? If 

so, please state what they are and why you feel they should be included.

Question 4:

Are there any additional areas which, while not appropriate for statutory guidance, you 

would like to see covered by sector-led guidance?

Question 5:

Are there any areas covered in this statutory guidance which you feel would be more 

appropriately covered in sector-led guidance? If so, please state what they are and why 

you feel they should be addressed in this way.

Agenda Item 7

Page 200



30 | Listening to communities: Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

Annex A

Draft model scheme

In order to demonstrate how the framework set out in the 2009 Act can translate in 

practice we have created a model scheme which local authorities can choose to adopt 

or adapt. The example below is based on an authority with a population of 150,000 and 

is the public facing information about their petition scheme published on their website. 

The model authority has chosen to respond to all the petitions it receives. Petitions which 

contain 1500 signatures will be debated by the full council and petitions which call for 

evidence from a senior officer, and have 750 signatures, will trigger that response. [‘link’ 

indicates where the council’s webpage includes a link to related information]

Petitions

The council welcomes petitions and recognises that petitions are one way in which people 

can let us know their concerns. All petitions sent or presented to the council will receive an 

acknowledgement from the council within 14 days of receipt. This acknowledgement will 

set out what we plan to do with the petition.

Paper petitions can be sent to:

[insert address]

Or be created, signed and submitted online by following this link [link]

Petitions can also be presented to a meeting of the council. These meetings take place on 

a monthly basis, dates and times can be found here [link]. If you would like to present your 

petition to the council, or would like your councillor to present it on your behalf, please 

contact [insert name] on [insert phone number] at least 5 working days before the meeting 

and they will talk you through the process.

What are the guidelines for submitting a petition?

Petitions submitted to the council must include

a clear and concise statement covering the subject of the petition. It should state 

what action the petitioners wish the council to take

the name and address and signature of any person supporting the petition

Agenda Item 7

Page 201



Annex A Model petition scheme | 31

Petitions should be accompanied by contact details, including an address, for the petition 

organiser. This is the person we will contact to explain how we will respond to the petition. 

The contact details of the petition organiser will not be placed on the website. If the 

petition does not identify a petition organiser, we will contact signatories to the petition to 

agree who should act as the petition organiser.

Petitions which are considered to be vexatious, abusive or otherwise inappropriate will not 

be accepted. If a petition does not follow the guidelines set out above, the council may 

decide not to do anything further with it. In that case, we will write to you to explain the 

reasons.

What will the council do when it receives my petition?

An acknowledgement will be sent to the petition organiser within 14 days of receiving 

the petition. It will let them know what we plan to do with the petition and when they can 

expect to hear from us again. It will also be published on our website.

If we can do what your petition asks for, the acknowledgement may confirm that we 

have taken the action requested and the petition will be closed. If the petition has enough 

signatures to trigger a council debate, or a senior officer giving evidence, then the 

acknowledgment will confirm this and tell you when and where the meeting will take 

place. If the petition needs more investigation, we will tell you the steps we plan to take.

If the petition applies to a planning or licensing application, is a statutory petition (for 

example requesting a referendum on having an elected mayor), or on a matter where there 

is already an existing right of appeal, such as council tax banding and non-domestic rates, 

other procedures apply. Further information on all these procedures and how you can 

express your views is available here [insert links]

We will not take action on any petition which we consider to be vexatious, abusive or 

otherwise inappropriate and will explain the reasons for this in our acknowledgement of 

the petition.

To ensure that people know what we are doing in response to the petitions we receive 

the details of all the petitions submitted to us will be published on our website, except 

in cases where this would be inappropriate. Whenever possible we will also publish all 

correspondence relating to the petition (all personal details will be removed). When you 

sign an e-petition you can elect to receive this information by email. We will not send you 

anything which is not relevant to the e-petition you have signed, unless you choose to 

receive other emails from us. [link to account settings]

Agenda Item 7

Page 202



32 | Listening to communities: Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

How will the council respond to petitions?

Our response to a petition will depend on what a petition asks for and how many people 

have signed it, but may include one or more of the following:

taking the action requested in the petition

considering the petition at a council meeting

holding an inquiry into the matter

undertaking research into the matter

holding a public meeting

holding a consultation

holding a meeting with petitioners

referring the petition for consideration by the council’s overview and scrutiny 

committee*

calling a referendum

writing to the petition organiser setting out our views about the request in 

the petition

*Overview and scrutiny committees are committees of councillors who are responsible for 

scrutinising the work of the council – in other words, the overview and scrutiny committee 

has the power to hold the council’s decision makers to account.

In addition to these steps, the council will consider all the specific actions it can potentially 

take on the issues highlighted in a petition. The table below gives some examples.

Petition subject Appropriate steps

Alcohol related crime 
and disorder

If your petition is about crime or disorder linked to alcohol 
consumption, the council will, among other measures, 
consider the case for placing restrictions on public drinking 
in the area by establishing a designated public place order 
or, as a last resort, imposing an alcohol disorder zone. When 
an alcohol disorder zone is established the licensed premises 
in the area where alcohol related trouble is being caused 
are required to contribute to the costs of extra policing in 
that area. The council’s response to your petition will set out 
the steps we intend to take and the reasons for taking this 
approach. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 203



Annex A Model petition scheme | 33

Petition subject Appropriate steps

Anti-social behaviour 
(ASB)

As the elected representatives of your local area, as social 
landlord and licensing authority, the council plays a significant 
role to play in tackling anti-social behaviour. The council, in 
conjunction with our partners in the local crime and disorder 
partnership have set out minimum service standards for 
responding to issues of anti-social behaviour, you can find 
more details about these standards here [insert link].

When responding to petitions on ASB, we will consider in 
consultation with our local partners, all the options available 
to us including the wide range of powers and mechanisms 
we have to intervene as part of our role as social landlord 
and licensing authority. For example, we will work with the 
neighbourhood policing team in the affected area to identify 
what action might be taken, consider identifying a dedicated 
contact within the council to liaise with the community 
and neighbourhood partners on issues of ASB in the area 
in question and, where appropriate, we will alert the crime 
and disorder reduction partnership and crime and disorder 
overview and scrutiny committee to the issues highlighted in 
the petition.

Under-performing 
schools

We will consider, in consultation with local partners, all the 
options available to us when working with schools to secure 
their improvement. For example, on our behalf, the school 
improvement partner (SIP) will play a pivotal role, challenging 
and brokering support for poorly performing schools. Where 
a school is under performing we will consider whether it is 
appropriate in the circumstances to issue a warning notice 
outlining expectations and a timeframe for the school 
to improve its performance standards. Other measures 
available to us, where schools fail to comply with a warning 
notice or are in an Ofsted category of notice to improve 
(requiring significant improvement) or special measures 
including; appointing additional governors, establishing an 
interim executive board, removal of the school’s delegated 
budgets, requiring the school to enter into a formal contract 
or partnership or, only if the school is in special measures, 
closure.

Agenda Item 7

Page 204



34 | Listening to communities: Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

Petition subject Appropriate steps

Under-performing 
health services

We will work with local health partners to consider the matter 
raised in the petition including, where appropriate, exploring 
what role the Local Involvement Network (LINk) might have 
in reviewing and feeding back on the issue (the LINk is run by 
local individuals and community groups and independently 
supported – their role to find out what people want in terms 
of local health services, monitor those services and to use their 
powers to hold them to account). The health overview and 
scrutiny committee will also be alerted to the petition and 
where the matter is sufficiently or potentially serious, the issue 
will be referred to them to consider for review.

If your petition is about something over which the council has no direct control (for 

example the local railway or hospital) we will aim to make representations on behalf of the 

community to the relevant body. The council works with a large number of local partners 

[link to list of LAA partners] and where possible will work with these partners to respond to 

your petition. If we are not able to do this for any reason (for example if what the petition 

calls for conflicts with council policy), then we will set out the reasons for this to you. You 

can find more information on the services for which the council is responsible here [link].

If your petition is about something that a different council is responsible for we will give 

consideration to what the best method is for responding to it. It might consist of simply 

forwarding the petition to the other council, but could involve other steps. In any event we 

will always notify you of the action we have taken.

Full council debates

If a petition contains more than 1,500 signatures it will be debated by the full council 

unless it is a petition asking for a senior council officer to give evidence at a public meeting. 

This means that the issue raised in the petition will be discussed at a meeting which 

all councillors can attend. The petition organiser will be given five minutes to present 

the petition at the meeting and the petition will then be discussed by councillors for a 

maximum of 15 minutes. The council will decide how to respond to the petition at this 

meeting. They may decide to take the action the petition requests, not to take the action 

requested for reasons put forward in the debate, or to commission further investigation 

into the matter, for example by a relevant committee. The petition organiser will 

receive written confirmation of this decision. This confirmation will also be published on 

our website.

Agenda Item 7

Page 205



Annex A Model petition scheme | 35

Officer evidence

Your petition may ask for a senior council officer to give evidence at a public meeting 

about something for which the officer is responsible as part of their job. For example, your 

petition may ask a senior council officer to explain progress on an issue, or to explain the 

advice given to elected members to enable them to make a particular decision.

If your petition contains at least 750 signatures, the relevant senior officer will give 

evidence at a public meeting of the council’s overview and scrutiny committee. A list of 

the senior staff that can be called to give evidence can be found here [insert link]. You 

should be aware that the overview and scrutiny committee may decide that it would be 

more appropriate for another officer to give evidence instead of any officer named in the 

petition – for instance if the named officer has changed jobs. Committee members will ask 

the questions at this meeting, but you will be able to suggest questions to the chair of the 

committee by contacting [insert details] up to three working days before the meeting.

E-petitions

The council welcomes e-petitions which are created and submitted through our website 

[link]. E-petitions must follow the same guidelines as paper petitions [link to guidelines]. 

The petition organiser will need to provide us with their name, postal address and email 

address. You will also need to decide how long you would like your petition to be open 

for signatures. Most petitions run for six months, but you can choose a shorter or longer 

timeframe, up to a maximum of 12 months.

When you create an e-petition, it may take five working days before it is published online. 

This is because we have to check that the content of your petition is suitable before it is 

made available for signature.

If we feel we cannot publish your petition for some reason, we will contact you within this 

time to explain. You will be able to change and resubmit your petition if you wish. If you do 

not do this within 14 days, a summary of the petition and the reason why it has not been 

accepted will be published under the ‘rejected petitions’ section of the website.

When an e-petition has closed for signature, it will automatically be submitted to [insert 

details]. In the same way as a paper petition, you will receive an acknowledgement within 

14 days. If you would like to present your e-petition to a meeting of the council, please 

contact [insert details] (details above) within five days of the petition closing.

A petition acknowledgement and response will be emailed to everyone who has signed the 

e-petition and elected to receive this information. The acknowledgment and response will 

also be published on this website.

Agenda Item 7

Page 206



36 | Listening to communities: Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

How do I ‘sign’ an e-petition?

You can see all the e-petitions currently available for signature here [insert link].

When you sign an e-petition you will be asked to provide your name, your postcode and a 

valid email address. When you have submitted this information you will be sent an email to 

the email address you have provided. This email will include a link which you must click on 

in order to confirm the email address is valid. Once this step is complete your ‘signature’ will 

be added to the petition. People visiting the e-petition will be able to see your name in the 

list of those who have signed it but your contact details will not be visible.

What can I do if I feel my petition has not been dealt with 
properly?

If you feel that we have not dealt with your petition properly, the petition organiser has the 

right to request that the council’s overview and scrutiny committee review the steps that 

the council has taken in response to your petition.

The committee will consider your request within 30 days of receiving it. Should the 

committee determine we have not dealt with your petition adequately, it may use any of its 

powers to deal with the matter. These powers include instigating an investigation, making 

recommendations to the council executive and arranging for the matter to be considered 

at a meeting of the full council.

Once the appeal has been considered the petition organiser will be informed of the results 

within seven days. The results of the review will also be published on our website.

Consultation questions – Model scheme:

Question 6:

Do you think the model scheme is clearly expressed and easy for people to use? Please 

explain your reasons.

Question 7:

Do you think the standards set out in the model scheme are achievable and appropriate 

to citizens’ expectations?

Question 8:

Do you think there is anything that should be added to the model scheme?

Agenda Item 7

Page 207



Annex B Draft petitions order | 37

Annex B

Draft petitions order

Agenda Item 7

Page 208



38 | Listening to communities: Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

S T A T U T O R Y  I N S T R U M E N T S  

2009 No. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT, ENGLAND 

The Local Authorities (Petitions) (England) Order 2009 

Made - - - - *** 

Laid before Parliament *** 

Coming into force - - 1st April 2010

The Secretary of State, in exercise of the powers conferred by sections 14(4) and 19(1) and (3) of 

the Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009(a), makes the 

following Order: 

Citation, commencement, application and interpretation 

1.—(1) This Order may be cited as the Local Authorities (Petitions) (England) Order 2009 and 

shall come into force on 1st April 2010. 

(2) In this Order— 

“the Act” means the Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009; 

“licensing decision” means— 

(a) any decision in relation to— 

(i) an application for the grant, variation or review of any authorisation under Part 3 or 4 

of the Licensing Act 2003 (premises licences and club premises certificates)(b), or 

(ii) a hearing or appeal in respect of any such application; 

(b) any decision in relation to— 

(i) an application for the grant, renewal or transfer of a licence under Schedule 3 to the 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (control of sex 

establishments)(c), or 

(ii) a request for the variation of any term, condition or restriction contained in such a 

licence, or 

(iii) the revocation of such a licence; 

(c) any decision in relation to— 

(i) an application for a licence, permit or  registration under the Gambling Act 2005(d), 

or

(ii) a request for the variation of any term, condition or restriction associated with any 

such licence, permit or registration, or 

(iii) the revocation of any such licence, permit or registration, and 

                                                                                                                               

(a) 2009 c. 20 As to “the appropriate national authority”, in relation to English authorities, see the definition in section 22(1).
(b) 2003 c. 17. See the definition of “authorisation” in section 2(4). 
(c) 1982 c. 30. 
(d) 2005. c. 19. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 209



Annex B Draft petitions order | 39

(d) any enforcement decision made under any of the Acts mentioned in sub-paragraphs (a) to 

(c) above, or subordinate legislation made under those Acts. 

“the Planning Acts” means the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (a), the Planning (Listed 

Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990(b), the Planning (Hazardous Substances) Act 

1990(c) and the Planning Act 2008(d);

“planning decision” means— 

(a) any decision on an application under the Planning Acts or subordinate legislation made 

under any of those Acts for any agreement, approval, consent or permission, or 

(b) any enforcement decision relating to any development within the meaning of those 

Acts(e), or 

(c) any decision in relation to the preparation, revision or adoption of a development plan 

document within the meaning of section 37(3) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004(f) or Community Infrastructure Levy charging schedule within the meaning of 

section 211(1) of the Planning Act 2008; and 

“right of recourse to a review” does not include any right to make a complaint to the 

Commission for Local Administration pursuant to Part 3 of the Local Government Act 

1974(g).

Excluded matters 

2. Subject to article 3, for the purposes of subsection (1)(a) of section 14 of the Act (requirement 

to take steps), the following matters are not to be regarded as relating to a function of a principal 

local authority— 

(a) any matter relating to a planning decision; 

(b) any matter relating to a licensing decision; 

(c) any other matter relating to an individual or entity in respect of which that individual or 

entity has a right of recourse to a review or right of appeal conferred by or under any 

enactment; 

Systematic failure in discharge of functions not an excluded matter 

3. A matter does not fall within article 2 if it consists of an allegation that a function for which 

the authority is responsible has not been discharged at all or that its discharge has failed or is 

failing on a systematic basis, notwithstanding the fact that the allegation specifies or refers to a 

planning decision, a licensing decision or a matter of the description referred to in paragraph (c) of 

that article. 

Specified number for petition requiring debate 

4.—(1) The number to be specified by an authority pursuant to section 15(4) of the Act must be 

no greater than 5% of the total local authority population. 

(2) For the purposes of paragraph (1) “total local authority population” means the estimate of the 

population of the area of the authority contained in the Registrar General’s population estimates 

for England and Wales published by the Office of National Statistics. 

                                                                                                                               

(a) 1990 c. 8. 
(b) 1990 c.9. 
(c) 1990 c.10. 
(d) 2008 c. 29. 
(e) “Development” is defined in section 55 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and is used with the same meaning in 

the other Planning Acts, with some modification, in the case of the Planning Act 2008, where the definition is subject to 
sections 32(2) and (3) of that Act.  

(f) 2004 c. 5 Section 37(2) was amended by section 180(1) and (6)(a) of the Planning Act 2008 (c.29).  
(g) 1974 c. 7. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 210



40 | Listening to communities: Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

Signed by authority of the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

Name

Minister of State 

Date Department for Communities and Local Government 

Agenda Item 7

Page 211



Annex B Draft petitions order | 41

EXPLANATORY NOTE 

(This note is not part of the Order) 

This Order specifies, for England, matters that are not to be relevant matters for the purposes of 

section 14(1) of the Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009. 

Consequently, the petition schemes of principal local authorities in England are not required to 

make provision requiring the authority to take steps in response to petitions dealing with those 

matters. 

Article 2 of the Order provides that a petition relating to a licensing decision or a planning 

decision (both defined in article 1(3)); or a matter relating to an individual or entity where there is 

already a statutory right to a review or appeal (other than the right to complain to the Commission 

for Local Administration – commonly known as the Local Government Ombudsman) are not 

relevant matters. 

Article 3 provides that a petition which calls for action in respect of an allegation of systematic 

failure of an authority to discharge a function for which the authority is responsible is a relevant 

matter, notwithstanding that the petition specifies matters which would otherwise be excluded by 

virtue of article 2. 

Article 4 specifies the maximum number of signatures that authorities may include in their petition 

schemes as being required to trigger a debate of the full council. That figure is 5% of the local 

population as estimated by the Office of National Statistics. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 212



42 | Listening to communities: Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

Consultation questions – Draft order:

It is our intention to ensure that the petitions duty enables people to express their 

views on issues of local concern and to know that their views have been listened to. It is 

also our intention to ensure there is a balance between this aim and the requirements 

placed on local authorities by the duty. On this basis ministers have set out the 

Government’s intention to exclude from the duty matters for which there are already 

established processes in place for people to have their say. The aim of the draft order 

at Annex B is to achieve this intention, however we are aware that there may be other 

matters which we should consider excluding for other reasons. We would therefore 

value your views on the following:

Question 9:

Do you agree with the categories we have excluded in the order? If you do not agree 

with the categories please explain why you do not think they should be excluded.

Question 10:

Do you think there should be additional categories excluded? If so, please state what 

they are and why you feel they should be excluded.

Agenda Item 7

Page 213



Annex B Summary of consultation questions | 43

Summary of consultation questions

This guidance aims to:

set out the key principles and key requirements of the petitions duty

set a framework for local authorities to use when designing and complying with 

their petitions scheme

allow for significant local determination

This guidance does not replicate the provisions set out in the legislation and should be read 

in conjunction with Sections 10 – 22 of the 2009 Act and the Local Authorities (Petitions)

(England) Order 2009 (see draft order at Annex B). Sector led guidance will provide more 

detailed practical advice and support on implementing the petitions duty.

The purpose of this public consultation is to seek your views on whether this guidance 

meets its aims. If you think improvements could be made please give specific examples in 

response to the questions set out below.

Main guidance

Question 1:

Does the guidance clearly set out the key principles and requirements of the petitions duty?

Question 2:

Are there any existing areas in the guidance which require further clarification?

Question 3:

Are there any additional areas which you feel this statutory guidance should cover? If so, 

please state what they are and why you feel they should be included.

Question 4:

Are there any additional areas which, while not appropriate for statutory guidance, you 

would like to see covered by the expert practitioners in their sector-led guidance?

Question 5:

Are there any areas covered in this statutory guidance which you feel would be more 

appropriately covered by the expert practitioners in their sector-led guidance? If so, please 

state what they are and why you feel they should be addressed in this way.

Agenda Item 7

Page 214



44 | Listening to communities: Consultation on draft statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

Model scheme

Question 6:

Do you think the model scheme is clearly expressed and easy for people to use? Please 

explain your reasons.

Question 7:

Do you think the standards set out in the model scheme are achievable and appropriate to 

citizens’ expectations?

Question 8:

Do you think there is anything that should be added to the model scheme?

Draft order

It is our intention to ensure that the petitions duty enables people to express their views 

on issues of local concern and to know that their views have been listened to. It is also 

our intention to ensure there is a balance between this aim and the requirements placed 

on local authorities by the duty. On this basis ministers have set out the Government’s 

intention to exclude from the duty matters for which there are already established 

processes in place for people to have their say. The aim of the draft order at Annex B is to 

achieve this intention, however we are aware that there may be other matters which we 

should consider excluding for other reasons. We would therefore value your views on the 

following:

Question 9:

Do you agree with the categories we have excluded in the order? If you do not agree with 

the categories please explain why you do not think they should be excluded.

Question 10:

Do you think there should be additional categories excluded? If so, please state what they 

are and why you feel they should be excluded.

Additional questions – Next steps

Question 11:

Following on from this consultation, what do you consider the most appropriate timescale 

for bringing the petitions duty into force? Please explain your reasons.

Question 12:

Initial discussions with both the local government and technology sector indicate that 

it would be wise to stagger the implementation of the e-petition element of the duty, 

bringing the e-petition requirements into force 12 months after the other elements of the 

duty are commenced. Do you agree? Please explain your reasons.

Agenda Item 7

Page 215



ISBN 978-1-4098-1941-7

9 781409 819417ISBN: 978-1-4098-1941-7

Agenda Item 7

Page 216



Agenda Item 9

Page 217

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 9

Page 230

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Page 231

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 236

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

Page 237

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 11

Page 242

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Corporate Customer Contact - Use of Speech Recognition Technology
	5 Active Workforce - Programme Developments
	6 Finance and Information Services Department - Corporate Services Portfolio Monitoring 2009/10 - Quarter 2
	f&is asp q2 2009-10
	f&is dsp q2 2009-10

	7 Consultation on Draft Statutory Guidance on the Duty to Respond to Petitions
	petitions consultation

	9 Review of the School Admissions and Student Support Service 2010
	10 Award of Insurance Broker and Risk Management Advisor Contract
	11 Business Rates - Application for Hardship Relief

